Research Report

Highlights in Musculoskeletal Research 2020





Contents

- **3** Message from the Chair of the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery
- 4 NIH Ranking
- 5 Our Vision
- 6 Research Programs and Activities
- 7 Orthopaedic Translational Research Orthopaedic Edge Innovations Laboratory
- 8 Stem Cell Laboratory

Skeletal Mechanobiology

- 9 Developmental and Evolutionary Skeletal Biology
 Orthopaedic Tissue Engineering and Regeneration
- 10 Orthopaedic Biomechanics and Biotransport
- 11 Skeletal Regeneration / Molecular and

Cellular Biology / Musculoskeletal Regeneration

- 12 OTI Biomedical Engineering Lab
- 13 Laboratory for Evolutionary Anatomy
- 14 International Research at IGOT
- 16 OTI Clinical Research Center
- 18 Pediatric Clinical Research
- 20 Sports Medicine Patient-Centered Clinical Outcomes, Sports Medicine Clinical Trials in Knee and Shoulder Surgery, and Digital Health
- 22 Youth Sports Injury Assessment and Prevention Center, Hip Preservation Center
- 23 Orthopaedic Clinical Research at the Spine Center
- 24 Translational Quantitative Imaging Center
- 25 Orthopaedic Oncology/Osseointegration

- 26 UCSF Musculoskeletal Research Consortium (METRiCS)
- 27 Human Performance Center
- 28 Core Center for Musculoskeletal Biology & Medicine

29 Core Center for Disruptive Musculoskeletal Innovations (CDMI) Center for Dental, Oral, & Craniofacial Tissue & Organ Regeneration (C-DOCTOR), Industry Research Center

- 30 New Faculty
- 32 Residency Highlights
- 34 Awards, Grants, & Presentations
- 36 Trainee Highlights
- 46 News and Media
- 62 Grants and Fellowships
- 71 Research Publications
- 96 Philanthropy

Produced by Maryam Farshad, Kathleen Jay, and Erin Simon.

May 14, 2021

Cover image: Visualization of flow lines from dynamic finite element fluid modeling representing fluid shear within the pericellular space of a single osteocyte lacunae and its associated canalicular dendrites from mouse cortical bone. A special thanks to **Charlie Shurman** (Graduate student, Alliston Lab) **Stefaan Verbruggen,** and **Tamara Alliston, PhD**.

UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery 500 Parnassus Avenue, 3rd Floor Room MU-320W San Francisco, CA 94117 Phone: (415) 476-1166 Fax: 476-1304

orthosurgery.ucsf.edu





Message from the Chair of the UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery

Dear colleagues and friends,

The year 2020 will be remembered as a remarkable year of change, challenge, and loss as well as growth, resilience, achievements and success by our researchers.

Our day-to-day lives may have been disrupted by the pandemic, but as a Department we learned to adjust and continued to focus on our core objectives: looking to the future, answering fundamental questions, and providing the best available evidence-based data from all disciplines of musculoskeletal research. We continue to fuel curiosity by exchanging ideas and encouraging collaborations in orthopaedic research -- basic science, clinical and translational. Even if it's over a Zoom.

In 2019, we took great pride in sharing that UCSF was the top public recipient of funding from the National Institutes of Health (NIH), and as a Department we received \$39,103,498 in peer-reviewed NIH research grants. Although 2020 posed challenges -- -- including safe ways to re-open labs and conduct clinical research with our patients-- nonetheless, our Department received an additional \$5,127,654 in NIH Funding to continue our innovative research. Building upon our sustainable model, we look forward to continuing success, innovative studies and evidence-based breakthroughs. Plans are underway to expand and remodel labs in 11 HSE and 95 Kirkham, and our faculty are actively engaged in the process of reenvisioning the entire research community on the Parnassus campus.

We are very proud of all of our researchers for riding out these challenges and slowly, carefully and safely returning to a new normal. I look forward to our research enterprise growth throughout 2021 and well beyond!

Thomas Parker Vail, MD James L. Young Professor Chair, Department of Orthopaedic Surgery

NIH Ranking

NIH Research Grants for UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery



Total Award Dollars

Our Vision

Pioneering musculoskeletal discovery and innovative care to transform lives.

Devante Horne, a graduate student, performs musculoskeletal reseach in the Lotz Laboratory for Orthopaedic Tissue Engineering and Regeneration on UCSF's Parnassus campus.



Research Programs and Activities



Researchers in the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery conduct innovative clinical, basic science, and translational research in musculoskeletal biology to improve the delivery and outcomes of orthopaedic care. Neha Dole, PhD, above, performs musculoskeletal research in the Alliston Laboratory for Skeletal Mechanobiology at UCSF's Parnassus Campus.

Basic, Translational and Clinical Research

The UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery has a diverse and broad basic and translational research program in musculoskeletal biology. This is in addition to our clinical research program, which spans all orthopaedic subspecialties. Each of our various research programs are aimed at bringing new insights to our understanding of the musculoskeletal system. A major goal is to develop novel treatments for defects, diseases, conditions, and injuries that affect musculoskeletal function. We are driven by the desire to improve the delivery and outcomes of orthopaedic care.

Additionally, the Department has a strong tradition in clinical research across all subspecialties. Over the past decade, clinical researchers have established a large collaborative network both within UCSF as well as with national and international clinical researchers. This has improved the impact and depth of our clinical research.

Over the past year, clinical research has been published in all major orthopaedic surgery journals including the Journal of Bone & Joint Surgery (JBJS), Journal of Shoulder and Elbow Surgery (JSES), Journal of Orthopaedic Trauma (JOT), Spine journal, Journal of Pediatric Orthopaedics (JPO), Clinical Orthopaedics and Related Research (CORR), and the American Journal of Sports Medicine (AJSM). Faculty, fellows, and residents presented at American Academy of Orthpaedic Surgeons (AAOS), Orthopaedic Research Society (ORS), the American Orthopaedic Society in Sports Medicine (AOSSM), International Society of Arthroscopy, Knee Surgery and Orthopaedic Sports Medicine (ISAKOS), the Hip and Knee Society, and the Orthopaedic Trauma Association (OTA), among other national and international meetings. For a full list of our departmental contributions to the 2020 AAOS and ORS conferences, please visit https:// orthosurgery.ucsf.edu/education/courses/.

While the individual projects are too numerous to list in detail, there have been several highlights of collaborative research across spine surgery, osseointegration, 3D printing for improving surgical outcomes, shoulder arthroplasty and instability, imaging analysis using high resolution MRI and CT, global health through UCSF's Institute for Global Orthopaedics and Traumatology (IGOT), pediatrics and pediatric sports medicine.

Orthopaedic Translational Research

UCSF VA Health Center, Research Facility at Mission Bay

The Laboratory for Orthopaedic Translational Research is directed by Hubert Kim, MD, PhD and Alfred Kuo, MD, PhD at the UCSF VA Research Facility at Mission Bay.

The focus of the team's research effort is to examine the molecular and cellular mechanisms responsible for secondary injury cascades that are set in motion after trauma. There is particular interest in tissues that have an extremely limited capacity for healing and regeneration, where preservation of existing cells and tissue may be of great clinical significance. The intention is to apply lessons learned in the laboratory to design better treatments for patients.

Additionally, Brian Feeley, MD directs the Laboratory for Stem Cell Regeneration and Translational Research, located on the UCSF/ VA Mission Bay campus focusing on muscle injury problems. Brian Feeley, MD collaborates with Xuhui Liu, MD and researchers at UCSF on developing models to study the molecular mechanisms and cellular mechanisms that are responsible for the development of muscle atrophy and fatty infiltration after rotator cuff tears.

The focus of the research is to understand the cellular and molecular changes that occur within the muscle after different injuries, but particularly rotator cuff tears. They have developed novel injury and repair models to study the acute and chronic



Stem cells found within the rotator cuff muscle can be stimulated into fibrotic tissue (red) or fat tissue (green) depending on the stimulus (Feeley-Liu Laboratory for Stem Cell Regeneration and Translational Research)

effects of rotator cuff injury on the important signal transduction pathways that govern muscle cell size and stem cell fate within the muscle. They also focus on understanding how muscle injury patterns affect the stem cell populations within the muscle (satellite cells, FAP cells) in an effort to determine treatment strategies that would improve muscle function after orthopedic injuries.

Within the UCSF VA Health Center, the Orthopaedic Rapid Intelligent Fabrication Group led by Alan Dang, MD and Alexis Dang, MD focus on translating orthopaedic ideas into orthopaedic products. They maintain a 3-axis CNC mill as well as a small fleet of 3D printers with customized extruders, firmware, and other software optimizations. Active projects include the development of advanced surgical lighting technology as well as surgical instrumentation and implants.

Orthopaedic Edge Innovations Laboratory

Multi-Campus Laboratory

The Edge Innovations Lab is led by Aenor Sawyer, MD, MS, Alexis Dang, MD and Alan Dang, MD and is focused on Engineering, Designing, and Growth Enabling digital (EDGE) and manufacturing technologies.

This group is responsible for clinical 3D printing across the many campuses of the Department including UCSF Parnassus Heights, The Orthopaedic Institute at Mission Bay, ZSFGH, SF VAHC, UCSF Benioff Children's Hospital Mission Bay, and UCSF Benioff Children's Hospital Oakland. Currently, the focus is on 3D printing of Precision Anatomic Models for surgical pre-operative planning and conducting the research to assess the efficacy and economics of the technology.

As a result of their work in the 3D imaging arena, Alexis Dang, MD and Alan Dang, MD won the San Francisco Federal Executive Board "Federal Employee of the Year" award in Science & Technology related to 3D printing in orthopaedics. https:// gsablogs.gsa.gov/febsanfrancisco/programs/public-servicerecognition/. The Board represents approximately 70,000 federal, postal and military employees throughout the nine bay area counties (Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano, Sonoma), as well as agencies in the Sacramento area.



Edge Innovation Laboratory is led by Aenor Sawyer MD, MD, Alexis Dang, MD, and Alan Dang, MD.

Additionally, Dr. Aenor Sawyer, Dr. Alexis Dang and Dr. Alan Dang spearheaded a multidisciplinary initiative, together with the Pediatric Heart group and Radiology, to develop 3D+ printing technologies at UCSF. The "+" includes augmented reality, virtual reality, and 4D imaging (3D-imaging with a time component). This has received \$1.4 million in funding. Human muscle stem cells and regeneration (Brack Laboratory for Skeletal Muscle Regeneration and Aging). Image by Annarita Scaramozza, PhD

Stem Cell Laboratory

Eli and Edythe Broad Center of Regeneration Medicine and Stem Cell Research on Parnassus Heights

The Brack Laboratory for Skeletal Muscle Regeneration and Aging is directed by Andrew Brack, PhD, and focuses on the development of strategies to accelerate skeletal muscle repair.

During aging or in response to radiotherapy, the capacity for muscle repair is diminished, leading to reduced mobility and strength.

The Brack Lab uses state of the art machine learning and molecular biology to determine the causes of muscle dysfunction and identify strategies to rejuvenate the regenerative potential of skeletal muscle. In the future, the Brack Lab hopes that current projects will lead to strategies that reverse aging and improve recovery after radiotherapy.

Andrew Brack, PhD, has developed collaborations with clinical faculty, including sports medicine and oncology. Active studies include studies on muscle aging and muscle recovery after radiotherapy.

Skeletal Mechanobiology

UCSF Parnassus Heights

The Laboratory for Skeletal Mechanobiology is directed by Tamara Alliston, PhD.

The Alliston Laboratory investigates the molecular pathways controlling skeletal cell behavior, how these pathways coordinate with physical cues to influence mechanical integrity of healthy bone and cartilage, and how they can be harnessed to repair tissue damaged in degenerative skeletal diseases like osteoporosis

and osteoarthritis. To answer these questions they combine molecular, cellular, physiologic, and materials science approaches.

In particular, they seek to define the function of TGF in synergistically coordinating physical and biochemical cues in bone and cartilage cells. Since TGF β is a powerful regulator of homeostasis throughout the skeleton, understanding this signaling pathway has helped their team uncover fundamental new cellular mechanisms that participate in skeletal health and disease.

This research has provided important new insight on factors that cause common musculoskeletal problems, like joint injuries, osteoarthritis, and bone fragility in aging men and women. Now the research team is building on what they have learned in the laboratory to discover new therapeutic strategies to prevent skeletal disease and to improve skeletal repair.

Osteocyte canalicular networks visualized in silver stained bone. Image by Charlie Schurman 2018 (Alliston Laboratory for Skeletal Mechanobiology)





(A) Skeletal muscle from a duck embryo showing muscles of the head and neck (stained pink with an anti-myosin antibody). (B) At higher magnification (dashed inset box), striated fibers of the jaw closing muscles and their insertions points within skeletal precursor cells can be observed (Schneider Laboratory for Developmental and Evolutionary Skeletal Biology, confocal images by Dr. Jessye Aggleton).

Development and Evolutionary Skeletal Biology

UCSF Parnassus Heights

The Schneider Laboratory for Developmental and Evolutionary Skeletal Biology is directed by Richard A. Schneider, PhD.

Research is broadly aimed at understanding how the developing musculoskeletal system achieves its structural and functional integration.

To address this question, the lab has created a unique surgical transplantation system that involves embryos from two distinct types of birds (quail and duck), which differ considerably in their functional anatomy and growth rates.

Transplanting skeletal and other progenitor cells between them challenges the resulting chimeric "quck" and "duail" embryos to integrate two different species-specific developmental programs.

By focusing on donor- versus host-controlled changes to embryonic patterning and growth, this strategy has illuminated molecular and cellular mechanisms that regulate the musculoskeletal system and enable bones, cartilages, tendons, muscles, and other tissues to achieve their proper size, shape, orientation, and integration.

A goal is to devise novel molecular- and cell-based therapies for repairing and regenerating musculoskeletal tissues affected by birth defects, disease, and injury. Work from the Schneider Lab has also helped elucidate the role of development in evolution.

Orthopaedic Tissue Engineering and Regeneration

UCSF Parnassus Heights

The Orthopaedic Tissue Engineering and Regeneration Laboratory is directed by Jeffrey C. Lotz, PhD.

The Lotz Laboratory is devoted to conducting basic research in several areas of orthopaedics including biomechanics of the spine, knee, and hand. Biomechanical studies serve to investigate the physical properties of musculoskeletal (MSK) tissues, as well as functional performance of MSK patients.

The Lotz Laboratory is collaborating with UC Berkeley engineers to design and validate in-clinic tools and sensors that quantify patient movement and augment traditional physical tests and patient-reported data. Similar studies are being conducted with NASA astronauts to understand the adverse effects of microgravity, and to develop countermeasures to maintain astronaut health and safety on long-duration space flight,



The Lotz Laboratory has pioneered biomechanical, anatomic, and imaging studies of the human disc/vertebra interface (Lotz Laboratory for Orthopaedic Tissue Engineering and Regeneration).

such as the planned Mars missions. Additionally, they have focused on understanding the etiology of different diseases (e.g., disc degeneration, osteonecrosis) and comorbidities (disc degeneration and diabetes).

In the area of regenerative medicine, the Lotz laboratory is exploring various uses of mesenchymal stem cells for new therapies for disc, cartilage, and bone regeneration.

The diverse research team includes bioengineers, biologists, biochemists, histologists, and orthopaedic surgeons.



Fields Laboratory for Orthopaedic Biomechanics and Biotransport

Orthopaedic Biomechanics and Biotransport

UCSF Parnassus Heights

The Orthopaedic Biomechanics and Biotransport Laboratory is directed by Aaron Fields, PhD.

The broad research interests of the Fields Lab are related to structure-function relationships in musculoskeletal tissues, with a particular focus on the mechanisms of nutrient transport in bone and cartilage, and harnessing nutrient transport for tissue repair and regeneration.

The lab combines engineering and biology approaches for: (1) understanding the effects of aging and disease on structuretransport relationships, and (2) developing translatable diagnostic and therapeutic strategies. An overall theme of this research is the use of advanced experimental and computational tools to measure how tissue constituents at the nano- and microscales impact whole-organ behavior. The research involves close collaborations with clinicians including spine surgeons, physiatrists, and radiologists.

Active projects include: (1) translational studies aimed at harnessing nutrient transport for disc repair and regeneration; (2) clinical studies testing new diagnostic MRI tools for selecting patients that would most benefit from disc regenerative therapies; and (3) basic science studies comparing healthy vs. pathologicdisc cell phenotype. These studies are funded by grants from the National Institutes of Health and the North American Spine Society.

Skeletal Regeneration/Molecular and Cellular Biology

Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFGH)

The Molecular and Cellular Biology Laboratory is directed by Ralph Marcucio, PhD, and Ted Miclau, MD.

The major focus of the work performed is to examine the processes that occur during bone regeneration after traumatic injury. Understanding the events that occur during fracture repair is essential for developing therapies to help people that exhibit difficulties in bone healing. For example, delayed or non-union afflict approximately 10% of all people undergoing fracture repair. By understanding how the body normally responds to orthopaedic trauma, they are laying the foundation for the development of new therapeutic regimens to treat a wide variety of skeletal pathologies.

The research utilizes a murine tibia fracture model that was developed by members of the laboratory and is used in other laboratories throughout the national and international orthopaedic research community. Current areas of study include, the role of muscle in bone healing, the role of inflammation in bone healing, the role of angiogenesis in bone healing, genotype-phenotype correlations during skeletal development, and the role of continuous phenotypic variation in disease production.

Image is from the Molecular and Cellular Biology Laboratory.





Visualization of the chondro-osseous transition zone in a fracture callus. (A-C) Low magnification of a murine fracture callus, outlined with black dashed line, stained with (A) Safranin-O/Fast Green (SO/FG), (B) Modified Milligan's Trichrome (TC) or (C) Hall and Brunt Quadruple Stain (HBQ). (D-F) A magnified region of cartilage and bone from the fracture callus, outlined with a red box (A-C), with the TZ indicated by black brackets. (G-I) High magnification images of the TZ show the invading vasculature and the chondro-osseous junction. (Bahney Laboratory for Musculoskeletal Regeneration/Line).

Musculoskeletal Regeneration

Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFGH)

The Laboratory for Musculoskeletal Regeneration is directed by Chelsea S. Bahney, PhD.

The Bahney Laboratory utilizes a developmental engineering approach to discover novel therapeutic targets for regenerative medicine by first studying the normal mechanisms of repair, then utilizing engineered biomaterials to deliver bioactive signals to promote improved regenerative outcomes.

Currently, the focus of the Bahney Lab is primarily on the process of cartilage turning into bone, either naturally during fracture repair, or in disease processes such as osteoarthritis.

A long-term research goal is to translate new biologics that change healthcare options in fracture healing and post-traumatic osteoarthritis.

Laboratory for Evolutionary Anatomy

Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFGH)

The Laboratory for Evolutionary Anatomy is directed by Nathan Young, PhD.

The Young Laboratory addresses biomedical basic research through the lens of evolution, utilizing functional compromise and historical constraint as fundamental explanatory principles. When combined with mechanistic insights from experimental systems, this approach yields significant insights into the generation of individual phenotypes, both normal and abnormal.

The lab research program combines classical embryology, modern experimental and genetic tools, and advanced methods for quantifying and comparing phenotypes at a range of scales. This approach has significance for understanding not only the processes that contribute to and constrain evolutionary diversity, but also the individual phenotypic differences found within species and among individuals, including dysmorphologies associated with human disease states. Research includes the study of normal mechanisms of development as well as the etiology of congenital developmental defects, and is strongly relevant to longstanding goals of providing personalized and predictive medicine.



Comparison of facial development from embryos to adults in mouse, human, alligator, and chicken (Young Laboratory for Evolutionary Anatomy).



Testing facility, Safa Herfat PhD, Transtibial prosthetic socket being 3D printed for a patient at the OTI O&P clinic (OTI Biomedical Engineering Lab).

Orthopaedic Trauma Institute (OTI) Biomedical Engineering Lab

Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFGH)

Directed by Safa Herfat, PhD, the OTI Biomedical Engineering Lab specializes in experimental biomechanical testing and finite element analysis of orthopaedic fracture fixation strategies and implants.

The lab also collaborates with the UCSF Orthotics & Prosthetics clinics on prosthetic innovation projects incorporating 3D scanning and printing to design and manufacture patient-specific prosthetic solutions. The lab houses its own 3D lab, with four 3D printers, a high accuracy white light 3D scanner, and a highend design workstation. A Hearts Grant from the San Francisco General Hospital Foundation has also generously funded a large 3D printer capable of printing large lower limb sockets, as well as funding the development of a custom pressure sensor system to objectively monitor prosthesis fit in the clinic.

The lab is collaborating with other UCSF and UC Berkeley labs on an NSF grant-funded project to develop an implantable sensor to monitor fracture healing.

International Research at the Institute for Global Orthopaedics and Traumatology (IGOT)

Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFGH)

IGOT Research Projects Led by Saam Morshed, MD, MPH, PhD and David Shearer, MD, MPH,:

Tanzania- Intramedullary Nailing Versus External Fixation for Open Tibia Fractures Randomized Controlled Trial Long-Term Follow-Up

Open tibia fractures are among the most common and debilitating injuries faced in low-income countries due to high rates of infection and nonunion. This study aims to address the question of whether internal or external fixation is better as definitive treatment for open tibia fractures in Tanzania. The study has enrolled and randomized 240 patients and achieved greater than 90% 1 year follow up. The study is currently conducting final data analysis, and we anticipate publication in the near future.

Tanzania- Cost-effectiveness of Prosthetics for Above Knee Amputees

Although the need for greater access to prosthetic services in lowand middle-income countries is well-established, literature on the long-term sustainability and cost-effectiveness of these prostheses in low-resource settings is lacking. This study will provide longitudinal follow-up to a previously conducted cost analysis of above knee prostheses in a low-resource setting, examining the original target study population to assess the long-term durability and impact of the prosthesis on quality of life, functional outcomes, and cost-effectiveness. The study is currently awaiting Tanzanian ethical approval, and we anticipate beginning patient enrollment and data collection in the near future.

Tanzania- Cost-effectiveness of Prosthetics for Below Knee Amputees

Limb loss has profound economic, social, and psychological effects on both the individual and the community, and these effects are especially pronounced in low- and middle-income countries. However, countries with already strained financial resources rarely prioritize rehabilitation services, and thus there is a need for economic analyses evaluating cost-effective, sustainable, and appropriate prosthetic technology in LMICs. This multisite, prospective cohort study aims to measure the impact of below knee prostheses on quality of life, functional outcomes, and cost-effectiveness in a low-resource setting. The study is currently awaiting Tanzanian ethical approval, and we anticipate beginning patient enrollment and data collection in the near future.

Tanzania - Low-cost Intramedullary K-wires for Pediatric Femur Fractures

Femoral shaft fractures in children are commonly treated with surgery using flexible nails to avoid damage to growth plates. However, titanium flexible nails that are commonly used in high-income countries are cost-prohibitive for many families in low-income countries where governments do not subsidize implant costs. Substituting titanium flexible nails with stainless steel "Kirschner wires" could reduce the cost of these implants nearly 40-fold, thereby markedly increasing access to surgery for children globally. IGOT is supporting a randomized controlled trial in Tanzania comparing these low-cost implants to the high-cost titanium nails for children with femoral shaft fractures.

Tanzania - A Pilot Masked, Randomized Controlled Trial Evaluating Locally-applied Gentamicin versus Saline in Open Tibia Fractures (pGO-Tibia)

Tibial shaft fractures are the most common long-bone fracture. Deep infection remains a common, devastating complication of open injuries leading to lifelong impairment that disproportionately affects low- and middle-income countries (LMICs). Thorough surgical debridement, followed by fracture stabilization using internal or external fixation, is the mainstay of treatment. One proposed adjunctive measure is prophylactic local antibiotic delivery, which can achieve much higher antibiotic concentrations at the surgical site than can be achieved safely with systemic administration. There is a growing body of literature evaluating local antibiotic administration in both aqueous and powder form at the time of wound closure. While demonstrating potentially promising results, these studies are heterogeneous, of poor general methodologic quality, and none originate from LMICs where this technique would have the greatest potential benefits. Local gentamicin is particularly promising given the broad spectrum of activity against common pathogens in osteomyelitis (staphylococcus, gram-negative rods), wide availability, and low cost (<1\$ per 80mg vial). IGOT propose a prospective, blinded, randomized controlled trial enrolling adult open tibial shaft fractures at the Muhimbili Orthopaedic Institute (MOI) in Dar es Salaam. Tanzania. At the time of initial debridement, participants will be randomly assigned to receive aqueous gentamicin after closure or placebo saline injection. The primary outcome will be deep surgical site infection at 1 year. Secondary outcomes include health-related guality-of-life (HRQOL), modified Radiographic Union Scale for Tibial Fractures (mRUST), FIX-IT score for clinical healing, and cost of treatment using time-driven activity-based costing (TDABC) and survey methods.

Tanzania - Total Joint Replacement Registry

Our partners at Muhimbili Orthopaedic Institute in Tanzania created an excel sheet registry ten years ago with 900+ patients. This project will use this excel sheet to create and implement a formal registry prospectively using REDCap for total joint replacement procedures.

Africa- Open tibial shaft fracture treatment practices in Africa

Open tibial shaft fractures are the most common open long bone fracture and a significant source of morbidity and mortality in lowand middle-income countries (LMICs). Appropriate management of open tibia fractures includes timely antibiotic administration, surgical debridement, and definitive stabilization, which have been shown to reduce long-term morbidity and function. Due to the increase in road traffic injury, these injuries pose a rising burden in LMICs; however, the majority of research and guidelines regarding the treatment of open tibial shaft fractures comes from high-income countries (HICs). Practice patterns in HICs may differ from LMICs due to injury patterns, surgeon training, resource availability, and treatment setting. Characterizing open tibial shaft fracture treatment patterns in Africa will allow for more appropriate resource allocation, development of treatment guidelines, and improved patient care. This study will identify current treatment practices of open tibial fractures in Africa, identify barriers to care of open tibial fractures in Africa and understand barriers to implementing evidence-based care.

International- SIGN Database Study

The significance of timely debridement in preventing fracturerelated infection is still poorly understood but may have a substantial impact on minimizing patient morbidity and optimizing perioperative care. This retrospective review of the SIGN Online Surgical Database aims to determine whether time to operative debridement affects the development of fracture-related infection after treatment of open long bone fractures with intramedullary nail fixation. Over 10,000 unique fractures were included, with a wide geographic distribution of cases. The study is currently conducting preliminary data analysis, and we anticipate completing final analysis in the near future.

International- COACT: Motivations and Impact of Resident Rotations Qualitative Follow-Up

There is growing interest among orthopaedic residency programs in North America to pursue clinical rotations in resource-limited settings. However, little is known regarding the motivations of orthopaedic residents in North America for participating in such international rotations and the impact of these elective rotations on the host community. Potential concordance in motivations for participating in international clinical rotations between North American residents and their hosts has not been explored in the orthopaedic context. Furthermore, there are no best practice guidelines for establishing an effective and mutually beneficial orthopaedic training partnership between academic institutions in North America and their overseas partners in lower-middleincome countries (LMICs). This qualitative study aims to explore the themes found in the initial survey, "Motivations and impact of international rotations for orthopaedic residents: Is there concordance in perceptions amongst stakeholders at academic centers in North America and their partners in Low and Middleincome countries?".

Ghana – Predictors of Quality of Life and Economic Impact after Open Tibia Fractures

This study is led by our resident PGY4, Heather Roberts, under the mentorship from Drs. Saam Morshed and Dave Shearer.

This is a prospective study of open tibia fracture management in Kumasi, Ghana. The purpose of this study is to examine the influence of socioeconomic status on type of treatment for open tibia fractures, and in turn the influence of type of treatment on clinical and economic impact after open tibia fractures. The results of this study will impact policies that support investment in surgical care and inform evidence-based protocols in low-resourced settings where the burden of orthopedic trauma is highest.

Latin America - Quality of Life and Outcomes after Open Tibia Fractures

There is a limited understanding of the current state of treatment and resultant clinical outcomes for open tibial shaft fractures in Latin America. Therefore, the study aims to address the current state of treatment for open tibial shaft fractures across Latin



Institute for Global Orthopaedics & Traumatology (IGOT) Global Research Initiative team with IGOT's Tanzania research partner, Dr. Billy Haonga.)

America, including injury to hospital presentation, antibiotic prohphylaxis, debridement, and definitive bony stabilization. This prospective multicenter observational study is enrolling patients with open tibial shaft fractures at multiple time points over a period of a year. The study is taking place across multiple centers in Latin America.

Latin America - Research Priorities in Latin America Delphi Study

The burden of musculoskeletal trauma internationally, and particularly in low- and middle-income countries, is substantial. Research capacity aimed to address these deficiencies is severely lacking compared to high-resource settings such as the United States, Canada, and Europe. LMIC providers therefore often rely on reports largely from high-income countries (HICs), extrapolating them to their own populations. This lack of population-specific research limits countries' abilities to improve care for patients with musculoskeletal injuries, advocate for necessary clinical resources, and inform research and policy priorities. This study will use a modified Delphi process to determine the clinical research priorities of orthopaedic surgeons in Latin America in order to set the agenda for future studies.

Latin America - Soft-Tissue Management and Wound Vacuum Survey

Open fractures, particularly Gustilo-Anderson Classification Type IIIB open tibial shaft fractures, characterized by massive softtissue defects, are the most common open long bone fractures, and are a frequent cause of morbidity and mortality in low- and middle-income countries (LMICs). Successful management of these injuries often requires acute management decisions that can have a substantial impact on a patient's short- and long-term recovery prognosis. Management of soft-tissue wound coverage varies in LMICs in Latin America based on numerous factors including: fracture type, surgeon expertise, resource limitations, and treatment setting. This study is assessing the treatment of soft-tissue coverage of open fracture wounds in Latin American countries and examining the availability of resources specific to their hospital and country. The survey will be administered to members of the organization, Asociación de Cirujanos Traumatólogos de las Americas (ACTUAR), and to Latin American orthopaedic surgeons who are members of national orthopaedic societies.

Latin American Research Consortium- Asociación de Cirujanos Traumatológos de las Americas (ACTUAR)



ACTUAR held its 3rd Annual Research Symposium on November 1-2 in Hermosillo, Mexico at the Federación Mexicana de Colegios de Ortopedia y Traumtologia conference (FEMECOT) National Congress. ACTUAR is the product of a group of Latin American orthopaedic surgeons interested in a collaborative initiative focused on building research capacity across institutions. Theodore Miclau, MD Professor and Vice Chair, Director of Orthopaedic Trauma at UCSF represented ACTUAR, IGOT, and OTI.

Research Publications

IGOT Global Research Initiative team has been active in publishing several intriguing articles, check out few of the recent publications!

1. Donnelley CA, von Kaeppler EP, Roberts HJ, Haonga B, Shearer DW, Morshed S. Monoplanar external fixation of comminuted open tibial shaft fractures predicts loss of alignment by one year compared to a statically locked intramedullary SIGN nail. Injury. 2020 Oct 17:S0020-1383(20)30898-6. doi: 10.1016/j. injury.2020.10.078.

2. Albright PD, MacKechnie MC, Roberts HJ, Shearer DW, Padilla L, Segovia J, Quintero JE, Amadei R, Baldy dos Reis F, Miclau T, and ACTUAR Open Tibia Study Group. Open Tibial Shaft Fractures: Treatment Patterns in Latin America. J Bone Joint Surg Am. Oct. 2020. doi:10.2106/JBJS.20.00292

3. Donnelley, CA, Won, N, Roberts, HJ, von Kaeppler, EP,
Albright, PD, Woolley, PM, Haonga, B, Shearer, DW, Sabharwal,
S. Resident Rotations in Low- and Middle-Income Countries.
JBJS Open Access. 2020, 5(3). doi: 10.2106/JBJS.OA.20.00029

4. Chokotho L, Wu HH, Shearer D, Lau BC, Mkandawire N, Gjertsen JE, Hallan G, Young S. Outcome at 1 year in patients with femoral shaft fractures treated with intramedullary nailing or skeletal traction in a low-income country: a prospective observational study of 187 patients in Malawi. Acta Orthopaedica. 2020 Jul 22:1-8.

5. Cordero DM, Miclau T, Paul AV, Morshed S, Miclau T, Martin C, Shearer DW. The global burden of musculoskeletal injury in low and lower-middle income countries. OTA International. 2020 June, 3(2): e062 doi: 10.1097/OI9.0000000000000062

6. Von Kaeppler E, Donnelley C, Roberts HJ, O'Hara NN, Won N, Shearer DW, Morshed S. Impact of North American Institutions on Orthopedic Research in Low-and Middle-Income Countries. Orthop Clin N Am. 2020; 51:177–188. Doi: 10.1016.

7. Haonga BT, Liu M, Albright P, Challa ST, Ali SH, Lazar AA, Eliezer EN, Shearer DW, Morshed S. Intramedullary Nailing Versus External Fixation in the Treatment of Open Tibial Fractures in Tanzania: Results of a Randomized Clinical Trial. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 Feb 5. doi: 10.2106/JBJS.19.00563. [Epub ahead of print] PubMed PMID: 32028315.

Grants and Fellowships

The 2020-2021 IGOT Morgan and Madison McClellan International Research Fellow, Mayur Urva, is involved with multiple research projects with IGOT. This year we have a research resident from UCLA through the GloCal Fellowship, Abigail Cortez. Her main research projects with IGOT include Intramedullary Nailing Versus External Fixation for Open Tibia Fractures Randomized Controlled Trial, Cost-effectiveness of Prosthetics for Below Knee Amputees, and Cost-effectiveness of Prosthetics for Above Knee Amputees.

Dr. Dave Shearer was awarded the OREF Career Development Grant of \$225k for IGOT's Masked, Randomized Controlled Trial Evaluating Locally-applied Gentamicin versus Saline in Open Tibia Fractures (GO-Tibia) study.

The Orthopaedic Trauma Institute Clinical Research Center

Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFGH)

The Clinical Research Center (CRC), led by **Saam Morshed, MD, MPH, PhD**, is dedicated to designing and implementing clinical studies to answer the most important questions in the care of patients with musculoskeletal injuries. In collaboration with industry and other major trauma medical centers, the CRC develops innovative clinical trials to evaluate the latest technologies and innovative treatment approaches in orthopaedic trauma. In particular, they are interested in the treatment and management of lower extremity fractures, surgical site infections, and lower limb amputations.

Dedicated to conducting safe and impactful research, our professionally trained clinical research team includes specialists in clinical research methodology, grant administration, data management, and quality control. The CRC also provides training in clinical research for post-doctoral fellows, graduate students, orthopaedic residents, medical, and undergraduate students.

For more information about our research Internship opportunities, please contact the clinical research manager Tigist Belaye, MPA, CCRP (tigist.belaye@ucsf.edu).

A list of our current projects include:

Transtibial Amputation Outcomes Study (TAOS): Comparing Transtibial Amputation with and without a Tibia-fibula Synostosis (Ertl) Procedure

Site Co-Investigators: Theodore Miclau, MD, and Saam Morshed MD, MPH, PhD.

A multi-center randomized clinical trial comparing the functional outcomes of patients undergoing tibia-fibula synostosis (Ertl procedure) versus a standard posterior flap procedure (Burgess procedure). The primary outcome is to assess the fit and alignment of the prosthesis with the level of comfort and satisfaction of each treatment. We will also examine the rate of rehospitalizations for complications, resource utilization, and overall treatment cost.

Sponsor: Department of Defense Congressionally Directed Medical Research Program (DoD CDMRP).

Prosthetic Fit Assessment in Transtibial Amputees Secondary to Trauma (ProFit)

Principal Investigator: Saam Morshed, MD, MPH, PhD.

The PROFIT trial's objectives are to investigate prosthesis fit, alignment, and conditions of the residual limb in patients currently enrolled in the Transtibial Amputation Outcome Study (TAOS). The goal of this study is to validate and refine the prosthetic assessment tool (ProFit) that was developed by an expert panel of certified prosthetist orthotists (CPOs), orthopaedic trauma investigators, a measurement scientist and a biomedical engineer from the BADER consortium.

Sponsor: Department of the Army – U.S. Army Medical Research Acquisition Activity (USAMRAA)

A Prospective Randomized Trial to Assess PO versus IV Antibiotics for the Treatment of Post-op Wound Infection after Extremity Fractures (POvIV)

Site Co-Investigators: Theodore Miclau, MD, and Saam Morshed MD, MPH, PhD.

A multi-center clinical trial comparing the efficacy of oral antibiotics (PO) versus intravenous (IV) antibiotics in patients that develop a deep post-operative infection after fracture fixation. The differences in rates of re-hospitalization, infection, non-union, and amputation will be assessed. This will also determine the rates of compliance and medical costs associated with each treatment.

Sponsor: Department of Defense Peer Reviewed Orthopaedic Research Program (DoD PRORP)

A Pragmatic Randomized Trial Evaluating Preoperative Aqueous Antiseptic Skin Solutions in Open Fractures (A-PREP)

Site Co-Investigators: Saam Morshed MD, MPH, PhD, and Theodore Miclau, MD.

A-PREP is a multi-center clinical trial comparing the effectiveness of aqueous pre-operative antiseptic skin preparation with 10% povidone-iodine versus 4% chlorhexidine gluconate (CHG) for management of open fractures. Effectiveness will be evaluated by the occurrence of surgical site infection and unplanned fracturerelated reoperations.

Funders: US Department of Defense (DoD), Physician Services Incorporated, and McMaster University Surgical Associates

PREPARE: A Pragmatic Randomized Trial Evaluating Pre-operative Alcohol Skin Solutions in FRactured Extremities

Site Co-Investigators: Meir Marmor, MD, and Saam Morshed MD, MPH, PhD.

The overarching objective of this multicenter trial is to compare the effectiveness of iodine povacrylex (0.7% free iodine) in 74% isopropyl alcohol versus 2% chlorhexidine gluconate (CHG) in 70% isopropyl alcohol for the management of extremity fractures that require surgical treatment. The primary outcome for comparison is surgical site infection (SSI), and the secondary outcome is unplanned fracture-related reoperation.

This study is funded by the Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Institute (PCORI).

The Pediatric Orthopaedic Surgery team, back row (left to right), Sanjeev Sabharwal, MD, MPH, Coleen S Sabatini, MD, MPH, Mohammad Diab, MD, and Jason E Jagodzinski, MD; front row: Nirav K Pandya, MD, Kristin S Livingston, MD, and Ravinder K Brar, MD, MPH. Not pictured: Eliana Delgado, MD, and Rhonda Watkins, MD, MPH and Ishaan Swarup, MD.



Pediatric Orthopaedic Surgery, Clinical Research

UCSF Benioff Children's Hospital, Oakland and UCSF Benioff Children's Hospital, San Francisco

The Pediatric Orthopaedic Surgery group strives to provide comprehensive care for all musculoskeletal conditions in children and young adults, to lead in medical education, and to advance the field through fundamental and enduring research.

Project Highlights

• CORTICES – Children's Orthopaedic Trauma and Infection Consortium for Evidence-Based Studies. Dr. Sabatini and Dr. Swarup

• PSSG – Pediatric Spine Study Group, Multicenter Study, Dr. Swarup, Dr. Diab, and Dr. Metz

Multicenter Prospective Cohort Study on Current Treatments
 of Legg-Calvé-Perthes

Disease, International Perthes Study Group - Dr. Swarup.

• Emotions and Pain with Surgery on Broken Bones – Dr. Gornitzky and Dr. Swarup

• Access to Healthcare for Freelance Professional Dancers during COVID-19 – Dr. de Borja

• Changes in Pediatric Orthopedic Referrals during COVID-19 Pandemic – Dr. de Borja and Dr. Diab

• Frontal Deformity in Scoliosis Patients - Surface Topography and Impact on Psychosocial Functioning – Dr. de Borja and Dr. Diab

• Accessing the Electronic Health Record Pædiatric Orthopædics: Preferences and Experiences of Teens versus Parents – Dr. Diab

• The Tether: Clinical Use of HDE/HUD - Dr. Diab

The clinical research carried out by the Pediatric Orthopaedics team spans a diverse range of topics, some of which include research on fractures, scoliosis, sports medicine, limb deformity, health disparities, and musculoskeletal diseases at the global health level.

- Risk factors for post-operative urinary tract infections in children after surgery: a NSQIP study Livingston and Brar
- Patient Satisfaction in Pediatric Orthopaedic Surgery Dr. Livingston, Dr. Diab
- Prevalence of COVID-19 in Pediatric Patients Undergoing Orthopaedic Surgery –Dr. Pandya and Swarup
- Complications with the Use of Bio-Absorbable Fixation in The Treatment of Osteochondral Lesions of the Knee – Pandya
- Outcomes after Meniscus Surgery in Pediatric and Adolescent Patients Pandya
- Tuberculosis osteomyelitis of long bones in children and adolescents in Uganda- Sabatini
- Does Access to an Online Educational Resource Change Practice for Orthopaedic Surgeons in LMICs? – Sabatini

• Impact of Time to Operating Room on the Management and Outcomes of Pediatric Supracondylar Humerus and Femoral Shaft Fractures - Sabatini

• Assessment of Rates and Risk Factors of Repeat Subsequent Surgery in Pediatric Patients with Septic Arthritis of the Knee – Swarup

• Efficacy of Patient Education in Pediatric Orthopaedic Trauma – Swarup

Sports Medicine Clinical Trials

UCSF Sports Medicine is currently performing several prospective clinical trials focusing on arthritis, rotator cuff tears, and cartilage injuries. Current studies include:

A Phase 3 Prospective, Randomized, Partially Blinded Multi-Center Study to Measure the Safety and Efficacy of NOVOCART® 3D, Compared to Microfracture in the Treatment of Articular Cartilage Defects

Principal Investigator: C. Benjamin Ma, MD

This prospective, randomized, partially-blinded multi-center study is being conducted to compare NOVOCART® 3D relative to Microfracture for the treatment of knee cartilage defects. Subjects with articular knee defects will be randomized to receive either Microfracture or NOVOCART® 3D, an autologous chondrocyte transplantation system. Subjects will be followed for five years in total and will be evaluated for safety and efficacy (by pain and function).

Sponsor: Aesculap Biologics

A Phase 2, 52 Week, Single Center, Open-Label Study Utilizing Imaging Techniques and Evaluating the Safety and Efficacy of SM04690 Injectable Suspension for the Treatment of Moderately to Severely Symptomatic Knee Osteoarthritis

Site Co-Investigators: C. Benjamin Ma, MD and Drew Lansdown, MD

This study investigates the safety and efficacy of SM04690, an injectable small-molecule inhibitor of the Wnt pathway, in driving progenitor cells resident in the joint to become chondrocytes and potentially enhance cartilage formation. Following a single injection, patients with moderate to severe knee osteoarthritis are evaluated over 52 weeks using advanced MRI techniques to measure changes in cartilage volume, thickness, and quality.

Sponsor: Samumed LLC.

Operative vs. Non-Operative Treatment for Atraumatic Rotator Cuff Tears: A Multicenter Randomized Controlled Pragmatic Trial

Site Co-Investigators: C. Benjamin Ma, MD, Brian Feeley, MD, Christina Allen, MD, Alan Zhang, MD, Drew Lansdown, MD, Anthony Luke, MD, and Carlin Senter, MD

The Arthroscopic Rotator Cuff (ARC) Trial is a large, multicenter, randomized clinical trial comparing operative and non-operative treatment for rotator cuff tears that develop over time. This study aims to find out which treatment works better and for whom, in order to help patients in the future select the best treatment for them.

Funding: Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Institute (PCORI)

Image is from the Sports Medicine Clinical Trials in Knee and Shoulder Surgery group.



Prospective, Randomized, Double-Blind, Placebo Controlled Study to Evaluate the Safety and Efficacy of Pulsed Electromagnetic Field (PEMF) Therapy as an Adjunctive Treatment to Surgical Repair of Full Thickness Rotator Cuff Tears

Site Investigator: Brian Feeley, MD

Using a non-invasive therapeutic device, this study aims to evaluate the safety and efficacy of applying pulsed electromagnetic fields (PEMF) to rotator cuff repairs. It hopes to demonstrate that exposure to PEMF therapy following surgical repair will reduce tendon re-tear rates, improve clinical outcomes and range of motion, and decrease fatty infiltration.

Sponsor: Orthofix Medical Inc.

Evaluation of Muscle Stem Cells in Rotator Cuff and Other Muscle Injury Models

Principal Investigator: Brian Feeley, MD and Xuhui Liu, MD

Our previous data has highlighted the presence of fibroadipocyte precursor (FAP) cells within muscle in mice, their ability to proliferate after injury, and their capability to regulate muscle quality with pharmacologic modulation. However, their presence and capabilities in human musculoskeletal conditions are not known. This study aims to evaluate the cellular plasticity, differentiation capability, and functional role of human fibroadipocyte precursor cells (hFAPs) harvested from patients with musculoskeletal injuries.

Funding: NIH, REAC Grant

Prospective Post Market Clinical Follow-Up Study of the Zimmer® Trabecular Metal[™] Reverse Shoulder System

Site Co-Investigators: C. Benjamin Ma, MD and Brian Feeley, MD

To assess the long-term performance of the Trabecular Metal Reverse Shoulder System, patients undergoing primary or revision reverse shoulder arthroplasty are evaluated annually over a span of 10 years.

Sponsor: Zimmer Biomet Inc.

Comparison of Outcomes Utilizing Blood Flow Restriction Training as a Rehabilitative Protocol in Post-operative Meniscus Repair Patients

Principal Investigators: Sachin Allahabadi, MD, Brian Feeley, MD, and Drew Lansdown, MD

Blood flow restriction (BFR) is a training tool that has been shown to be useful in the rehabilitative setting, but its utility in patients undergoing meniscus surgery is unknown. This study therefore seeks to understand whether BFR is a useful rehabilitation tool in this population. BFR is a unique and promising strategy for surgical patients, as it is low-load and can be used in early phases of rehabilitation, including non-weight bearing periods. This would be helpful for the many post-operative patients who are faced with a period of non-weightbearing status or limited activity after surgery, which constrains current rehabilitation practices and often results in poorer patient outcomes, including muscular atrophy, increased risk of injury, and delayed return to activity/sports. This study will help clarify whether BFR can reduce these complications and improve patient strength and function in patients undergoing meniscus repair surgery. If successful, this concept could be applied across other surgeries and disciplines within orthopaedics.

Benjamin Ma, MD, treating a patient in the Sports Medicine clinic.

Sports Medicine Patient-Centered Clinical Outcomes Research

To better provide patient-centered treatments, active collection of patient-reported outcomes measurements is paramount. To fulfill this mission, the UCSF Orthopaedic Sports Medicine Group currently participates in multiple prospective clinical outcome registries.

UCSF is an active member of the Multicenter ACL Revision Study (MARS) group. This group is responsible for collecting outcomes of revision ACL reconstruction with over 30 other institutions across the United States. This is the largest cohort of revision ACL reconstruction patients (over 1,200) reported. Numerous research grants as well as awards have been given to this study. Christina Allen, MD serves as a member of the scientific advisory board for the MARS group, providing input into current and future directions for evaluating research proposals and manuscripts. The MARS study began its 10 year follow-up program phase, and UCSF will be one of the sites for performing in-person follow-up with patients.

UCSF is also an active member of the Multicenter Orthopaedic Outcomes Network (MOON) shoulder group. Along with 12 other institutions across the United States, they actively follow patients undergoing surgery for shoulder instability and rotator cuff repairs. They have collected information on over 1400 patients with shoulder instability, which is the largest cohort reported.

Locally, C. Benjamin Ma, MD, has enrolled over 1,400 patients in a prospective shoulder arthroplasty database that has successfully published over 20 abstracts and scientific papers. With this database, the team has been able to establish important factors that contribute to the outcomes of shoulder replacement, including a novel technique to decrease the rate of re-infections after shoulder replacements, and techniques to decrease pain. Other studies include the evaluation of socioeconomic status, return to sport, and other factors that influence outcomes in shoulder replacement surgery.

Additionally, Alan Zhang, MD, is actively collecting outcomes measurements on patients undergoing hip arthroscopy surgery. Over 700 patients have been enrolled in this on-going study, yielding multiple research publications.

Digital Health

UCSF Digital Orthopaedics

Digital Health is led by **Stefano Bini, MD.** Digital Health research focuses on using commercial grade sensors to predict patient outcomes following surgery.

Value based care is a powerful concept that is fundamentally changing the way health care is being delivered in the United States and elsewhere. Arthroplasty as a specialty is front and center in this movement. The advent of vast quantities of patient generated health data (PGHD) created by commercial grade wearable sensors has raised the question as to whether these devices may provide objective data through which to quantify and compare clinical outcomes in surgical patients. However, many questions remain to be answered relative to these sensor generated data sets such as what data points are predictive of what outcomes, how many data points are needed for accuracy, and over what time frame data needs to be collected. They use PROMs as ground truth for outcomes as these measures are currently considered the gold standard surrogate for clinical quality.

With funding through CDHI Stefano Bini, MD coupled the power of AI with the data collection capabilities of wearable sensors to test the hypothesis that machine learning can be used to predict clinical outcomes following TKA based on PGHD in the early postoperative period. 22 patients undergoing total knee replacement were prospectively enrolled and tracked for 6 weeks after surgery and generated over three million data points. With the aid of AI, he and a team of residents including Jeff Barry MD, now faculty, Ilya Bendich MD, Kevin Hwang MD, Joseph Patterson MD, and Jeffrey Mulvihill MD, showed that, amongst other things, 42 day PROMs can be predicted with reasonable accuracy using data collected as early as 11 days following surgery. The first paper, "Changes in Prospectively Collected Longitudinal Patient-generated Health Data are Associated with Short-term Patient-reported Outcomes after Total Joint Arthroplasty: a Pilot Study," accepted for publication (Arthroplasty Today, 2019 Mar; 5(1):61-63. PMID: 31020024) from this research was authored by Ilya Bendich, MD and several other papers followed (PMID: 31439405, PMID: 31445866 and PMID: 32235178).

Having concluded this longitudinal study, Stefano Bini, MD was awarded a second grant from CDHI to use similar technology to test post-operative patients at fixed time points to identify a data set that can accurately measure a patient's recovery at a specific moment in time rather than using longitudinally collected data. Novel to this project was the use of commercially available running shoes with embedded sensors. The research is being conducted at the UCSF Human Performance center and shows the potential for interaction between different labs within the department.

This study in turn lead to a research project in partnership with Google. This project, funded through a gift from Google intended to support Dr. Bini's research, intends to train machine learning algorithms to process continues data collected through smart sensors to directly output values optimized to reproduce as closely as possible values output by traditional gait lab tests. This novel approach bypasses the need to correlate surrogate endpoints created by sensors (such as step counts) to the gait lab data. Furthermore, as part of the agreement with Google, Dr. Bini and his team at UCSF HPC lead by Anthony Luke, MD, will make all data collected through this and future projects public. The roadmap with Google will include an extended multicenter data collection project to create the first crowd sourced public access sensor data base to be used for the study of knee mechanics through ML algorithms. Such promising collaborations show the potential for collaboration with industry and the resources available in our department.

Multicenter Trials on Hip and Knee Surgery

Led by surgeons Dr. Thomas Vail, MD; Erik Hansen, MD; and Stefano Bini, MD, UCSF's Arthroplasty Group participates in, and designs research studies, that are on the cutting edge of digital health and technology. Projects include longitudinal studies utilizing the post-surgical follow-up to gauge the effectiveness of advancing techniques and knowledge of arthroplasty surgeries, such as the prevention and treatment of periprosthetic joint infections (PJIs)

Project Highlights

Perioperative Antibiotic Prophylaxis in Patients Undergoing Elective Total Knee Arthroplasty: A prospective, randomized, open-label controlled multi-center trial.

Site Co-Investigators: Erik Hansen, MD; Stefano Bini, MD; Jeff Barry, MD; Derek Ward, MD.

Sponsored by Duke University

Despite advances in surgical care and implant technology, PJRIs and surgical site infections (SSIs) after total knee arthroplasty (TKA) present long-term catastrophic complications. Administration of prophylactic antibiotics before surgery is a wellestablished strategy to prevent PJIs and SSIs; yet, discussions linger regarding the choice of antibiotic, duration of prophylaxis, optimal dosage and timing, and route of administration. Level I data on antibiotic use for elective TKAs are limited, thus determining an effective protocol can deter PJIs and SSIs. And, so, this open-label trial is designed to identify the comparative effectiveness of various perioperative strategies for antibiotic delivery as prophylaxis against PJI and SSIs in elective TKAs.

One Stage versus Tow Stage or Periprosthetic Hip and Knee Infection

Site Co-Investigators: Thomas Vail, MD; Erik Hansen, MD; Stefano Bini, MD; Jeff Barry, MD; Derek Ward, MD.

Sponsored by OrthoCarolina Research Institute

This clinical trial intends to investigate the outcomes of onestage and two-stage exchange arthroplasty for the management of patients with chronic PJIs. We hypothesize that one-stage exchange arthroplasty, if performed on the appropriate patient population, carries similar success rate for the treatment of chronic PJI as two-stage exchange arthroplasty and avoids many of the problems associated with two-stage exchange arthroplasty. Participants are randomized into either surgical approach and monitored thru the duration of their recovery.

How to Improve the Results of Irrigation and Debridement for PJI through the use of Intraosseous Antiboitics

Site Co-Investigators: Erik Hansen, MD; Jeff Barry, MD; Derek Ward, MD.

Sponsored by OrthoCarolina Research Institute

The investigators are looking to improve upon irrigation and debridement (I&D) procedures for PJIs, and limit the number of times one undergoes the procedure. One method involves utilizing intraosseous regional administration of antibiotics at the time of I&D as a deterrent for future PJI. Participants are closely followed-up to monitor the effectiveness of the approach.

Biodistribution of 11C D-methionine Positron Emission Tomography In Normal Subjects and Those with Suspected Infection

Site Co-Investigators: Erik Hansen, MD; Stefano Bini, MD; Jeff Barry, MD; Derek Ward, MD.

In collaboration with the UCSF Department of Radiology and Biomedical Imaging

Diagnosis of PJI utilizing radiographic imaging techniques comes with unique challenges, particularly with the focus on identifying nonspecific structural abnormalities that often occur late in the disease process and/or can be explained by other physiological processes. The goal of this project is to assess the ability of a positron-emitting agent in directly detecting bacterial infection in human subjects, which localize to bacteria but not mammalian cells. Such technique can further the identification process of PJI that can assist in proper control of invading organisms.



Youth Sports Injury Assessment and Prevention Center

The UCSF Sports Medicine Center for Young Athletes is a comprehensive, integrated clinical and research program which brings together orthopedic surgeons, physical therapists, athletic trainers, primary care physicians, and kinesiologists to provide cutting edge care for athletes under the age of 18.

Led by Nirav Pandya, MD, and Anthony Luke, MD, MPH, the center has successfully published and presented nearly 30 abstracts and scientific papers. They are also one of the few centers in the country participating in a prospective multicenter adolescent clavicle fracture registry as well as an adolescent shoulder instability registry.

Anthony Luke, MD, MPH treats a patient in the Sports Medicine clinic.



Motion Analysis Technology

The group is also using motion analysis technology to study normal and abnormal motion patterns with a mobile depth camera. This innovative work is designed to assess for lower extremity injury risk, return to play after knee injuries, and prevention of ACL tears. The study is a collaborative effort that is funded by the National Institute of Health (NIH).

Additionally, there has been a tremendous rise in athletic injuries in the skeletally immature population. This can be tied to the rise of sport specialization in this age group. The risks of sport specialization have only recently become known. Furthermore, with this rise in sports specialization, an increasing number of adult-type injuries are seen in younger patients. Yet, there are factors which differentiate the treatment of these injuries from their adult counterparts. Nirav Pandya, MD and Brian Feeley, MD have worked together, combining the expertise of the adult and pediatric sports medicine services, to publish multiple studies in this topic area.

Research topics covered include: 1) studies on patella instability; 2) shoulder dislocations; anterior cruciate ligament reconstructive techniques; and 3) revision surgery in the immature population.

Orthopaedic Clinical Research

UCSF Hip Preservation Center

As Director of the UCSF Hip Preservation center, Alan Zhang, MD leads clinical and translation research on hip injuries in active individuals.

Dr. Alan Zhang has prospectively collected clinical outcomes measurements on over 600 patients who have undergone hip arthroscopy at UCSF and has published numerous articles to improve patient-centered care in this arena. In collaboration with Sharmila Majumdar, PhD, Richard Souza, PhD, PT, and Thomas Link, MD, PhD, the hip preservation center is also conducting ongoing research on whether early hip arthroscopy treatment for labral tears and femoroacetabular impingement can decrease the risk of future arthritis in the hip.



A large tear of the hip Labrum (left) is repaired with Darthroscopic surgery (right), Hip Preservation Center.

Clinical assessment of three-dimensional spine motion, Motion Analysis

The Motion Analysis Research Clinic is directed by Shane Burch, MD.

Motion Analysis studies the three-dimensional motion of the spine in adults with spinal deformity prior and after surgery. The main goal of this project is to quantify angular change on segments of the spine including C7-T12, T12-S1, C7-S1, and C7 Pelvis along with other kinematic and kinetic parameters. Data obtained through our motion analysis system Cortex is post-processed and analyzed in three different ways: individually (per subject), within groups (same level fusion), and between groups (groups with different LF and cohort group). Ultimately, this study aims to understand how changes in spinopelvic parameters correlate to patient Health-Related Quality of Life Scores (HRQL).



Full body length flexion and extension trial including reaction Force. Image by Luana Leal, 2020

Translational Quantitative Imaging Center

Advanced Translational Imaging Research Core

The Sports Medicine group at UCSF utilizes advanced biomedical imaging techniques to study different conditions of the knee, shoulder and hip. Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) scans produce high-resolution three-dimensional images. Specialized MRI sequences can also provide detailed information about the biochemical composition of tissue, tissue architecture, or the function of joints. The Sports Medicine group closely collaborates with the UCSF Department of Radiology and the MQIR (Musculoskeletal Quantitative Imaging Research) group to leverage these advanced technologies to better evaluate patients and the effects of non-surgical and surgical treatment.

Knee Imaging

Knee ligament injuries and cartilage injuries are common conditions, especially in active people. Following anterior cruciate ligament (ACL) tears, patients are at an increased risk of developing knee arthritis. We can track the composition of cartilage using two advanced MRI sequences: T1rho and T2 mapping. The T1rho mapping sequence can measure the content of proteoglycans, which are an important component of healthy cartilage. The T2 mapping sequence gives information on the structure of collagen in cartilage. Both sequences can detect the breakdown of cartilage early in the degenerative process. These sequences have been used to monitor improvement after cartilage repair surgery and evaluate for early cartilage breakdown in patients with ACL tears.

Additionally, this group has also used kinematic MRI to evaluate the alignment and motion of the knee after injury to the ACL and following ACL reconstruction surgery. They obtain MRI scans, with a weight applied to the foot, to simulate standing in the scanner. They use images with the knee straight and then also bent. From this, they can then reconstruct three-dimensional models of the knee and better understand the complex function of the knee through motion. As a result, by combining these imaging technologies, they have linked abnormal knee motion to early cartilage breakdown.

Shoulder Imaging

This research has applied advanced imaging techniques to study patients with rotator cuff injuries. The muscles of the rotator cuff undergo degenerative changes following rotator cuff tears, with the muscle both shrinking in size (atrophy) and being replaced by fat (fatty infiltration). Both degenerative changes are associated with worse outcomes after surgical treatment. Advanced MRI sequence, IDEAL imaging, are used to measure the fat content in the shoulder muscles. The images show that increasing fat content can be observed in larger rotator cuff tears. Additionally, researchers have also studied how the fat content changes after surgical repair of a rotator cuff tear and they have demonstrated that lower fat content prior to surgical repair is associated with a higher chance of successful tendon repair.

Hip Imaging

In Hip Imaging, researchers have applied the T1rho and T2 mapping sequences to track the cartilage health of the hip. In femoroacetabular impingement (FAI), bony mismatch between the femoral head (ball) and the acetabulum (socket) are associated with labral tears and cartilage breakdown. Ultimately, this has shown that T1rho and T2 mapping can identify hip cartilage injuries better than traditional MRI.

Orthopaedic Oncology/Osseointegration

UCSF Mission Bay

UCSF Orthopaedic Oncology is dedicated to exemplary patient care, education, and research in the area of pediatric and adult bone and soft tissue tumors and tumor-like conditions.

Headed by Rosanna L. Wustrack, MD as Section Chief, our musculoskeletal oncologists are involved in a wide array of basic, translational, and clinical projects at UCSF, as well as regionally, nationally, and internationally. Dr. Wustrack's research, supported through the generosity of Dr. and Mrs. James O. Johnston, focuses on immunotherapy for sarcomas, functional outcomes in cancer patients, osseointegration, and optimizing treatment for metastatic disease. She is also interested in global health and osteoporosis in cancer survivors.

Richard J. O'Donnell, MD works in research administration and program development as Director of the iCORES (UCSF international Center for Osseointegration Research, Education and Surgery) and METRICS (UCSF Musculoskeletal Research Consortium) efforts. ECORES International Center for OsseoIntegration Research, Education and Surgery

Melissa N. Zimel, MD has joined the group's studies directed towards normalizing function in patients with limb preservation and limb loss. The trio has spearheaded the development of the Sarcoma Program at UCSF, and of an Orthopaedic Oncology Research Collaborative in the Western States, involving colleagues at UCLA, UC Davis, Stanford, Kaiser Permanente, the University of Oregon, and the University of Utah. Drs. Wustrack and Zimel serve on the National Comprehensive Cancer Network's (NCCN) Bone Cancer and Soft Tissue Sarcoma Panels, respectively. International efforts include participation in the randomized prospective Prophylactic Antibiotic Regimens in Tumor Surgery (PARITY) trial, as well as the COVIDSurg Collaborative. Dr. Zimel is the Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Champion for the Department.

Melissa Zimel, MD, at left, Richard O'Donnell, MD and Rosanna Wustrack, MD lead the iCORES research.



MSK Innovation Centers

UCSF Musculoskeletal Innovation Ecosytem



The Core Center for Patient-centric Mechanistic Phenotyping Center Level Activities

Core Center for Musculoskeletal Biology & Medicine (CCMBM)

The NIH-supported P30 Core Center for Musculoskeletal Biology & Medicine (CCMBM) is one of five such centers nationally. The goal of CCMBM is to stimulate and support UCSF transdisciplinary collaborations to accelerate translational research in the musculoskeletal field through grants, core services, mentorship, and networking.

The CCMBM began its seventh year of funding under the new direction of Dr. Tamara Alliston, and has cultivated a diverse membership of over 150 faculty and trainees that span across three Schools and 23 Departments at UCSF. The Center provides research services through its three cores: imaging; biology and biomechanics; and epidemiology, biostatics and study design. Over the last seven years, the CCMBM has funded 14 pilot/

feasibility grants, 13 tools and technology grants, and 24 awards supporting junior and early stage investigators. The CCMBM provided over \$511K in funding and has leveraged an additional \$1.1M in grant support for CCMBM members.

The UCSF community can participate in the Center through its various events including retreats, scientific symposia, seminars, technical workshops, and networking events that are offered throughout the year.

To learn more, visit ccmbm.ucsf.edu.



Core-Center for Disruptive Musculoskeletal Innovations (CDMI)

The Center for Disruptive Musculoskeletal Innovations (CDMI) is a National Science Foundation (NSF) Phase II Industry/University Cooperative Research Center (IUCRC). Representatives from a broad array of companies (medical devices, biomaterials, injury prevention, product manufacturing) form the CDMI Industry Advisory Board, and contribute to supporting 'industry-inspired' fundamental research and student training. Projects span a range of areas that include healthcare economics, biomedical science, biomechanics, biomaterials, injury prevention, and clinical outcomes, all while leveraging the increasing need for digital health resources.

Faculty from UCSF, University of Toledo, The Ohio State University, and Northeastern University, along with industry partners collaborate to target novel technologies that will decrease healthcare costs and improve the lives of patients with musculoskeletal conditions. Partnerships with the FDA have initiated several programs in regulatory science related to medical implants and digital sensor technologies. Over its first five years, CDMI received about \$1.8 million in industry membership support to fund 60 projects across its university sites. These projects have generated pilot data that led to \$4.5M of additional extramural funding plus \$1.1M in related 'enhancement' projects with the industry partners.

CENTER FOR DISRUPTIVE MUSCULOSKELETAL INNOVATIONS

In December 2019, under the direction of Dr. Jeffrey Lotz, the CDMI team successfully became a Phase II center and secured another five years of funding. During Phase II, the CDMI will significantly expand its impact via integration of data and expertise spanning the manufacturing, insurance, healthcare, and office work environments. The CDMI is now recruiting additional industry partners and growing its faculty research network across the four partner universities.

To learn more, visit nsfcdmi.org.

out \$1.8 million in

Center for Dental, Oral, & Craniofacial Tissue & Organ Regeneration (C-DOCTOR)

The Center for Dental, Oral, & Craniofacial Tissue & Organ Regeneration (C-DOCTOR) is one of two national NIDCRfunded Tissue Regeneration Resource Centers. C-DOCTOR is a partnership among several California institutions to recruit, nature, and translate promising tissue regeneration technologies to human clinical trials. Participating universities include: UC San Francisco, UC Berkeley, UC Davis, UC Los Angeles, USC, and Stanford University.

C-DOCTOR has built an infrastructure to integrate a comprehensive and dynamic team of clinicians, research scientists, biostatisticians, regulatory scientists, and pre-clinical/ clinical trial experts to enable the clinical adoption of innovative approaches for dental, oral, and craniofacial (DOC) tissue and organ regeneration. C-DOCTOR has awarded \$4.5M to 17

interdisciplinary translational project (ITP) teams from across the US. C-DOCTOR is currently working with its industry advisor network to advance the most commercially viable products, and preparing those select ITPs for a pre-IND meetings with the FDA.

In 2020, the C-DOCTOR successfully received \$3.9M in Stage 3 NIDCR funding. Over the next five years, this funding will be used to build on the Stage 2 successes and become a sustainable, comprehensive national resource center that enables the clinical translation of innovative regenerative technologies to replace DOC tissues or organs lost to congenital disorders, traumatic injuries, diseases, and medical procedures.

To learn more, visit c-doctor.org.

The vision for C-DOCTOR is to be a national resource for the clinical translation of innovative regenerative technologies to replace dental and craniofacial tissues and organs lost to congenital disorders, trauma, and disease.



Center Level Activities

Industry Research Center (IRC)

The Industry Research Center (IRC) goal is to facilitate efficient industry/university alliances and provide biomechanics, biochemistry, imaging, and animal testing and project management support to industry and faculty and residents in the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery.

For more information, please contact the IRC Director of Operations, Dezba Coughlin, PhD (mailto:dezba.coughlin@ ucsf.edu).



UCSF MSK Center: UCSF Musculoskeletal Center

This newly formed campus-wide center integrates musculoskeletal (MSK) research at UCSF across schools, departments, and disciplines. Fueled by an outstanding community of musculoskeletal research leaders and a uniquely collaborative culture, the UCSF MSK Center will stimulate breakthrough discovery.

Our aspirations are bold. Prevent and cure conditions that adversely affect the musculoskeletal system such as osteoporosis, osteoarthritis, and diabetes. Pioneering musculoskeletal research has the potential to end health disparities and accelerate transformative advances that impact overall human health. The UCSF MSK Center will foster collaboration among basic, translational, computational, and clinical investigators, within and beyond musculoskeletal research, in 4 research areas to tackle big challenges in musculoskeletal research:



- Bio/Engineering: The unmet promise of MSK development and regeneration
- Data Science: The need for data science solutions in MSK biology, mechanics, and medicine
- Systems Biology: The unknown but emerging role of MSK tissues in systemic health, aging, and disease
- Health Disparities: The disproportionate impact of MSK disease on women and communities of color

In partnership with research leaders throughout UCSF, the MSK Center will achieve these goals by strengthening the MSK research community with new programmatic efforts, expansion of research space, and recruitment of new faculty. Tamara Alliston, PhD is the Director of the UCSF Musculoskeletal Center.

For more information, please contact Tamara Alliston, PhD (mailto:tamara.alliston@ucsf.edu)

Center Level Activities

Core Center for Patient-centric, Mechanistic Phenotyping in Chronic Low Back Pain (REACH)

The Core Center for Patient-centric Mechanistic Phenotyping in Chronic Low Back Pain (REACH) is a \$30M NIH-funded Mechanistic Research Center that is part of the NIAMS Back Pain Consortium Research Program (BACPAC) under the HEAL Initiative to stem the national opioid health crisis. BACPAC was funded to support studies in chronic low back pain (cLBP) since it is the most common, non-cancer reason for opioid prescription in the US. In its second year, REACH is an interdisciplinary consortium of basic and clinical scientists dedicated to developing precision medicine approaches for managing cLBP that factor in the interconnection between biology, biomechanics, psychology, and socio-environmental factors.

Under the direction of the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery (Drs. Jeffrey Lotz and Conor O'Neill), the goal of REACH is to define cLBP phenotypes and pain mechanisms that can lead to effective, personalized treatments for cLBP patients, as well as developing a clinical utility roadmap for clinicians. REACH is one of three BACPAC Mechanistic Research Center that consists of six cores: 1) Administrative Core; 2) Clinical Core; 3) Analytics Core; 4) Bio-behavioral Core; 5) Pathophysiology Core; and 6) Physical Function and Biomechanics Core. These cores provide support to a single research project that is focused on developing validated and adoptable tools that enable comprehensive yet routine clinical assessment and treatment of cLBP patients. REACH also fosters scientific exchange through an Enrichment Program that enables REACH investigators, faculty, students, and the general public to interact with one another. The program includes seminars featuring local and visiting scientists, an annual retreat, and half-day symposia with a rotating topic relevant to the biopsychosocial model of cLBP. Another vital REACH component is its Ancillary Studies Program that provides seed money to leverage REACH clinical data and cores. Overall, the object of REACH is to catalyze discovery and translation of novel diagnostics and therapeutics that improve outcomes of cLBP patients.

To learn more, visit www.bacpac-reach.org or Tweet @ BacpacReach.

REACH also fosters scientific exchange through an Enrichment Program that enables REACH investigators, faculty, students, and the general public to interact with one another. The program includes seminars featuring local and visiting scientists, an annual retreat, and half-day symposia with a rotating topic relevant to the biopsychosocial model of cLBP. Another vital REACH component is its Ancillary Studies Program that provides seed money to leverage REACH clinical data and cores. Overall, the object of REACH is to catalyze discovery and translation of novel diagnostics and therapeutics that improve outcomes of cLBP patients.

To learn more, visit www.bacpac-reach.org or Tweet @ BacpacReach.



Human Performance Center

The Human Performance Center (HPC) is the key center for exercise related science serving the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery and the UCSF community. The HPC optimizes people's function and performance, emphasizing multidisciplinary solutions to advance discovery. With use of cutting-edge biomechanics and exercise physiology approaches, the HPC provides accurate and precise quantitative assessments of human movement and fitness. The state-of-the-art equipment and expert staff enable the center to handle a diverse range of research projects, from knee osteoarthritis to prostate cancer and more.

"We emphasize a team approach on solving problems. Our studies and programs involve experts across the UCSF community, crossing lines and sharing knowledge to join forces. We explore how exercise can improve people's daily function and prevent disease," explains Anthony Luke MD, MPH who is the Director of the HPC and Benioff Distinguished Professor in Sports Medicine.

The Human Performance Center is managed by Brooke Schultz, MS, who also serves as the full time Biomechanist for the Vicon Motion Capture system and AMTI force plates. Brooke has graduate level training in both physics and kinesiology as well as a decade's worth of experience as an American Council on Exercise (ACE) certified Personal Trainer. She utilizes her diverse background to blend expertise in movement science technology with patient care.

Neil Panchal, MS, ACSM-CPT, serves as the exercise physiologist of the lab. With multiple years of designing and modifying exercise prescriptions and administering graded exercise testing amongst a variety of populations, Neil conducts metabolic and physiological testing including VO2max, lactate threshold, RMR, and administering CPETs.

"Our aim is to use quantitative analysis that is accurate and precise when analyzing physical function. Our goal is to utilize novel technology and approaches to advance science; revealing new information about pathology and human function. We can consult, administer assessments and data collections, or provide comprehensive support for anyone investigating human performance." Richard Souza, PT, PhD, HPC, Director of Research.

2020 Projects

Hip Osteoarthritis

Dr. Souza leads a team of biomechanists, post-docs, and PhD students on an R01 funded project investigating the progression of hip osteoarthritis; tracking participants over a period of three years. In conjunction with radiology's evaluation of joint tissue health, the study uses the Vicon system, AMTI force plates, and BTE Primus dynamometer to analyze the participants while moving through standard activities of daily living such as walking, stair ascent and decent, as well as squatting.

Orthotics and Prosthetics

A proud partnership exists between the Orthotics and Prosthetics division of Orthopaedics and the HPC. Four studies are in an active data collection phase. Our orthopaedic team is building an expansive database for normal, able-bodied gait under both barefoot and shoe conditions. The control data set will be used in all forseeable research projects for O&P including the current biomechanical evaluation of transtibial amputee gait. The PROPEL program launched by Matthew Garibaldi, MS CPO in 2020 is a multidisciplinary approach to a 12-week wellness intervention for patients with lower limb loss. Evaluation of patient function, gait, strength, quality of life, and pain are assessed pre and post training program. The HPC continues to assisted Dr. Richard O'Donnell's Osseointegration program by evaluating metabolic cost and gait kinematics & kinetics of prosthetic patients pre- and post-implant surgery.

Diabetic Neuropathy

Victor Cheuy, PhD, Assistant Professor in the Department of Physical Therapy and Rehabilitation Sciences uses the HPC to investigate lower extremity biomechanics of people with diabetic neuropathy and to promote clinical research of skeletal muscle through novel technology. Dr. Cheuy's current RAP award assesses intersegmental foot kinematics and dynamic plantar pressure kinetics to explore their relationships with intrinsic foot muscle quality (MRI) and metatarsal microarchitecture (HR-pQCT). In addition, Dr. Cheuy was funded a RAP shared technology award (co-PI: Dr. Souza) which brings a new electromechanical dynamometer to the HPC. This device broadens the scope of our research potential by providing a more complete picture of skeletal muscle function, enabling strength measures, muscle power and activity, all integrated and available in one device.

Parkinson's Syndrome

The Michael J. Fox Foundation funded Neurology's Dr. Doris Wang, MD PhD's investigation into decoding the neural control of normal and abnormal gait patterns in Parkinson's disease using adaptive neurostimulation to understand and improve circuit mechanisms of human gait control. Patients have either the Medtronic Activa PC+S or Medtronic Summit RC+S device implanted in their brain. Subjects perform a treadmill-based gait retraining task in the HPC, during which signals from the implanted device are synced with the Vicon motion capture system, Xsens motion capture system, and wireless Delsys EMG to evaluate gait kinematics.

The HPC continues to partner with Neurology by way of the SPARX3 program led by Nijee Luthra, MD PhD. Staff members from the HPC team implement a treadmill-based exercise training program utilizing Heart Rate Zones on early stage Parkinson's patients. A VO2max fitness assessment with our Parvomedics Metabolic Cart will be measured at Baseline, six, twelve and eighteen month timepoints in addition to disease biomarkers and other functional movement tests.

Prostate Cancer

The HPC continues to work with the Department of Urology to conduct the exercise interventions of their large studies, including VO2max fitness testing and monitoring in patients with prostate cancer. June Chan, ScD Professor of Epidemiology & Urology, is working to determine the effect of aerobic training on prostate genomic signatures that predict risk of prostate cancer progression or aggressive disease in men on active surveillance for low-risk prostate cancer. We are now 4 years into a randomized controlled trial looking at how introducing regular vigorous exercise associated may reduce prostate cancer progression and cancer-specific mortality, as has been shown with other cancers. This project includes metabolomics so that we can have more in depth understanding of the effects of a 16-week exercise program in prostate patients and controls without cancer.

Similarly, Stacey Kenfield ScD, Associate Professor in Urology completed the data collection phase for the CHAMP study and has now received funding through the Movember Foundation to begin a new longitudinal study, GAP4. This will be a multicenter investigation to determine if supervised high intensity aerobic and resistance training can increase overall survival and reduce disease progression, skeletal-related events and pain among men with advanced metasatic prostate cancer. Fitness levels, including muscular strength (1RM), aerobic (VO2max) and functioncal capacity will be evaluated in the HPC, in addition to regularly providing exercise coaching for the patients and monitoring the safety and feasibility of the exercise programs. Finally, the HPC assists Dr. Kenfield with exercise interventions and one-on-one coaching performed solely via remote web-based communication for the Department of Urology's Prostate 8 research program. We are now 2 years into the study investigating the long term wellness program using exercise and/or diet lifestyle interventions and their potential impact to prevent the reoccurrence of cancer. The goals are to improve biological, clinical, and guality of life outcomes in men who choose surgery as the primary treatment for prostate cancer.



METRICS: UCSF Musculoskeletal Research Consortium

UCSF Parnassus Heights

Envisioned in 2018 as a means to foster collaborative interaction between like-minded clinicians and scientists, the UCSF Musculoskeletal Research Consortium, or METRICS Program, has been demonstrably successful in supporting translational projects that leverage inter-Departmental, cross-campus, and multi-School interactions. By definition, METRICS focuses on outcomes, in terms of securing extramural grant and philanthropic funding, highlighting patient-centric health-related quality of life measures, and advancing knowledge through educational efforts and peer-reviewed publications.

METRICS has brought together researchers from across the UCSF School of Medicine, including from the Departments of Orthopaedic Surgery, Physical Therapy, Radiology, Anesthesia, and Otolaryngology, as well as from UC Berkeley. Jeannie Bailey, PhD's work entitled, Assessing biomechanical function and hip stabilizing muscle quality associated with transfemoral osseointegration received \$350,000 in funding from the Congressionally Directed Medical Research Program (CDMRP), Orthotics and Prosthetics Outcomes Research Program (OPORP). Current METRICS proposals include: Quantifying and predicting risk of fracture and implant failure in individuals with transfemoral osseointegrated prostheses (Rob Matthews, PhD, PI); The influence of biomechanical contributions and patientspecific risk factors on the development of chronic low back pain symptoms in lower extremity amputees (Jeannie Bailey, PhD, PI) and Phantom limb pain multimodal neuroimaging (Steven Cheung, MD, PI). These studies will supplement ongoing efforts in the UCSF international Center for Osseointegration Research Education and Surgery (iCORES) Program, already the recipient of more than \$6 million in federal contracts and grants, including a gift from Dr. and Mrs. Richard Stern.

Directed by Richard J. O'Donnell, MD, the METRiCS Lab



has a bricks-and-mortar home at 95 Kirkham Street, where major support from the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery is transforming this southwestern corner of a re-imagined Parnassus Heights campus into a state-of-the-art gait analysis facility. Undergraduates, post-doctoral fellows, and Faculty members with basic, translational, and clinical expertise are developing labbased, in-clinic, and at-home motion capture tools for assessing amputee rehabilitation that can be used to better understand kinematics in patients with a wide range of orthopaedic pathology, including hip and knee arthritis and degenerative conditions of the spine. A portion of the studies associated with the Department's \$29.4 million National Institutes of Health (NIH) Helping to End Addiction Long-Term (HEAL) Initiative award will be conducted in the METRICS Lab.

The METRICS group hopes to use these biomechanical assessments to inform assistive device design and control. Based on pioneering biomechatronic work with electronic percutaneous osseointegrated implants that enable bi-directional volitional motor control of, and sensory/proprioceptive feedback from, external prostheses, METRICS aims to formulate brain-machine interface platform technology that can be applied to a broad range of motion disorders, including paralysis. Meanwhile, for patients with phantom limb pain, METRICS plans to identify brain functional connectivity mechanisms of chronic pain emergence and pain severity, as well as neuroimaging-based biomarkers and neuropsychological risk factors to stratify patients susceptible to chronic pain for earlier treatment, to personalize interventions to achieve greater benefit, and to develop novel neuromodulation therapies.



Orthotics and Prosthetics Research

Mission Statement

The mission of the UCSF Orthotic and Prosthetic research (OPR) team is to improve patient care through developing evidence- based programs and protocols. The OPR group utilizes an interdisciplinary approach gathering patient reported and functional outcome measures to determine the impact of orthotic and prosthetic devices on patients' quality of life and goals.

Project Collaborations

The overarching aim of the OPR team is to use research to inform clinical decision making and enhance outcomes for orthotic and prosthetic patients around the globe. The OPR group has multiple collaborations within UCSF Orthopaedic Surgery, most notably with the HPC, iCORES and METRICs on osseointegration and IGOT, on cost benefit analyses of prosthetic use in Tanzania.

Select Projects Include:

Optimization of Cranial Remolding Orthoses

Site Investigator: Chrysta Irolla, MS, MSPO, CPO

For babies diagnosed with plagiocephaly or brachycephaly the standard treatment is a cranial remolding orthosis (CRO). This retrospective chart review is investigating the impact of treatment parameters like age and cranial deformity on CRO efficacy.

Empirical Measurement of Dosing Efficacy in Pectus Carinatum Bracing: A Prospective Cohort Study

Site Investigator: Chrysta Irolla, MS, MSPO, CPO

Pectus carinatum is a chest wall deformity most commonly seen in teenage boys. Prior to skeletal maturity, correction of this prominence can be achieved with the use of a pectus carinatum orthosis (PCO). This study is collecting wear time data, in-brace pressure data and patient reported outcome measures to optimize the orthotic treatment.

Sponsor: American Orthotic and Prosthetic Association

Physical Rehabilitation Optimization and Patient Education for Life (PROPEL) Site Investigator: Matthew Garibaldi, MS, CPO



This study is assessing the impact of a new comprehensive wellness program for persons with lower limb loss using a multidisciplinary team approach. The personalized 12week wellness program incorporates strength training, nutrition education, and pain management. The changes in physical function are measured through assessing muscle strength, balance, and endurance pre and post program. The improvements in quality of life and pain are being measured through patient-reported outcomes administered before, throughout, and at the end of the 12-week program.

Proximal Junctional Kyphosis Rates after the Introduction of the UCSF Soft TLSO

Site Investigator: Vedat Deviren, MD

This is a retrospective study (chart review) looking at the incidence of proximal junctional kyphosis (PJK) in UCSF patients who have received a soft TLSO (backpack brace) post-operatively. The UCSF soft TLSO was designed to restrict trunk motion with the intention of decreasing the likelihood of PJK, and we are interested in how effective it is. Sponsor: UCSF NOVA Grant

Starting in 2021:

The Impact of Knee Orthoses on Community Involvement for Osteoarthritis Patients

Site Investigator: Erik Hansen, MD

This study will measure the effects of unloader knee orthoses on activity and pain levels of participants with unilateral knee osteoarthritis. An Actigraph activity monitor in addition to various outcome measures will be used to investigate the out of-clinic benefits of the unloader knee orthoses.

Sponsor: American Orthotic and Prosthetic Association

New Faculty

The UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery is pleased to welcome four new faculty members, all of whom have unique research interests.





Rhonda Watkins, MD, MPH Pediatric Orthopaedics

Lyndly Tamura, MD Non-Op Spine



Joelle Gabet, MD No- Op Spine



Sara Edwards, MD Sports Medicine



Stephanie Wong, MD

Sports Medicine



Lan Chen, MD Foot and Ankle





Lauren Shapiro, MD Lauren Hand and Upper Extremity Hand an Extremit

Lauren Santiesteban, MD Hand and Upper Extremity

New Faculty





Courtney Sagar, MD Pediatric PM&R

Kathryn Sigford, MD Pediatric PM&R





David Gendelberg, MD

Trauma/Spine

Ashraf El-Naga, MD Trauma/Spine



Jennifer Tangtiphaiboontana, MD Trauma/Sports Medicine

Residency Highlights

The year 2020 marks another successful year for the UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery Residency Program in terms of outstanding research that directly improves patient care.

Residents performed international, clinical, and basic science research that was published in leading orthopaedic journals across several subspecialties, and presented at national and international meetings. The UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery residents were awarded several awards for research, as well as for clinical care and leadership, as highlighted below.

In the upcoming year, we continue to expand the goals of our research. We will continue to have second year residents apply for the Orthopaedic Research and Education Foundation

2019 JOJ Research Recipients



Leah Demetri, MD

- JOJ grant
- Resident Stryker/JRGOS grant (\$2,500)

Favian Su, MD



Publications

to perform.

• Su, F; Allahabadi, S; Bongbong, D; Feeley, B; Lansdown, DA. Minimal Clinically Important Difference, Substantial Clinical Benefit, and Patient Acceptable Symptom State of Outcome Measures Relating to Shoulder Pathology and Surgery: A Systematic Review. Current Reviews in Musculoskeletal Medicine. Accepted 12/8/20.

(OREF) research grant, and will also expand that opportunity

longitudinal studies earlier in their research career.

reviews, as well as cost effective analyses.

to the interns, with the goal of establishing a research track for

We will continue to expand our Web site and provide information

and support on grant writing, manuscript preparation, and how to

perform specific studies, such as meta-analyses and systematic

Society (ORS) annual meeting, and we look forward to the rest of

the year and the innovative research that our residents continue

The beginning of 2021 is already a landmark year, with many

of the residents presenting at the American Academy of

Orthopaedic Surgeons (AAOS) and Orthopaedic Research

• Friedman, J; Su, F; Zhang, AL; Feeley, B; Allen, C; Souza, R; Ma, CB; Li, X; Lansdown, DA. Patient Reported Activity Levels Correlate with Early Cartilage Degeneration after Anterior Cruciate Ligament Reconstruction. American Journal of Sports Medicine. Accepted 9/9/20.

• Allahabadi, S; Su, F; Lansdown, DA. A systematic review of orthopaedic and sports medicine injuries and treatment outcomes in Women's National Basketball Association and National Basketball Association players. Orthopaedic Journal of Sports Medicine. Accepted 8/31/20.

Presentations

• Su, F; Cogan, C; Bendich, I; Zhang, N; Wooley, M; Kuo, AC. The Effect of Hepatitis C in Total Shoulder Arthroplasty among US Veterans. California Resident Research Symposium. 9/25/20.


Heather Roberts, MD

Grants

• AO Trauma North America Resident Research Grant: \$10,000, 10/2019-6/2022

- AO Alliance: \$10,000, 10/2019-10/2020
- JOJ: \$5000, 7/2019-6/2020
- CTSI: \$4000, 6/2019-6/2020

Presentations

Roberts, HJ; Albright,
 P; Shearer, DW; Won, N;
 MacKechnie, M; Coughlin,
 RR; Miclau, T; Morshed, S;
 Sabharwal, S. "Motivations and impact of international rotations in low- and middle-income countries for orthopedic surgery residents: Are we on the same page?" Accepted for podium presentation at the Association for Surgical Education Annual Meeting,
 April 28-30, 2020 (conference canceled due to COVID).

 Roberts, HJ; Rogers, S; Ward, D; Kandemir, U. "Protocol-Based Multidisciplinary Comanagement for Hip Fracture Care: Three Years of Experience at an Academic Medical Center." Podium presentation at the 2020 Orthopedic Trauma Association Annual Meeting, October 21-24, 2020. • Solarczyk, J; Roberts, HJ; Kandemir, U; Ward, D. "Will Medicare's Bundled Payments Program Threaten Patient Access? Early Experience With Bundled Payments for Care Improvement Advanced for Internal Fixation of the Hip and Femur." Poster at the 2020 Orthopedic Trauma Association Annual Meeting, October 21-24, 2020.

Publications:

• von Kaeppler, EP; Kramer, EJ; Donnelley, CA; Wu, HH; Marseille, E; Eliezer, E; Roberts, HJ; Shearer, DW; Morshed, S. "The initial economic burden of femur fractures on informal caregivers in Dar es Salaam, Tanzania." Malawi Med J (in press).

• Roberts, HJ; Albright, P; Shearer, DW; Won, N; MacKechnie, MA; Coughlin, RR; Miclau, T; Morshed, S; Sabharwal, S; and the COACT Resident Rotation Study Group. "Motivations and impact of international rotations in low- and middle-income countries for orthopaedic surgery residents: Are we on the same page?" Am J Surg (in press).

• Coburn, A; Shearer, DW; Albright, P; Ali, S; Roberts, HJ; Haonga, B; Eliezer, E; Chu, K; Morshed, S. "Evaluating reliability and validity of modified radiographic union scale for tibia (mRUST) among North American and Tanzanian surgeons." OTAI (in press).

• Albright, P; MacKechnie, M; Roberts, HJ; Shearer, DW; Padilla, LG; Segovia, J; Quintero, JE; Amadei, R; Baldy dos Rios, F; Miclau, T. "Open tibial shaft fractures: Treatment patterns in Latin America." J Bone Joint Surg Am 102(22), e126, 2020.

Donnelley, C; Won, N; Roberts, HJ; Von Kaeppler, E; Albright, P; Woolley, PM; Haonga, B; Shearer, DW; Sabharwal, S. "Resident Rotations in Low- and Middle-Income Countries: Motivations, Impact, and Host Perspective." J Bone Joint Surg OA 5(3), 2020.

• Donohoe, E; Roberts, HJ; Miclau, T; Kreder, H. "Management of Lower Extremity Fractures in the Elderly: A Focus on Post-Operative Rehabilitation." Injury 51(Suppl 2), S118-S122, 2020.

• Von Kaeppler, E; Donnelley, C; Roberts, HJ; O'Hara, NN; Won, N; Shearer, DW; Morshed, S. "Impact of North American Institutions on Orthopedic Research in Lowand Middle-Income Countries." Orthop Clin N Am 51, 177-188, 2020.



Alejandro Cazzulino, MD

Publications

• Swarup I, Cazzulino A, Williams BA, Spiegel D, Shah AS. Outcomes after Surgical Fixation of Posterior Sternoclavicular Fracture-Dislocations in Children. Journal of Pediatric Orthopedics, October 2020.

• Swarup I, Hughes M, Cazzulino A, Spiegel D, Shah A. Open Reduction and Fixation of Acute Sternoclavicular Fracture-Dislocations in Children. Journal of Bone and Joint Surgery 2020.

• Meza BC, Swarup I, Woodard T, Cazzulino A, Talwar D, Shah AS. Pediatric Orthopedic Surgery in Opioid-Naïve Patients: Incidence and Risk Factors for Obtaining Opioid Prescription Refills. Journal of Pediatric Orthopedics. 2020.

• Cazzulino A, Gandhi R, Woodard T, Ackshota N, Janjua B, Arlet V, Saifi C. Utilization of hooks at the upper instrumented level in adult spinal deformity surgery. The Journal of Spine Surgery. 2020.

• Cazzulino A, Wu W, Allahabadi S, Swarup I. Management of Unstable SCFE: A Critical Review Analysis. The Journal of Bone and Joint Surgery.

Presentations:

• Cazzulino A, Swarup I, Williams BA, Spiegel D, Shah AS. Patient Reported Outcomes after Surgical Fixation of Acute Posterior Sternoclavicular Physeal Fractures and Dislocation in Children. Orthopedic Research and Education Foundation California Region Resident Research Symposium. Virtual. September 25, 2020.

• Cazzulino A, Gandhi R, Woodard T, Ackshota N, Janjua MB, Arlet V, Saifi C. Soft Landing: Can it prevent Proximal Junctional Kyphosis and Proximal Junctional Failure in Adult Spinal Deformity?. Scoliosis Research Society (SRS) 55th Annual Meeting. Phoenix, Arizona. September 9-12, 2020.

• Meza B, Swarup E, Woodard T, Cazzulino A, Shah A. Opioid-Seeking Behavior After Pediatric Orthopaedic Surgery: An Analysis of Incidence and Risk Factors. American Academy of Orthopedic Surgery (AAOS) Annual Meeting. Orland Fl. March 24-28 2020.



Alex Gornitzky, MD

Presentations

 Nguyen T, Khanna K, Gornitzky AL, Diab M.
 Idiopathic stroke after syndromic and neuromuscular scoliosis surgery: a case report and literature review. AME Case Reports. eCollection 2019.

• Gornitzky AL, Kim AE, O'Donnell JM, Swarup I. Diagnosis and Management of Osteomyelitis in Children: A Critical Analysis Review. JBJS Reviews. 2020; 8(6):e1900202



Sachin Allahabadi, MD

Awards

• Oct 2019 - 2nd place award in the clinical science category, Orthopaedic Research and Education Foundation 2019 California Resident Research Symposium

• Aug 2019 - Omer A. Ilahi Donor Award for paper in the clinical sciences, Western Orthopaedic Association 2019 meeting (awarded to co-author, Jonathan Cheah)

Presentations

 Allahabadi S*, Hagen M, Zhang AL, Feeley BT, Grace T, Ma CB. A randomized single-blinded trial of early rehabilitation versus immobilization after reverse total shoulder arthroplasty. Orthopaedic Research and Education Foundation California Resident Research Symposia, 2019. 2nd place award, clinical sciences. Podium presentation. • Cheah J, Allahabadi S*, Cortes X, Sequeira N, Kim H, Vail T. Supporting orthopaedic resident education and advancement in leadership skills. Omer A. Ilahi Donor Award for paper in the clinical sciences. Western Orthopaedic Association Annual Meeting, 2019. Podium presentation.



William Rubenstein, MD

Awards

• 3rd place, OREF Research Symposium



Obiajulu Agha, MD

Awards

• OREF Research Symposium 2020, basic: 2nd Place

Trainee Highlights

The UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery Laboratories have had another successful year in terms of musculoskeletal research. For example, our Parnassus Heights Labs continue to grow in size and extramural funding. In 2020, the Parnassus Heights Labs welcomed more than 16 new employees to its research enterprise. The Labs currently have more than 35 trainees including postdocs, fellows, visiting scholars, graduate students, technicians, interns, and staff researchers. Their efforts continue to advance the field of musculoskeletal biology through outstanding contributions in the study of bone, cartilage, tendon, and muscle.

Trainees from various Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery Laboratories were awarded competitive and highly prestigious NIH awards including F30, F31, and F32 grants. Additionally, they have

presented at a broad range of national and international meetings, including the Orthopaedic Research Society (ORS) and Gordon Research Conferences. Our basic research scientists continue to publish in leading journals and each day, are accelerating the discovery of novel strategies for healing the musculoskeletal system.

Because of these sustained contributions and our ongoing success, the Department has maintained its high ranking in NIH funding. We look forward to the rest of the year and the innovative research that the lab personnel continue to achieve.

Alliston Laboratory Highlights



Neha Dole, PhD, Assistant Researcher, Alliston Laboratory

• Awarded the prestigious ASBMR 2020- John Haddad Young Investigator Award.

• Received the Outstanding Abstract Award from the Endocrine Society.

• Publication: Dole, NS ; Yee, CS; Mazur, CM; Acevedo, C; Alliston, T. TGF beta Regulation of Perilacunar/Canalicular Remodeling Is Sexually Dimorphic. Journal of Bone and Mineral Research. August 2020. DOI: 10.1002/jbmr.4023.



Karsyn Bailey, MD/PhD Candidate, Alliston Laboratory Presented a moderated poster at the Orthopaedic Research Society Annual Meeting Osteocytic TGFβ Contributes to Post-traumatic Osteoarthritis through Control of Subchondral Bone Plate Thickness, February 2020

 Presented an e-poster at the American Society for Bone and Mineral Research Annual Meeting. Mechanosensitive Control of Articular Cartilage and Subchondral Bone Homeostasis Requires Osteocytic TGFβ Signaling, September 2020 • Invited speaker to Stanford Joint and Osteoarthritis Imaging with Novel Technology (JOINT) group meeting. Bone/ cartilage crosstalk in joint disease: a role for osteocytes, September 2020

 Publications: Bailey KN, Nguyen J, Yee CS, Dole
 NS, Dang A, Alliston T.
 Mechanosensitive Control of Articular Cartilage and Subchondral Bone
 Homeostasis Requires
 Osteocytic TGFβ Signaling.
 Arthritis Rheumatol. 2020 Oct
 6. doi: 10.1002/art.41548.
 Epub ahead of print. PMID: 33022131. • Graduated with her PhD from the UC Berkeley/ UCSF Graduate Program in Bioengineering and returned to UCSF School of Medicine to complete her MD



Charles Schurman, Graduate Student, Alliston Laboratory

 Awarded Ruth L. Kirschstein National Research Service Award (NRSA) Individual Predoctoral Fellowship (F31) through September 2021: Age-related Control of Bone Quality by Osteocyte TGF-beta Signaling

• Oral Presentation at the 2020 American Society for Bone and Mineral Research Annual Meeting: Disrupted Lacunocanalicular Networks, Mass Transport, and Osteocyte Mechanosensation in Bone with Aging and Disrupted TGF Signaling

Publications: Schurman,
 C.A., Verbrugen S.W., Alliston,
 T., Disrupted Osteocyte
 Connectivity and Pericellular
 Fluid Flow in Bone with Aging
 and Defective TGFβ Signaling.
 PNAS (In Review)



Jihee Yoon, DDS/PhD Candidate, Alliston Laboratory

• Awarded UCSF Program in Craniofacial Biology's Caroline H. Damsky Award, April 2020

• Advanced to PhD candidacy, May 2020

• Successfully passed qualifying examination in the UCSF Graduate Program in Oral and Craniofacial Sciences to advance to candidacy for a PhD

• Awarded an NIH F30 research grant to support her training as a Dentist-Scientist

• Awarded the UCSF Caroline Damsky grant to pursue a project on the role of osteocytes in orthodontic tooth movement



Jean Luke Campos, Graduate Student, Alliston Laboratory

• Successfully passed qualifying examination in the UCSF Graduate Program in Developmental and Stem Cell Biology to advance to candidacy for a PhD



Serra Kaya, PhD-Postdoc, Alliston Laboratory

• Awarded a UCSF COral Presentation at the Orthopaedic Research Society Annual Meeting,

Enrichment for genetic predictors of bone quality using unbiased analysis of mouse transcriptome and human genome-wide association study, February 2020

• Poster Presentation at American Society for Bone and Mineral Research Annual Meeting, Transcriptomic analysis of aged mouse bone identifies novel genes enriched for genetic associations with bone fracture and bone mineral density in human, September 2020

• Poster Presentation at the CCMBM Retreat and Awarded Best Postdoc Scholar Poster, Transcriptomic analysis of aged mouse bone identifies novel genes enriched for genetic associations with bone fracture and bone mineral density in human, September 2020

• Reviewer, Calcified Tissue International 2020

 Publication: Monteiro, D. A., Dole, N. S., Campos, J. L., Kaya, S., Schurman, C. A., Belair, C. D., Alliston, Tamara.
 Fluid shear stress generates a unique signaling response by activating multiple TGFβ family type I receptors in osteocytes.
 The FASEB Journal.
 (Accepted, in publication) 2020

• Established mouse2human. org - a public online resource that facilitates computational analysis of laboratory-based datasets using UK Biobank data from 500,000 humans to identify new genetic determinants of skeletal health



David Monteiro, PhD, Graduate Student, Alliston Laboratory

• Graduated with his PhD from the UC Berkeley/ UCSF Graduate Program in Bioengineering and is pursuing a career as a data scientist in Boston, MA • Publication: Monteiro DA, Dole NS, Campos JL, Kaya S, Schurman CA, Belair CD, and Alliston T. Fluid shear stress generates a unique signaling response by activating multiple TGF β family type I receptors in osteocytes. The FASEB J. (2020, in press)

• Presentation: Doctoral exit seminar (defense). Title: Physical cues regulate the localization and activation of TGF β receptors to control the quantity and quality of signaling pathway activity. December 7, 2020.

 Presentation: American Society for Bone and Mineral Research Annual Meeting.
 Poster: Fluid Shear Stress Rapidly Activates TGFβ Family Signaling in Osteocytes.
 September 11-15, 2020.

Collaborative lab publications:

• Dole, N. S., Yee, C. S., Schurman, C. A., Dallas, S. L. & Alliston, T. Assessment of Osteocytes: Techniques for Studying Morphological and Molecular Changes Associated with Perilacunar/Canalicular Remodeling of the Bone Matrix in Skeletal Development and Repair 2230, 303–323 (Humana, New York, NY, 2021)

Schneider Laboratory Highlights



An Nguyen, PhD Candidate

• Awarded an NIH F30 research grant through August of 2021



Zuzana Vavrušová, PhD Candidate

• Awarded an NIH F30 reConference chair: Craniofacial Morphogenesis and Tissue Regeneration (GRS); title: Interconnecting Concepts of Craniofacial Development and Disease to Incite New Therapies, February 2020.

• Presented at: Zuzana Vavrušová, Daniel Chu, Jennifer L. Fish, and Richard A. Schneider. The role of Shh signaling in regulating speciesspecific jaw size. 43rd Annual SCGDB Meeting, online, October 2020, talk.



• Presented at: Zuzana Vavrušová, Daniel Chu, Jennifer L. Fish, and Richard A. Schneider. The Role of SHH Signaling in Regulating Species-Specific Jaw Size. SDB 79th Annual Meeting, Online, July 2020, poster.

• Presented at: Zuzana Vavrušová, Daniel Chu, Jennifer L. Fish, and Richard A. Schneider. Species-Specific Regulation of SHH Signaling and Jaw Size. Gordon Research Conferences: Craniofacial Morphogenesis and Tissue Regeneration, Lucca (Barga, Italy), February 2020, poster. • Publication: Daniel Chu, An Nguyen, Spenser S. Smith, Zuzana Vavrušová, and Richard A. Schneider. Stable Integration of an Optimized Inducible Promoter System En- ables Spatiotemporal Control of Gene Expression Throughout Avian Development. Biology Open, 2020.



Spenser Smith, PhD, Postdoc

• Awarded an NIH F32 research grant, runs through 2021

Collaborative lab publications:

• Smith SS, Chu D, Qu T, Schneider RA. 2020. Differential sensitivity to TGFβ signaling and regulatory changes in the Mmp13 promoter underlie the development and evolution of the avian jaw skeleton. BioRxiv https://doi.org/10.1101/2020.1 2.23.424223.

• Stable integration of an optimized inducible promoter system enables spatiotemporal control of gene expression throughout avian development. Biol Open. 2020 Oct 06; 9(10). Chu D, Nguyen A, Smith SS, Vavrušová Z, Schneider RA. PMID: 32917762.

Poster Presentations:

• Developing an in vivo system for PGC migration using xenotransplantation. Afonso, L., Chacon, B., Vavrušová, Z., Nguyen, D., Tao, Y., Schneider, R. A., Clark, A., and D. Laird. Society for Developmental Biology (SDB) 79th Annual Meeting, Online, July 9th-15th. • Smith,S., Chu, D., Lucena, A., Qu, T., and R. A. Schneider. Runx2 Gene Evolution and Isoform Expression: Effects on transcriptional activity and the regulation of Mmp13 during jaw development. Society for Developmental Biology (SDB) 79th Annual Meeting, Online, July 9th-15th.

• The Role of SHH Signaling in Regulating Species-Specific Jaw Size. Vavrušová, Z., Chu, D., Fish, J., and R. A. Schneider. Society for Developmental Biology (SDB) 79th Annual Meeting, Online, July 9th-15th.

• Smith SS, Chu D, Qu T, Krish G and Schneider R. Sept 2020. Differential sensitivity to TGF signaling and regulatory changes to the Mmp13 promoter under speciesspecific variation in bone resorption and jaw length. ASBMR 2020 Meeting, P-374. • Qu T, Smith SS, and Schneider R. March 2020. The Role of TGF Signaling in Neural Crest-Mediated Jaw Bone Remodeling. AADR General Session, #2417, Washington D.C.

• Smith SS, Chu D, Qu T, and Schneider R. February 2020. Multiple levels of gene regulation in the development and evolution of the jaw. Craniofacial Morphogenesis and Tissue Regeneration conference. Barga, Italy.

Podium Presentation:

• The Role of SHH Signaling in Regulating Species-Specific Jaw Size. Vavrušová, Z., Chu, D., Fish, J., and R. A. Schneider. Society for Craniofacial Genetics and Developmental Biology (SCGDB) 43rd Annual Meeting, Online, October 19th-20th.

Fields Laboratory Highlights



Linshanshan Wang, Undergraduate Research Intern

• Presented at Orthopaedic Research Society Annual Meeting

• Talk: T2* mapping of human cartilage endplate: spatial differences and association with adjacent disc degeneration.

• Publications: Wang L, Han M, Wong J, Zheng P, Lazar AA, Krug R, Fields AJ. Evaluation of human cartilage endplate composition using MRI: spatial variation, association with adjacent disc degeneration, and in vivo repeatability. J Orthop Res. 2020 Jun 27. PMID: 32592504



Justin Scheer, MD, PGY-5

• Awarded an NIH NIAMS F32 research grant (declined)

• Awarded an NIH NINDS R25 research grant, runs through 2021



Jerry Jung, PhD, Postdoc

• Awarded a Molecular Foundry research proposal, "Multiscale structural characterization of the human cartilage endplate"



Mohamed Habib, PhD

• A successful collaboration with Orthofix co. to study a novel strategy for enhanced bone healing procedure. This research work has been published recently in Tissue Engineering: Part A (TEA-2020-0102) and has been submitted as an invention disclosure form to the Innovation Ventures office at UCSF (case number SF2020-120).

• Novel approaches for stimulating new bone growth are necessary to overcome the challenge of delayed bone healing. In this study, we cultured human bone marrow-derived mesenchymal stem cells with an iron-ion doped tri-calcium phosphate bone substitute (Fe-TCP) and exposed them to a pulsed electromagnetic field (PEMF) signal to investigate their effects on osteogenesis. We revealed the synergistic effects of Fe-TCP and PEMF and demonstrated that the combination of these technologies could provide a promising method for accelerating bone healing in a clinical setting.

• Publications: Mohamed Habib, Devante A. Horne, Khaled Hussein, Dezba Coughlin, Erik I. Waldorff, Nianli Zhang, James T. Ryaby, and Jeffrey C. Lotz (2020). Magnetic Nanoparticles Synergize with Pulsed Magnetic Fields to Stimulate Osteogenesis In Vitro. Tissue Engineering: Part A (TEA-2020-0102)



Representative images demonstrate the interaction between MSCs and MNBS. SEM images at low magnification (A) and high magnification (B), light MNBS cell-surface attachment and internalization just below the cell surface (arrows) as single nanoparticles. TEM image (C) confirm MNBS internalization by MSC, mesenchymal stem cell.

Bailey Laboratory Highlights



Collaborative lab publications:

• Saul Pacheo Elorza (2019 Undergraduate Research Volunteer) presented his work on "In-clinic motion assessments as objective outcomes for tracking shoulder function during post-operative recovery" at the 2020 Annual Meeting of the Orthopaedic Research Society in Phoenix, AZ.

• Priya Nyayapati (2020 Medical Student Volunteer) presented her work on "Predicting lumbar multifidus fat fraction from T2 MRI" at the 2020 Annual Meeting of the Orthopaedic Research Society in Phoenix, AZ.

Karim Khattab, Bioengineering Graduate Student

• Awarded NIH HEAL training fellowship to investigate "How pain-related measures and psychological factors influence compensatory movement biomechanics and biophysical outcomes in chronic low back pain", running through 2022 and in collaboration with the UCSF REACH Project. Karim is being co-mentored by Jeannie Bailey and Jeff Lotz.

Marcucio Laboratory Highlights



Heather AtwoodAwarded an NIH NIDCR F32, research grant through 2021





Congratulations to Tamara Alliston, Ph.D. 2020 Adele L. Boskey Award Recipient

Tamara Alliston, Ph.D., is a Professor in the UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery and the Director of the UCSF Musculoskeletal Center. With a focus on TGFβ signaling and mechanobiology, her laboratory investigates the interaction between physical and biochemical signals in the control of skeletal cell differentiation and the role of these pathways in bone fragility and osteoarthritis. Supported by the NIH, NSF, and DOD, her group employs approaches from molecular and cell biology, materials science, and engineering to identify mechanisms of skeletal disease in order to advance the development of new therapeutic strategies.

"As the pioneer of bone quality research, Adele Boskey cleared a path that I have followed ever since. Early in my career, Adele encouraged our work on the biological control of bone quality before others saw its relevance, even as her own team's brilliant research provided the framework to understand bone quality and its clinical significance. For these reasons, I am especially proud to receive an award that honors this groundbreaking scientist and leader.

Thank you to my mentors, James Shinkle, JoAnne Richards and Rik Derynck, and colleagues, Jennifer Westendorf, Robert Nissenson, and Farshid Guilak for their nomination. I am especially grateful to the colleagues, trainees, and staff who have fearlessly joined me in exploring the vast and exciting territory between bone cell biology and materials science. Your scientific creativity, intellectual courage, and playful curiosity inspire me and give rise to the best science and scientists."

~ Tamara Alliston, Ph.D.



UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery appoints Carlin Senter, MD, as Director of Primary Care Sports Medicine

The <u>UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery</u> is pleased to announce that <u>Carlin Senter</u>, <u>MD</u> has been appointed as the Director of Primary Care Sports Medicine Service within the <u>Division of Sports Medicine</u> and <u>Shoulder Surgery</u>.

"Our team is comprised of a group of physicians specifically trained in primary care as well as sports medicine," Dr. Senter said. "Our goal is to help patients recover from injuries or illnesses that prevent them from being as active as they want to be. We determine whether a patient's condition requires surgery or if the problem can be managed by other types of treatment. We are also very dedicated to teaching current and future physicians how to practice musculoskeletal medicine, as well as actively involved in research to help solve common and yet complex sports medicine conditions that affect all of us."



The UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery is pleased to announce the appointment of Stephanie Wong, MD, Assistant Professor of Clinical Orthopaedic Surgery

<u>Dr. Stephanie Wong</u> is a board-eligible orthopaedic surgeon specializing in sports medicine and minimally-invasive arthroscopic surgery of the hip, knee and shoulder. In the hip, she frequently treats labral tears, FAI (femoroacetabular impingement), hamstring injuries, gluteus tears, and various athletic hip injuries. Dr. Wong is a specialist in advanced hip arthroscopy for hip preservation, performing labral repair and reconstruction. In the knee, she specializes in ACL tears, meniscus tears, and cartilage injuries- regularly performing ACL reconstruction and meniscus repairs. In the shoulder, she treats rotator cuff tears, shoulder dislocation/instability, and biceps injuries.



UCSF Sports Medicine launches new podcast: 6-8 Weeks: Perspectives on Sports Medicine

The UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery is proud to announce the launch of a new podcast by the Division of Sports Medicine: <u>6-8 Weeks: Perspectives on Sports Medicine</u>.

Hosted by <u>Nirav Pandya, MD</u>, <u>Brian Feeley, MD</u> and <u>Drew Lansdown, MD</u>, the podcast presents the people and stories behind sports medicine at UCSF and our community of learners.

The podcast is available from the links below, as well as on iTunes and Spotify.



The UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery is pleased to announce the appointment of Lan Chen, MD, Associate Clinical Professor, Foot and Ankle Surgery

<u>Dr. Lan Chen, MD</u>, is a board certified orthopaedic surgeon who specializes in foot and ankle surgery. She treats all conditions of the foot and ankle, including arthritis, bunions, flat feet, tendon disorders and fractures, and performs surgeries ranging from minimally invasive procedures to complex reconstructions. Her goal is to offer treatment options that enable patients to regain a high level of function and improve their quality of life.



Podcast: Ishaan Swarup, MD featured in "Best of POSNA 2020"

<u>Dr. Ishaan Swarup, MD</u>, a pediatric orthopaedic surgeon in the <u>UCSF Department of Orthopaedic</u> <u>Surgery</u>, was recently featured in a podcast from the <u>Journal of Pediatric Orthopaedics</u>. This podcast includes executive summaries of recent studies and interviews with authors and guest commentators.

This episode is titled "Best of POSNA 2020 – QSVI" and features the best articles from the Pediatric Orthopaedic Society of North America (POSNA) Annual Meeting.



Dr. Richard Gosselin has been appointed as the Inaugural Chief Orthopaedic Surgeon for the International Committee of the Red Cross

Dr. Richard Gosselin has been appointed as the Inaugural Chief Orthopaedic Surgeon for the International Committee of the Red Cross.

Dr. Gosselin is a long-time clinical UCSF faculty member and co-founder of the Department's initiative, the <u>Institute for Global Orthopaedics and Traumatology (IGOT)</u>. He has dedicated the bulk of his career to international medicine and orthopaedic care.



The UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery is pleased to announce the appointment of Joelle Gabet, MD, Clinical Instructor, Non-Operative Spine

<u>Dr. Joelle Gabet, MD</u>, is a physical medicine and rehabilitation specialist who cares for patients with neck and back pain. She specializes in improving function and decreasing pain in patients with spinal disorders. Her clinical interests also include neuromuscular medicine, neurorehab, spasticity, and amputee medicine. She will also be a member of the Department's osseointegration program. She will be seeing patients at the <u>Orthopedic Institute</u> and at the <u>San Mateo Primary and Specialty Care Clinic</u>.



Thomas A. Peterson, PhD, to lead Informatics for the UCSF REACH Center for Chronic Low Pack Pain

The <u>UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery</u> is pleased the appointment of Thomas A. Peterson, PhD, an Assistant Professor, who will serve as Director of the Informatics Core for the <u>UCSF REACH Center</u> for Chronic Low Back Pain.



Patricia Zheng, MD, to lead UCSF's Integrated Spine Service

The <u>UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery</u> is pleased to announce that <u>Patricia Zheng, MD</u>, a nonoperative spine specialist, will take on the leadership role as Director of the <u>Integrated Spine</u> <u>Service</u> (ISS) at UCSF.



Erik McDonald, MD, Recipient of Teaching Excellence Award for Cherished Housestaff

Erik McDonald, MD, a resident in the <u>UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery</u>, is the recipient of the <u>Teaching</u> <u>Excellence Award for Cherished Housestaff</u> (T.E.A.C.H.) from the UCSF School of Medicine, reflecting his outstanding didactic skills and abiding commitment to the education of medical students and residents.



The UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery is pleased to announce the appointment of Sara L. Edwards, MD Associate Clinical Professor of Orthopaedic Surgery

Dr. Sara Edwards is a board-certified orthopaedic surgeon, who specializes in treating shoulder, elbow and knee injuries, non-operative management of shoulder arthritis, and sports-related injuries in all age groups and all levels – from recreational to elite athletes.



International Women's Week at UCSF Honors our Orthopaedic Leaders, Commitment to Diversity

The <u>UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery</u> is pleased to announce a special celebration to honor the women of our Department during <u>UCSF's annual International Women's Day</u>, which will be recognized worldwide on Sunday, March 8. This year's theme is #EachforEqual -- promoting the concept that an <u>equal world is an enabled world</u>.



Dr. Nirav Pandya featured on KQED Forum's piece on 'Newsom Proposal Could End School Fitness Exams'

SAN FRANCISCO (Feb. 11, 2020) -- <u>Dr. Nirav K. Pandya, MD</u>, a pediatric orthopedic surgeon and sports medicine specialist within the UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery, was interviewed this week on KQED News Forum on the topic: <u>Newsom Proposal Could End School Fitness Exams</u>.



Amir Matityahu, MD, selected as Chair of Surgery at Regional Medical Center of San Jose

The <u>UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery</u> is pleased to announce that <u>Amir Matityahu, MD</u>, an orthopaedic surgeon specializing in trauma and problem fractures and a Clinical Professor within the Department, has recently been selected as the new Chair of Surgery at <u>Regional Medical Center of San Jose</u>, a Level II Trauma Center that contracts surgical services from the UCSF Orthopaedic Trauma Institute.



UCSF appoints Jason Jagodzinski, MD, Informatics Lead for Pediatric Surgical Services

The <u>UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery</u> is pleased to announce that <u>Jason Jagodzinski, MD</u>, pediatric orthopaedic surgeon, has accepted the position of Informatics Lead for Pediatric Surgical Services for <u>UCSF Benioff Children's Hospital Oakland</u>.



UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery appoints Derek Ward, MD, as MarinHealth Physician Service Lead

As the MarinHealth Physician Service Lead, Derek Ward, MD will be responsible for planning, organizing, and directing daily clinical operations for the Orthopaedics Department at MarinHealth Medical Center in Kentfield, Calif. (Photo: UCSF Dept. of Orthopaedic Surgery)

Grants and Fellowships



Sachin Allahabadi, MD

UCSF JOJ Ortho Resident
Grant

Comparison of outcomes utilizing blood flow restriction training as a rehabilitation protocol in post-operative meniscus repair patients

7/1/2020-6/31/2021

\$5,000



Jessye Aggleton, PhD

 NIH NIAMS P30AR075055 (CCMBM Junior Investigator Software Assistance Award)

06/02/2020

\$250



Tamara Alliston, PhD

• NIH NIDCR R01 A135199

The Mechanistic Control of Bone Quality and Joint Crosstalk by Osteocytes

6/3/2020-5/31/2025 \$2,983,593 NIH Natl Inst Arthr, Musculoskel & Skin P30 A133258

Core Center for Musculoskeletal Biology and Medicine

7/1/2019-6/30/2024

\$3,866,912

• Sutter West Bay Medical Foundation A135898

Longevity Consortium

8/1/2020-5/31/2023

\$94,902

• DOD US Army Med. Res. Acq. Activity W81 A132062

Identification of Novel Osteocyte-Regulatory Therapies to Prevent and Treat PTOA in Warfighters

9/30/2018-9/29/2021

\$999,946

• NSF A128025

Mechanoregulation of Growth Factor Receptor Assembly and Signaling

9/1/2016-8/31/2020

\$400,000

• NIH NIAMS R21 A129741

miRNA Coordination of TGF-beta / Wnt Signaling in Osteocyte Mechanotransduction

8/1/2017-7/31/2020

\$383,570

• NIH NIDCR R01 A123992

The Mechanistic Control of Bone Extracellular Matrix Material Properties by TGFb

8/1/2014-5/31/2020

\$2,261,281

• New Equipment, Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Developing a State-ofthe-art Zebrafish Facility at Parnassus Heights

7/01/2020-6/30/2021 \$50,000 UCSF Institutional Matching
Instrumentation Award

MicroComputed Tomography in the UCSF Skeletal Biology & Biomechanics Core

1/22/20-1/21/21

\$122,000

• NIH NIAMS P30AR075055 (CCMBM Tools and Technology Grant)

Development of M2Hbone - a web-based tool for identification of mouse genes relevant to human bone fragility

12/17/2019 - 06/15/2020

\$5,000



Heather Atwood, PhD

• NIH NIDCR F32 A132192

Mechanisms of Shape Variation in a Mouse Model of Craniofacial Birth Defects

9/1/2018-8/31/2021 \$190,110



Jeannie Bailey, PhD

• DOD US Army Med. Res. Acq. Activity W81 A135195

Assessing biomechanical function and hip stabilizing muscle quality associated with transfemoral osseointegration 7/1/20-6/30/2022

\$349,634

• NSF CDMI (Center for Disruptive Musculoskeletal Innovations) funded project

The effect of paraspinal muscle quality on postoperative dynamic sagittal balance outcomes for adult spinal deformity patients

11/01/2020 - 10/31/2021 \$40.000

• NIH NIAMS P30AR075055 (CCMBM Pilot Feasibility Grant)

The mechanistic pathophysiology associated with paraspinal muscular degeneration and chronic low back pain

05/21/2020-12/31/2021 \$39,000



Karsyn Bailey, PhD

 NIH NIAMS P30AR075055 (CCMBM Junior Investigator Software Assistance Award) 06/02/2020 \$108.00



Jeff Barry, MD

• OrthoCarolina Research Institute, Inc A134492 How to Improve the Results of Irrigation and Debridement for PJI Through the Use of Intraosseous Antibiotics

6/25/2019-6/24/2021 \$2,500



Gaby Baylon, PhD

NIH Diversity Supplement
 Award

Pairing of osteocyte tension and perilacunar material properties via perilacunar/ canalicular remodeling

7/1/18-7/31/20

\$104,941



Sigurd Berven, MD

• Empirical Spine, Inc. A130354

LSS17001

A Concurrently Controlled Study of the LimiFlex" Paraspinous Tension Band in the Treatment of Lumbar Degenerative Spondylolisthesis with Spinal Stenosis, Clinical Trial

9/26/2017-9/19/2022

\$51,854

 AOSpine International A134447

SDIM: Spinal Deformity Intraoperative Monitoring

5/1/2019-2/1/2022

\$4,063

• AO Foundation A123247

Prospective Evaluation of Elderly Deformity Surgery: A Prospective Observational, Multicenter Study, Clinical Trial

7/1/2014-12/31/2021 \$27,645



Stefano Bini, MD

NIH Natl Institute on Aging
 A133586

The Oaks- A Mobile and Education Program for People with Osteoarthritis of the Knee 3/1/2019-2/29/2020

\$70,000



Andrew Brack, PhD

• NIH NIAMS R01 A133478

Niche Regulation of Muscle Stem Cells

8/01/2019-5/31/2024

\$2,562,213

• NIH NIA R21 A131831

Single cell activation dynamics as a predictor and regulator of aged MuSC dysfunction.

3/15/2019-1/31/2021 \$425,252 • Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Develop a method to study radiotolerance inhuman muscle stem cells

7/01/2019-6/30/2020 \$25,000



Shane Burch, MD

• Integra LifeSciences Corporation 106548/COV-DRSS-0002 A125223

DuraSeal Exact Spine Sealant System Post Approval Study, Clinical Trial 2/27/2015-2/27/2020 \$48,580



Cindy Chang, MD

 Ossur Americas -Fellowship A135414
 PCSM Fellowship program
 10/1/2020-9/30/2021
 \$20,000



Michael Davies, MD

• Orthopaedic Research and Education Fdn. A135210

Characterizing human fibroadipogenic progenitors to decrease fatty infiltration in rotator cuff tears

12/1/2019-11/30/2020

\$5,000

• AOSSM Young Investigator Grant – Basic Science YIG-2020-B

The role of age in fibroadipogenic progenitormediated muscle degeneration following rotator cuff tears

8/1/2020 - 7/31/2022 \$40.000



Leah Demetri, MD

UCSF JOJ Ortho Resident
Grant

Health Disparities and Constriction Band Syndrome

7/1/2020-6/31/2021

\$5,000

• J. Robert Gladden Orthopaedic Society/Stryker Resident Research Grant

Health Disparities and Construction Band Syndrome

8/4/2020-8/3/2021

\$2,500



Sibel Demir-Deviren, MD

• Pfizer B3451002 A125917

A Phase 2b, Randomized, Double-Blind, Placebo-Controlled Study to Evaluate the Safety and Efficiency of Staphylococcus Aureus 4-Antigen Vaccine (SA4Ag) in Adults Undergoing Elective Posterior Instrumented Lumbar Spinal, Subcontract, Clinical Trial

9/3/2015-9/3/2022

\$1,996,966

• Nocimed, LLC A128057

Clinical Development and Evaluation of the Nociscan" Virtual Discogram" Using Magnetic Resonance Spectroscopy for Identifying Painful and Non-Painful Intervertebral Discs of the Lumbar Spine, Clinical Trial

8/24/2016-12/15/2022

\$1,125,112



Vedat Deviren, MD

• NOVA Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Determine the impact of two thoracolumnar sacral orthoses on PJK post-spinal fusion.

7/01/2020-6/30/2021

\$5,000



Neha Dole, PhD

 NIH NIAMS P30AR075055 (CCMBM Junior Investigator Software Assistance Award) 06/02/2020

16/02/2020

\$239

• NIH NIAMS P30AR075055 (CCMBM Junior Investigator Research Grant)

Understanding the Role of Sirt1 in Obesity-induced Metabolic Dysfunction of Osteocytes

12/22/2020-06/15/2021

\$3,500



Brian Feeley, MD

Orthofix Inc. A133456

Prospective, Randomized, Double-Blind, Placebo Controlled Study to Evaluate the Safety and Efficacy of Pulsed

7/8/19-12/31/2021

\$491,556

• NIH RO1

Utilizing beige fat to improve muscle function after rotator cuff repair

07/01/2018-06/30/2022

\$1,250,000 (TOTAL FUNDING)

• NIH R56

Phenotypes of pathologic vertebral endplate degeneration

09/26/2019-09/01/2021

\$100,000

• NIH P30

Human Fibroadipoprogenitor (FAP) stem cells in rotator cuff disease: functional assessment of regenerative potential

01/01/2019-12/31/2021 \$40,000



Aaron Fields, PhD

• NIH NIAMS R01 A129156

Role of the Cartilage Endplate in Spinal Disc

Degeneration 4/1/2017-1/31/2022

\$1,743,500

• NIH NIAMS UH2 A134016

Novel imaging of endplate biomarkers in chronic low back pain

9/26/2019-8/31/2021

\$1,119,116

 North American Spine Society A131980

Does Enhancing Cartilage Endplate Permeability Improve Nucleus Pulposus Cell Function?

1/1/2019- 12/31/2020 \$50,000



Alex Gornitzky, MD

UCSF JOJ Ortho Resident
Grant

Coping Skills after Pediatric Spine Fusion 7/1/2019-6/31/2020

\$5,000



Nicholas Hanne, PhD

• NIH Natl Inst Dental & Craniofacial Res. – Fellowship A136138

Determining the Role of Extracellular Matrix Compliance and Composition on Facial Morphogenesis

12/1/2020- 11/30/2023 \$204,462



Erik Hansen, MD

• Orthopaedic Research and Education Fdn. (OREF) A130350 Surgical Treatment of Chronic Periprosthetic Joint Infection: One-Stage vs. Two-Stage (STUDY), Subcontract, Clinical Trial

11/1/2017- 12/31/2020

\$26,000

 American Orthotic & Prosthetic Assoc, New, P0546268 [CA-0166974]

The Effects of osteoarthritis bracing on community involvement, a pilot study

7/9/2020-7/2021

\$15,000



Safa Herfat, PhD

• National Science Foundation 170 A130062

Development of a Diagnostic Device for Monitoring Fracture Healing NSF FULL SUBMISSION 110ct2016

8/15/2017- 1/31/2021 \$200,000



Chrysta Irolla, MS, MSPO, CPO

• American Orthotic & Prosthetic Assoc A130112

The Effects of a Custom Pectus Carintum Orthosis on Dosing Response and Quality of Life

7/18/2017-6/30/2021

\$15,000



Igor Immerman, MD

• Super NOVA Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Patient Outcomes and Costs after Isolated Flexor Tendon Repairs of the Hand

6/1/19-5/31/2020

\$10,000



JaeYoung Jung, PhD

NIH NIAMS
 P30AR075055 (CCMBM
 Junior Investigator Software
 Assistance Award)

06/02/2020

\$219



Karim Khattab, PhD

• NIH HEAL Initiative Awardee Administrative Supplements to Promote Training in Clinical Research on Pain

How pain-related measures and psychological factors influence compensatory movement biomechanics and biophysical outcomes in chronic low back pain 09/23/2020 - 05/31/2024 \$104.939



Alfred Kuo, MD, PhD

• Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Understanding racial disparities in outcomes after total knee replacement in Veterans

7/01/2020-6/30/2021

\$25,000



Drew Lansdown, MD

• American Orthopaedic Soc for Sports Med A134539

The Relationship Between ACL Graft Quantitative Imaging Characteristics and Subjective and Functional Outcomes after ACL Reconstruction

8/1/2019-7/31/2021

\$49,860

• Arthroscopy Association of North America A132892

Advanced Quantitative Imaging of ACL Grafts: Comparing Autograft and Allograft Reconstructions

6/1/2019- 5/31/2021 \$24,860



Tiffany Liu, MD

Resident/Fellow Fast Track
Grant

Correlation between visual appearance and histology of peripheral nerve sections (Award 3634)

1/1/21 to 12/31/21 \$5000



Jeffrey Lotz, PhD

• National Science Foundation A134526

Phase II IUCRC UC San Francisco: Center for Disruptive Musculoskeletal Innovations (CDMI)

12/15/2019-11/30/2024

\$499,997

• NIH NIAMS P30 A133258

Core Center for Musculoskeletal Biology and Medicine

7/1/2019-6/30/2024

\$3,866,912

• NIH NIAMS U19 A134160

UCSF Core Center for Patient-centric Mechanistic Phenotyping in Chronic Low Back Pain (UCSF REACH)

9/25/2019-5/31/2024

\$29,513,784

• NIH NIAMS R56 A134021

Phenotypes of pathologic vertebral endplate degeneration

9/26/2019-8/31/2021

\$669,247

• NIH Natl Inst Dental & Craniofacial Res. A135216

Center for Dental, Oral, and Craniofacial Tissue and Organ Regeneration (C-DOCTOR)

5/7/2020-4/30/2021

\$184,139

• NIH NIDCR U24 A129002

Center for Dental, Oral, and Craniofacial Tissue and Organ Regeneration (C-DOCTOR)

3/1/2017-2/28/2021

\$11,961,481

• NIH NIAMS P30 A123857

Core Center for Musculoskeletal Biology and Medicine

7/1/2014-3/31/2020

\$ 2,993,910

National Science
Foundation A123593

IIP-1361975

UCRC for Technology Innovation for Novel Cost-Reducing and Quality-Enhancing Musculoskeletal Therapies

4/15/2014-3/31/2020

\$520,500

• NSF CDMI (Center for Disruptive Musculoskeletal Innovations) funded project

Jeffrey Lotz, PhD and Robert Matthew, PhD

Reachable workspace

01/01/2020 - 12/31/2020 \$40,000



C. Benjamin Ma, MD

Aesculap Biologics LLC
 A133047

PRE CTA: A Phase 3, Prospective, Randomized, Partially Blinded Multi-Center Study to Measure the Safety and Efficacy of NOVOCART 3D Compared to Microfracture in the Treatment of Articular Cartilage Defects" Protocol # AAG-G-H-1220

1/26/2019- 1/25/2029

\$8,000

• Aesculap Biologics LLC A134736

A Phase 3 Prospective, Randomized, Partially Blinded Multi-Center Study to Measure the Safety and Efficacy of NOVOCART 3D, Compared to Microfracture in the Treatment of Articular Cartilage Defects

3/30/2020- 3/29/2025

\$1,722,564

• Zimmer, Inc. CMU2010-28E A117977

Prospective Post Market Clinical Follow-Up Study of the Zimmer Trabecular Metal- Reverse Shoulder System

6/15/2011-6/15/2024

\$489,280

• Samumed, LLC SM04690-OA-08 A131723

A Phase 2, 52 Week, Single Center, Open-Label Study Utilizing Imaging Techniques and Evaluating the Safety and Efficacy of SM04690 Injectable Suspension for the Treatment of Moderately to Severely Symptomatic Knee Osteoarthritis

6/12/2018- 6/12/2023 \$597,996

• Arthroscopy Association of North America A125441

Synovial Fluid Profile and T1p in Predicting Cartilage Degeneration after Anterior Cruciate Ligament Injuries

4/25/2015-4/25/2020

\$25,000

• Vanderbilt University Medical Center VUMC63087 A130300

Operative versus Non-Operative Treatment for Atraumatic Rotator Cuff Tears: A Multicenter Randomized Controlled Pragmatic Trial, Subcontract, Clinical Trial 7/1/2017-3/31/2020

\$332,201

• Regentis Biomaterials, Ltd A132290

A Prospective, Open-Label, Multicenter Pivotal Study to Evaluate the Safety and Efficacy of GelrinC for the Treatment of Symptomatic Articular Cartilage Defects of the Femoral Condyle: A Comparison to Historical Control Microfracture

10/1/2018- 2/29/2020 \$8,000



Ralph Marcucio, PhD

• Canadian Institutes of Health Research- University of Calgary A133192

The Development and

Genetics of the Face (Sub-In Calgary, CIHR Prime)

7/1/2018-6/30/2025

\$510,805

• NIH Natl Inst Dental & Craniofacial Res. A134688

Transcriptional regulatory landscapes underlying FEZ Formation

3/11/2020-2/28/2025

\$2,434,720

• NIH NIDCR R01 DE019638 A127014

The Role of Continuous Phenotypic Variation in Structural Defects of the Face

1/1/2016-12/31/2021

\$ 2,819,022

• NIH Natl Inst Dental & Craniofacial Res. R21 A131975

Understanding the Forces that Shape the Face

9/15/2018-8/31/2021

\$443,098

• NIH Natl Inst Arthr, Musculoskel & Skin A127285

Regulators of Ischemic Fracture Healing

9/15/2015-7/31/2020

\$750,748

• Regents of the University of Michigan A131243

Regulators of Ischemic Fracture Healing (new subin from UMich after transfer of Prime R01 A127285/ P0505057)

8/1/2017-4/30/2020

\$441,853



Meir Marmor, MD

• Population Health Research Institute A130882

HIP fracture Accelerated Surgical Care and Treatment Track

1/1/2018-1/31/2025

\$60.600

• Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Inst-University of Maryland, Baltimore A134150

PREPARE: Pragmatic Randomized trial Evaluating Pre-operative Alcohol skin solutions in FRactured Extremities

2/1/2019-1/31/2021

\$324,576

 NOVA Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Optimization of Opioid Use for Post-Operative Pain

7/01/2020-6/30/2021

\$5,000

AO Trauma North America

Wearable Devices Used to Measure Postoperative Pain Response in the Orthopaedic Trauma Patient

10/1/2020-8/31/2021

\$ 9,604

• AO Trauma North America

Use of Smartphone Wearables to Evaluate Activity and Rehabilitation in Orthopaedic Trauma Patients (Smart WEAR)

10/1/2020-8/31/2021

\$ 9,981



Amir Matityahu, MD

• CurvaFix. Inc A135868

A Safety and Technical Feasibility Evaluation of the Curvafix? Intramedullary RodscrEw System for FixaTion of Pelvic and AcetabulaR FracturEs -**RESTORE Study**

10/1/2020-9/30/2022 \$73.414



Theodore Miclau, MD

 Samuel Merritt University A135247

Agreement for Training for Academic Purposes

6/1/2019-5/31/2023

\$98.320

• NIH Natl Inst Arthr. Musculoskel & Skin R01 A131606

Mechanisms of Skeletal Stem Cell Dysfunctions in Traumatic Bone Injuries

7/12/2018- 4/30/2023

\$ 1.514.183

• NIH Natl Inst Arthr, Musculoskel & Skin R01 A136073

Understanding the Global Burden of Disease of Skeletal Fractures: the International Orthopaedic Multi-Center Study (INORMUS) (new submission of P0521469)

9/21/2020-8/31/2022

\$579,548

• Johns Hopkins University - DOD US Army Med. Res. Acq. W81XWH-10-2-0133 A123658A

Task Order: A Prospective Randomized Trial to Assess PO versus IV Antibiotics for the Early Post-op Wound Infection after Extremity Fractures (POvIV)

9/29/2012-8/31/2021

\$18,700

• Johns Hopkins University - DOD US Army Med. Res. Acq. W81XWH-12-1-0588 A123658B

Task Order: Supplemental Perioperative Oxygen to Reduce Surgical Site Infection After High Energy Fracture Surgery (Oxygen)

3/1/2013-9/30/21

\$13,600

Johns Hopkins University A122597

METRC 2 - The Major Extremity Trauma Research Consortium

9/29/2012-8/31/2021

\$179,800



Saam Morshed, MD, PhD, MPH

 McMaster University A124908

Fixation using Alternative Implants for the Treatment of Hip Fractures (FAITH-2), Clinical Trial

3/1/2015-3/31/2023 \$1,172

• DOD US Army Med. Res. Acq. Activity A135270

Effect of Early Weight Bearing on Rehabilitation

10/1/2019-9/29/2022

\$78,228

 Microbion Corporation A127989

MBN-101-201: A Phase 2a Randomized. Single-Blind, Placebo-Controlled, 24-week Escalating Dose Study to Assess the Safety, Tolerability and Clinical Activity of 3 Concentrations of Locally Applied MBN-101 to Infected Osteosynthesis

Site, Clinical Trial

8/8/2016-8/8/2021

\$245,891

• DOD US Army Med. Res. Acq. Activity W81XWH-14-1-0563 A124169

Prosthetic Fit Assessment in Transtibial Amputees Secondary to Trauma (ProFit)

9/30/2014-9/29/2020

\$628.030

• DOD US Army Med. Res. Acq. Activity A134521

Early Advanced Weight Bearing for Peri-articular Knee and Pilon Injuries: An RCT using the Anti-Gravity Treadmill (AlterG) (METRC Master Services Agmt)

8/1/2019-9/29/2020

\$10,394

• DOD Defense Threat Reduction Agency-University of Maryland, Baltimore A132560

Aqueous-PREP: A Pragmatic Randomized trial Evaluating Pre-operative aqueous antiseptic skin solutions in open fractures

9/30/2018-9/29/2020

\$121.600

• Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Longitudinal comparison of outcomes and cost-effectiveness of intramedullary nailing versus external fixation for the treatment of open tibial fractures in Tanzania

06/01/2019-05/31/2020 \$25,000



An Nguyen, PhD

• NIH NIDCR F30 A129994

Mesenchyme-Dependent Epithelial Signals that Promote Osteogenesis in the Jaw

9/1/2017-8/31/2021

\$177,211



Richard O'Donnell, MD

• DoD USAMRMC W81XWH-17-2-0060 A130749

Transfemoral Amputee Osseointegration Study (TFAOS)

10/1/2017-9/30/2022

\$4,087,368

• DoD USAMRMC W81XWH-17R-BAA1 A133886 An Osseo-Neural Transtibial Prosthesis with Efferent-Afferent Neural Control 4/15/19-4/14/2022

\$308,482

• DARPA W911NF-17-2-0043 A129870

An Osseointegrated Transfemoral Prosthesis Offering Long-Term Bi-Directional Efferent-Afferent Neural Transmission (MIT SubK DARPA)

3/15/2017-3/31/2021 \$842,189



Conor O'Neill, MD

• NIH Center for Scientific Review - UC San Diego A134678

California Clinical and Translational Pain Research Consortium

09/30/2019-3/31/2024 \$37,618



Nirav Pandya, MD

 Pediatric Orthopaedic Soc of No America A131532

The Impact of Patient Education in the Pre-Operative Holding on Post-Operative Opioid in Elective Pediatric Orthopedic Surgery Cases 6/1/2018- 5/31/2020 \$1,000



Heather Roberts, MD

• Orthopaedic Research and Education Fdn. (OREF) A129158

Intramedullary Kirschner wire versus flexible nail fixation for pediatric femur fractures

7/1/2017-6/30/2020

\$30,000

• Orthopaedic Research and Education Fdn. (OREF) A132990

Epidemiology, outcomes, and cost of revision total hip and knee arthroplasty

4/1/2019-3/31/2020

\$5,000



Erika Roddy, MD

• UCSF JOJ Ortho Resident Grant

Does Virtual Reality Training Improve Resident Performance in Slipped Capital Femoral Epiphysis In Situ Screw Fixation?

7/1/2020-6/31/2021

\$5,000



Coleen Sabatini, MD, MPH

 Pediatric Orthopaedic Society of Northern America A127489

Post-Injection Injury in Ugandan Children: Prevalence, Risk Factors, Surgical Outcomes

6/1/2016-5/31/20 \$30,000



Sanjeev Sabharwal, MD, MPH

• Pediatric Orthopaedic Soc of No America A134710

Observership Opportunities in Pediatric Orthopaedics for Surgeons from Low-and-Middle Income Countries: Perceived Barriers and Impact

6/1/2019-5/31/21

\$1,000



Aenor Sawyer, MD, MS

NASA Headquarters
 A132254

UCSF/TRISH Space Health Innovation Program 10/1/2018- 9/30/2021 \$1,950,979



Richard Schneider, PhD

• NIH NIDCR R01 DE025668 A127740

Mechanisms of Secondary Cartilage Induction and Maintenance in the Jaw

7/5/2016-6/30/2021

\$1,981,250

• NIH NIDCR R01 A125490

Mesenchymal Regulation of Osteogenesis

7/1/2015-5/31/2021 \$2.072.560



Charles Schurman, PhD Candidate

• NIH NIA F31 A133909

Age-related Control of Bone Quality by Osteocyte TGFbeta Signaling 9/11/2019-9/10/2022

\$112,504



David Shearer, MD

Orthopaedic Trauma
 Association A135783

A Pilot Randomized Controlled Trial to Evaluate Local Antibiotics after Open Tibia Fracture in Tanzania

1/1/2020 - 12/31/2021

\$30,000

• Super NOVA Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Cost-effectiveness of transtibial prosthetic devices in Tanzania

06/01/2019 - 05/31/2020

\$10,000

Hellman Grant

A Pilot Randomized Controlled Trial to Evaluate Local Antibiotics for Open Tibia Fracture in Tanzania

06/01/2019 - 05/31/2020

\$50,000

OREF Career
 Development Grant

Pilot RCT to Evaluate Local Gentamicin for Tibia Fractures in Tanzania

11/1/2020-10/30/2023 \$223,340



Spenser Smith, PhD

• NIH NIDCR F32 DE027283 A132095

The Role of TGF-Beta Signaling and Mmps in Neural Crest Mediated Jaw Bone Remodeling

9/15/2018- 9/14/2021 \$198,774



Bobby Tay, MD

• NuVasive, Inc. A135518

2020-2021 Orthopaedic Spine Fellowship

8/1/2020-7/31/2021 \$30,000

OMeGA Medical Grants
 Association A134971

2020-2021 UCSF Dept of Orthopaedic Surgery Spine Fellowship

5/12/2020-5/11/2021

\$50,000

• NuVasive, Inc. A133100

NuVasive Spine Fellowship 2019-2020

8/1/2019-11/30/2020

\$60,000

• OMeGA Medical Grants Association A133117

UCSF Dept of Orthopaedic Surgery Spine Fellowship 2019-2020

8/1/2019-7/31/2020 \$15,000



Alexander Theologis, MD

• Innovasis, Inc. A132498

A Multi-center, Patient Outcome Registry for a Hydroxyapatite infused PEEK Interbody Fusion Device

9/1/2018-9/19/2021

\$20,000

• NSF CDMI (Center for Disruptive Musculoskeletal Innovations) funded project

Satellite rod configuration (in-line v. lateral) and screw type (monoaxial v. polyaxial) spanning a lumbar pedicle subtraction osteotomy (PSO): a biomechanical evaluation

11/01/2020 – 10/31/2021 \$40,000



Paul Toogood,MD

 NOVA Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Assessment of pedagogical preferences of orthopedic faculty and residents.

7/01/2020-6/30/2021 \$5.000



Zuzana Vavrušová, PhD Candidate

• NIH NIAMS P30AR075055 (CCMBM Junior Investigator Software Assistance Award)

11/20/2020

\$235



Hao-Hua Wu, MD

UCSF JOJ Ortho Resident
Grant

To understand the qualityof-life and economic impact of deep infection after open tibia fracturein Tanzania

7/1/2020-6/31/2021

\$5,000



Rosanna Wustrack, MD

• Musculoskeletal Tumor Society A134493

Identifying and Enhancing Host Immune Response in Adult Soft Tissue Sarcoma

7/1/2019-6/30/2021

\$25,000

Canadian Institutes of Health
Research SITE 36 A127607

Prophylactic Antibiotic Regimens in Tumor Surgery (PARITY), Subcontract, Clinical Trial

6/13/2016-3/31/2021

\$7,805

• James O. Johnston Immunotherapy Grant

Studying the Role of Immunotherapy in Treating Sarcomas

1/1/2014-1/1/2022 \$220,000



Jihee Yoon, DDS/PhD Candidate

• NIH NIAMS P30AR075055 (CCMBM Junior Investigator Software Assistance Award)

11/19/2020

\$108



Nathan Young, PhD

 NIH Natl Inst Dental & Craniofacial Res. R56DE029124 A135927

A Predictive Developmental Morphospace Model of Cleft Lip (Resubmission of P0535239 Dec 2018)

9/3/2020-8/31/2021

\$382,339



Alan Zhang, MD

• Arthroscopy Association of North America – Fellowship A135177

Arthroscopy/Sports Fellowship 2020-2021

8/1/2020-7/31/2021

\$10,400

• Arthroscopy Association of North America – Fellowship A133858

Arthroscopy/Sports Fellowship

8/1/2019- 7/31/2020 \$7.350

• Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, UCSF

Platelet-rich plasma for treatment of early osteoarthritis of the knee

7/01/2020-6/30/2021

\$25,000



Patricia Zheng, MD

• The Spine Intervention Society A132385

ATLAS - Application to Track Longitudinal outcomes After Spine interventions

8/1/2018-6/30/2021

\$24,978

Allergan Foundation
 A132233

Long-term outcomes of an Integrated Spine Service as compared to standard care for patients with chronic back pain

11/1/2018- 10/31/2020 \$10,000

Research Publications 2020

Adams M, Lotz JC, Diederich C. In silico feasibility assessment of extracorporeal delivery of low-intensity pulsed ultrasound to intervertebral discs within the lumbar spine. Phys Med Biol. 2020 Jul 03.

Adogwa O, Buchowski JM, Sielatycki JA, Shlykov MA, **Theologis AA**, Lin J, CreveCoeur T, Peters C, Riew KD. Improvements in Neck Pain and Disability Following C1-C2 Posterior Cervical Instrumentation and Fusion for Atlanto-Axial Osteoarthritis. World Neurosurg. 2020 07; 139:e496-e500.

Agarwalla A, Liu JN, Wu HH, Kalbian IL, Garcia GH, Shubin Stein BE. Return to Work Following Tibial Tubercle Osteotomy for Patellofemoral Osteoarthritis and Pain. Cartilage. 2020 Apr 22; 1947603520916544.

Agha O, Diaz A, **Davies M**, Kim HT, **Liu X, Feeley BT**. Rotator cuff tear degeneration and the role of fibro-adipogenic progenitors. Ann N Y Acad Sci. 2020 Jul 29.

Agha O, Mueller-Immergluck A, Liu M, Zhang H, **Theologis AA**, Clark A, **Kim HT, Liu X, Feeley BT**, **Bailey JF**. Intervertebral disc herniation effects on multifidus muscle composition and resident stem cell populations. JOR Spine. 2020 Jun; 3(2):e1091.

Agha O, **Rugg CM**, **Lansdown DA**, Ortiz S, Hettrich CM, Wolf BR, **Feeley BT**. Surgical Stabilization of Shoulder Instability in Patients With or Without a History of Seizure: A Comparative Analysis. Arthroscopy. 2020 Oct; 36(10):2664-2673.e3.

Albright PD, Ali SH, Jackson H, Haonga BT, Eliezer EN, **Morshed S**, **Shearer DW**. Delays to Surgery and Coronal Malalignment Are Associated with Reoperation after Open Tibia Fractures in Tanzania. Clin Orthop Relat Res. 2020 Aug; 478(8):1825-1835.

Albright PD, Ali SH, Jackson H, Haonga BT, Eliezer EN, **Morshed S, Shearer DW**. Delays to Surgery and Coronal Malalignment Are Associated with Reoperation after Open Tibia Fractures in Tanzania. Clin Orthop Relat Res. 2020 May 05.

Albright PD, MacKechnie MC, Roberts HJ, **Shearer DW**, Padilla Rojas LG, Segovia J, Quintero JE, Amadei R, Baldy Dos Reis F, Miclau T. Open Tibial Shaft Fractures: Treatment Patterns in Latin America. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 11 18; 102(22):e126.

Allahabadi S, Bryant JK, Mittal A, **Pandya NK**. Outcomes of Arthroscopic Surgical Treatment of Osteochondral Lesions of the Elbow in Pediatric and Adolescent Athletes. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Nov; 8(11):2325967120963054.

Allahabadi S, Hinman AD, Horton BH, Avins AL, **Coughlan MJ**, Ding DY. Risk Factors for Conversion of Hip Arthroscopy to Total Hip Arthroplasty: A Large Closed-Cohort Study. Arthrosc Sports Med Rehabil. 2020 Oct; 2(5):e599-e605.

Allahabadi S, Rubenstein WJ, **Lansdown DA, Feeley BT, Pandya NK**. Incidence of anterior cruciate ligament graft tears in high-risk populations: An analysis of professional athlete and pediatric populations. Knee. 2020 Oct; 27(5):1378-1384.

Allahabadi S, Amendola A, **Lau BC**. Optimizing Return to Play for Common and Controversial Foot and Ankle Sports Injuries. JBJS Rev. 2020 Dec;8(12):e20.00067.

Alliston T, Foucher KC, Frederick B, Hernandez CJ, latridis JC, Kozloff KM, Lewis KJ, Liu XS, Mercer DM, Ochia R, Queen RM, Rimnac CM, van der Meulen MCH, Westendorf JJ. The importance of diversity, equity, and inclusion in orthopedic research. J Orthop Res. 2020 Aug; 38(8):1661-1665.
Amanatullah DF, Lawson KA, Li Z, SooHoo NF, **Bini SA**, Huddleston JI. Risk Adjustment in the California Joint Replacement Registry: Is Patient Complexity Accurately Assessed in Academic Versus Nonacademic Hospitals? J Arthroplasty. 2020 Dec; 35(12):3437-3444.

Amara D, Mummaneni PV, **Burch S, Deviren V**, Ames CP, **Tay B, Berven SH**, Chou D. The impact of increasing interbody fusion levels at the fractional curve on lordosis, curve correction, and complications in adult patients with scoliosis. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Nov 13; 1-10.

Andrew K. Chan, Alexander Ballatori, Priya Nyayapati, Nikhil V. Mummaneni, **Dezba Coughlin**, Ellen Liebenberg, Fabrice A. Kulling, Nianli Zhang, Erik I. Waldorff, James T. Ryaby, **Jeffrey C. Lotz**. Pulsed Electromagnetic Fields (PEMF) Accelerate Sensorimotor Recovery Following Experimental Disc Herniation. Spine. 2020 Oct 22.

Androjna C, Yee CS, White CR, Waldorff EI, Ryaby JT, Zborowski M, **Alliston T**, Midura RJ. A comparison of alendronate to varying magnitude PEMF in mitigating bone loss and altering bone remodeling in skeletally mature osteoporotic rats. Bone. 2020 Nov 18; 115761.

Asif IM, **Chang CJ**, Diamond AB, Raukar N, Zaremski JL. Returning Athletes Back to High School Sports in the COVID-19 Era: Preparing for the Fall. Sports Health. 2020 Nov/Dec; 12(6):518-520.

Austin T. Fragomen, **Kristin S. Livingston, Sanjeev Sabharwal**. External Fixators for Deformity Correction. 2020 Jan 1; 107-126.

Ayesha Appa, Saki Takahashi, Isabel Rodriguez-Barraquer, Gabriel Chamie, **Aenor Sawyer**, Elias Duarte, Jill Hakim, Keirstinne Turcios, Joanna Vinden, Owen Janson, Aashish Manglik, Michael J Peluso, Steven G Deeks, Timothy J Henrich, Leonel Torres, Mary Rodgers, John Hackett, Charles Chiu, Diane Havlir, Bryan Greenhouse. Universal PCR and antibody testing demonstrate little to no transmission of SARS-CoV-2 in a rural community. Open Forum Infectious Diseases. 2020 Oct 30.

Bailey JF, Agarwal V, Zheng P, Smuck M, Fredericson M, Kennedy DJ, Krauss J. Digital Care for Chronic Musculoskeletal Pain: 10,000 Participant Longitudinal Cohort Study. J Med Internet Res. 2020 05 11; 22(5):e18250.

Bailey JF, Sparrey CJ, Williams FMK, Curran PF, **Lotz JC**, Kramer PA. The Effect of Parity on Age-Related Degenerative Changes in Sagittal Balance. Spine (Phila Pa 1976). 2020 Feb 15; 45(4):E210-E216.

Bailey KN, Nguyen J, Yee CS, Dole NS, **Dang A, Alliston T.** Mechanosensitive Control of Articular Cartilage and Subchondral Bone Homeostasis Requires Osteocytic TGFß Signaling. Arthritis Rheumatol.

Barker JP, Yang Y, Matz J, **Marmor MT, Morshed S.** The Iliopectineal Fascia: A Cadaveric Anatomical Study. J Orthop Trauma. 2020 Oct 19.

Barruet E, Garcia SM, Striedinger K, Wu J, Lee S, Byrnes L, Wong A, Xuefeng S, Tamaki S, **Brack AS**, Pomerantz JH. Functionally heterogeneous human satellite cells identified by single cell RNA sequencing. Elife. 2020 Apr 01; 9.

Barry JJ, Geary MB, Riesgo AM, Odum SM, Fehring TK, Springer BD. Irrigation and Debridement with Chronic Antibiotic Suppression Is as Effective as 2-Stage Exchange in Revision Total Knee Arthroplasty with Extensive Instrumentation. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 Oct 20.

Baumann AP, O'Neill C, Owens MC, Weber SC, Sivan S, D'Amico R, Carmody **S, Bini S, Sawyer AJ,** Lotz JC, Goel V, Dmitriev AE. FDA public workshop: Orthopaedic sensing, measuring, and advanced reporting technology (SMART) devices. J Orthop Res. 2020 Aug 22.

Bendich I, Halvorson RT, **Ward D**, Nevitt M. Predictors of a change in patient willingness to have Total knee arthroplasty: Insights from the osteoarthritis initiative. Knee. 2020 Jun; 27(3):667-675.

Bendich I, Rubenstein WJ, Cole BJ, **Ma CB**, **Feeley BT**, **Lansdown DA**. What Is the Appropriate Price for Platelet-Rich Plasma Injections for Knee Osteoarthritis? Cost-Effectiveness Analysis Based on Evidence From Level I Randomized Controlled Trials. Arthroscopy. 2020 07; 36(7):1983-1991.e1.

Bendich I, Zhang N, **Barry JJ, Ward DT**, Whooley MA, **Kuo AC**. Antibiotic-Laden Bone Cement Use and Revision Risk After Primary Total Knee Arthroplasty in U.S. Veterans. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 Nov 18; 102(22):1939-1947.

Bini SA, Schilling PL, Patel SP, Kalore NV, Ast MP, Maratt JD, Schuett DJ, Lawrie CM, Chung CC, Steele GD. Digital Orthopaedics: A Glimpse Into the Future in the Midst of a Pandemic. J Arthroplasty. 2020 Jul; 35(7S):S68-S73.

Bini SA, Schilling PL, Patel SP, Kalore NV, Ast MP, Maratt JD, Schuett DJ, Lawrie CM, Chung CC, Steele GD. Response to Letter to the Editor on Digital Orthopedics. A Glimpse Into the Future in the Midst of a Pandemic. J Arthroplasty. 2020 Oct; 35(10):3056.

Bini SA. Rethinking the Value of Computer-Assisted Surgery: Commentary on an article by Timothy D. Roberts, MBChB, et al.: Outcomes of Computer-Assisted Surgery Compared with Conventional Instrumentation in 19,221 Total Knee Arthroplasties. Results After a Mean of 4.5 Years of Follow-up. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 04 01; 102(7):e32.

Binler D, House LM, Mattie R, Saltychev M, **Nagao M**, Pekmeczi M, **Metz L, O'Neil C**, Shah V, McCormick ZL. The Reliability of a Grading System for Digital Subtraction Imaging Quality During Cervical Transforaminal Epidural Steroid Injection. Pain Med. 2020 Mar 13.

Bonnheim NB, Keaveny TM. Load-transfer in the human vertebral body following lumbar total disc arthroplasty: Effects of implant size and stiffness in axial compression and forward flexion. JOR Spine. 2020 Mar; 3(1):e1078.

Bonnheim NB, Van Citters DW, Ries MD, Pruitt LA. Oxidized Zirconium Components Maintain a Smooth Articular Surface Except Following Hip Dislocation. J Arthroplasty. 2020 Nov 04.

Braun BJ, Grimm B, Hanflik AM, **Marmor MT**, Richter PH, Sands AK, Sivananthan S. Finding NEEMO: towards organizing smart digital solutions in orthopaedic trauma surgery. EFORT Open Rev. 2020 Jul; 5(7):408-420.

Brodke DJ, **Morshed S.** Low Surgeon and Hospital Volume Increase Risk of Early Conversion to Total Knee Arthroplasty After Tibial Plateau Fixation. J Am Acad Orthop Surg. 2020 Apr 27.

Brophy RH, Wright RW, Huston LJ, Haas AK, Allen CR, Anderson AF, Cooper DE, DeBerardino TM, Dunn WR, Lantz BBA, Mann B, Spindler KP, Stuart MJ, Albright JP, Amendola AN, Andrish JT, Annunziata CC, Arciero RA, Bach BR, Baker CL, Bartolozzi AR, Baumgarten KM, Bechler JR, Berg JH, Bernas GA, Brockmeier SF, Bush-Joseph CA, Butler JBV, Campbell JD, Carey JL, Carpenter JE, Cole BJ, Cooper JM, Cox CL, Alexander Creighton R, Dahm DL, David TS, Flanigan DC, Frederick RW, Ganley TJ, Garofoli EA, Gatt CJ, Gecha SR, Giffin JR, Hame SL, Hannafin JA, Harner CD, Harris NL, Hechtman KS, Hershman EB, Hoellrich RG, Hosea TM, Johnson DC, Johnson TS, Jones MH, Kaeding CC, Kamath GV, Klootwyk TE, Levy BA, **Benjamin Ma C**, Peter Maiers G, Marx RG, Matava MJ, Mathien GM, McAllister DR, McCarty EC, McCormack RG, Miller BS, Nissen CW, O'Neill DF, Owens BD, Parker RD, Purnell ML, Ramappa AJ, Rauh MA, Rettig AC, Sekiya JK, Shea KG, Sherman OH, Li X, Slauterbeck JR, Smith MV, Spang JT, Svoboda LSJ, Taft TN, Tenuta JJ, Tingstad EM, Vidal AF, Viskontas DG, White RA, Williams JS, Wolcott ML, Wolf BR, York JJ. Rate of infection following revision anterior cruciate ligament reconstruction and associated patient- and surgeon-dependent risk factors: Retrospective results from MOON and MARS data collected from 2002 to 2011. J Orthop Res. 2020 Oct 01.

Brown AE, Saleh H, Naessig S, Pierce KE, Ahmad W, Bortz CA, Alas H, Chern I, Vasquez-Montes D, Ihejirika RC, Segreto FA, Haskel J, Kaplan DJ, Diebo BG, Gerling MC, Paulino CB, **Theologis A**, Lafage V, Janjua MB, Passias PG. Readmission in elective spine surgery: Will short stays be beneficial to patients. J Clin Neurosci. 2020 Aug; 78:170-174.

Brown TS, Bedard NA, Rojas EO, Anthony CA, Schwarzkopf R, Stambough JB, Nandi S, Prieto H, Parvizi J, **Bini SA**, Higuera CA, Piuzzi NS, Blankstein M, Wellman SS, Dietz MJ, Jennings JM, Dasa V. A BRIEF UPDATE ON THE EFFECT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON HIP AND KNEE ARTHROPLASTY PATIENTS IN THE UNITED STATES A Multicenter Update to a Previous Survey Study of Patients Postponed by the Pandemic. Arthroplast Today. 2020 Dec 03.

Buell TJ, Smith JS, Shaffrey CI, Kim HJ, Klineberg EO, Lafage V, Lafage R, Protopsaltis TS, Passias PG, Mundis GM, Eastlack RK, **Deviren V**, Kelly MP, Daniels AH, Gum JL, Soroceanu A, Hamilton DK, Gupta MC, Burton DC, Hostin RA, Kebaish KM, Hart RA, Schwab FJ, Bess S, Ames CP. Multicenter assessment of surgical outcomes in adult spinal deformity patients with severe global coronal malalignment: determination of target coronal realignment threshold. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Dec 04; 1-14.

Burke JF, Chan AK, Mayer RR, Garcia JH, Pennicooke B, Mann M, **Berven SH**, Chou D, Mummaneni PV. Clamshell thoracotomy for en bloc resection of a 3-level thoracic chordoma: technical note and operative video. Neurosurg Focus. 2020 09; 49(3):E16.

Butte Z, Tanaka K, **Andaya V, Zimel M, O'Donnell RJ, Wustrack R.** Risk of endoprosthetic infection and impact of health-related quality of life in patients with osteosarcoma and giant cell tumor of bone; a retrospective case-control study. Annals of Joint. 2020; 5(27):1-10. Annals of Joint

Carlin Lee, Mengyao Liu, Obiajulu Agha, **Hubert T. Kim, Xuhui Liu, Brian T. Feeley**. Beige Fibro-Adipogenic Progenitors Reduce Muscle Degeneration in a Mouse Model of Delayed Repair for Massive Rotator Cuff Tears. Journal of Shoulder and Elbow Surgery. 2020 Apr 1; 29(4):e153-e155.

Carrillo LA, **Sabharwal S.** Pediatric Orthopaedic Observerships in North America for International Surgeons: The Visitor's Perspective. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 Dec 17.

Carrillo LA, Segarra B, **Sabharwal S.** Clinical Observership Opportunities in North America for International Orthopaedic Surgeons. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 Jun 17; 102(12):e60.

Chahal J, **Lansdown DA**, Davey A, Davis AM, Cole BJ. The Clinically Important Difference and Patient Acceptable Symptomatic State for Commonly Used Patient-Reported Outcomes After Knee Cartilage Repair. Am J Sports Med. 2020 Nov 23; 363546520969883.

Challa S, Agarwal-Harding KJ, Levy P, Barr-Walker J, **Sabatini CS**. Supracondylar humerus fractures in low- and lower middle-income countries: a scoping review of the current epidemiology, treatment modalities, and outcomes. Int Orthop. 2020 11; 44(11):2443-2448.

Chan AK, Lau D, Osorio JA, Yue JK, **Berven SH, Burch S**, Hu SS, Mummaneni PV, **Deviren V**, Ames CP. Asymmetric Pedicle Subtraction Osteotomy for Adult Spinal Deformity with Coronal Imbalance: Complications, Radiographic and Surgical Outcomes. Oper Neurosurg (Hagerstown). 2020 02 01; 18(2):209-216.

Chang CC, Chou D, Pennicooke B, Rivera J, Tan LA, **Berven S,** Mummaneni PV. Long-term radiographic outcomes of expandable versus static cages in transforaminal lumbar interbody fusion. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Nov 13; 1-10.

Chang CJ, Fehling KB, Selby EA. Sexual Minority Status and Psychological Risk for Suicide Attempt: A Serial Multiple Mediation Model of Social Support and Emotion Regulation. Front Psychiatry. 2020; 11:385.

Goldbach JT. Greater Minority Stress is Associated with Lower Intentions to Disclose Suicidal Thoughts among LGBTQ Youth. Arch Suicide Res. 2020 Sep 24; 1-15.

Chang CJ, Putukian M, Aerni G, Diamond AB, Hong ES, Ingram YM, Reardon CL, Wolanin AT. American Medical Society for Sports Medicine Position Statement: Mental Health Issues and Psychological Factors in Athletes: Detection, Management, Effect on Performance, and Prevention-Executive Summary. Clin J Sport Med. 2020 03; 30(2):91-95.

Chen, W.S.; Lometti, M.; **Wustrack, R.L.; Zimel, M.N.; O'Donnell, R.J.;** Horvai, A.E.; Cho, S.J.; Okimoto, R.A.; Jahan, T.M.; Gottschalk, A.R.; and Braunstein, S.E.: Intraoperative radiotherapy without external beam radiotherapy in the management of primary soft tissue sarcomas of the extremities. Intl. J. Rad. Onc. Biol. Phys., 108(3S):e5, 2020.

Chen CL, Jeffery MM, Krebs EE, Thiels CA, Schumacher MA, Schwartz AJ, Thombley R, Finlayson E, Rodriguez-Monguio R, **Ward D**, Dudley RA. Long-Term Trends in Postoperative Opioid Prescribing, 1994 to 2014. J Am Acad Orthop Surg Glob Res Rev. 2020 Jan; 4(1).

Chen E, **Pandya NK**. Failure of Surgery for Osteochondral Injuries of the Elbow in the Pediatric and Adolescent Population. Curr Rev Musculoskelet Med. 2020 Feb; 13(1):50-57.

Chen JV, Tanaka KS, Dang ABC, **Dang A.** Identifying a commercially-available 3D printing process that minimizes model distortion after annealing and autoclaving and the effect of steam sterilization on mechanical strength. 3D Print Med. 2020 Apr 15; 6(1):9.

Chen WS, Lometti M, **Wustrack RL, Zimel MN, O'Donnell RJ**, Horvai AE, Cho SJ, Okimoto RA, Jahan TM, Gottschalk AR, Braunstein SE. Intraoperative radiotherapy without external beam radiotherapy in the management of primary soft tissue sarcomas of the extremities. Intl J Rad Biol Physics. 2020; 108(3):e5. Cheung EC, DiLallo M, Feeley BT, Lansdown DA. Osteoarthritis and ACL Reconstruction-Myths and Risks. Curr Rev Musculoskelet Med. 2020 Feb; 13(1):115-122.

Cheung EC, Hodax JD, Hsu WK, Williams SK, Smith HE, **Lansdown DA, Feeley BT.** Platelet-Rich Plasma, Bone Morphogenetic Protein, and Stem Cell Therapies. Instr Course Lect. 2020; 69:273-288.

Chew, J.; Lloyd, S.A.; Okimoto, R.A.; Sabnis, A.; Nakakura, E.; Corvera, C.; **Zimel, M.N.**; Horvai, A.E.; Cho, S.J.; **Wustrack, R.L.**; Gottschalk, A.R.; **O'Donnell, R.J.**; Jahan, T.M.; and Braunstein, S.E. Outcomes of elderly patients with soft tissue sarcoma of the extremities. Intl. J. Rad. Onc. Biol. Phys., 108(3S):e6, 2020.

Chokotho L, Wu HH, **Shearer D**, Lau BC, Mkandawire N, Gjertsen JE, Hallan G, Young S. Outcome at 1 year in patients with femoral shaft fractures treated with intramedullary nailing or skeletal traction in a low-income country: a prospective observational study of 187 patients in Malawi. Acta Orthop. 2020 Jul 23; 1-8.

Chu D, Nguyen A, Smith SS, Vavrusova Z, **Schneider RA.** Stable integration of an optimized inducible promoter system enables spatiotemporal control of gene expression throughout avian development. Biol Open. 2020 Oct 06; 9(10).

Clark D, Brazina S, Yang F, Hu D, Hsieh CL, Niemi EC, **Miclau T**, Nakamura MC, **Marcucio R**. Age-related changes to macrophages are detrimental to fracture healing in mice. Aging Cell. 2020 03; 19(3):e13112.

Clark JP, **Diab M.** Neurophysiologic Detection of Spinal Cord Ischemia During Anterior Vertebral Tethering. Spine (Phila Pa 1976). 2020 Dec 15; 45(24):E1703-E1706.

Cogan C, Liu T, **Toogood P.** An Assessment of Normal Tibiofibular Anatomy on Lateral Fluoroscopy. Foot Ankle Int. 2020 07; 41(7):866-869.

Cogan CJ, Kandemir U. Role of peripheral nerve block in pain control for the management of acute traumatic orthopaedic injuries in the emergency department: Diagnosis-based treatment guidelines. Injury. 2020 Jul; 51(7):1422-1425.

Cortez XC, Freshman RD, **Feeley BT, Ma CB, Lansdown DA, Zhang AL.** An Evaluation of Self-Reported Publications in Orthopaedic Sports Medicine Fellowship Applications. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 May; 8(5):2325967120920782.

Crawford MD, Hellwinkel JE, Aman Z, Akamefula R, Singleton JT, **Bahney C**, LaPrade RF. Microvascular Anatomy and Intrinsic Gene Expression of Menisci From Young Adults. Am J Sports Med. 2020 11; 48(13):3147-3153.

Cregar WM, Beletsky A, Cvetanovich GL, **Feeley BT**, Nicholson GP, Verma NN. Cost Effective Analyses in Shoulder Arthroplasty: A Critical Review Utilizing the QHES. J Shoulder Elbow Surg. 2020 Aug 18.

Cronin KJ, Wolf BR, Magnuson JA, Jacobs CA, Ortiz S, Bishop JY, Bollier MJ, Baumgarten KM, Bravman JT, Brophy RH, Cox CL, **Feeley BT**, Grant JA, Jones GL, Kuhn JE, **Benjamin Ma C**, Marx RG, McCarty EC, Miller BS, Seidl AJ, Smith MV, Wright RW, **Zhang AL**, Hettrich CM. The Prevalence and Clinical Implications of Comorbid Back Pain in Shoulder Instability: A Multicenter Orthopaedic Outcomes Network (MOON) Shoulder Instability Cohort Study. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Feb; 8(2):2325967119894738.

Cunningham BP, Ali A, Parikh HR, Heare A, Blaschke B, Zaman S, Montalvo R, Reahl B, Rotuno G, Kark J, Bender M, Miller B, Basmajian H, McLemore R, **Shearer DW**, Obremskey W, Sagi C, O'Toole RV. Immediate weight bearing as tolerated (WBAT) correlates with a decreased length of stay post intramedullary fixation for subtrochanteric fractures: a multicenter retrospective cohort study. Eur J Orthop Surg Traumatol. 2020 Aug 14.

Curran PF, Albright P, Ibrahim JM, Ali SH, **Shearer DW**, Sabatini CS. Practice Patterns for Management of Pediatric Femur Fractures in Low- and Middle-Income Countries. J Pediatr Orthop. 2020 May/Jun; 40(5):251-258.

Dang DY, **Coughlin MJ**. Mallet Toes, Hammertoes, Neuromas, and Metatarsophalangeal Joint Instability: 40Â Years of Development in Forefoot Surgery. Indian J Orthop. 2020 Feb; 54(1):3-13.

Dang DY, Flint WW, Haytmanek CT, Ackerman KJ, **Coughlin MJ,** Hirose CB. Locked Dorsal Compression Plate Arthrodesis for Degenerative Arthritis of the Midfoot. J Foot Ankle Surg. 2020 Nov - Dec; 59(6):1171-1176.

Daniella M. Cordero, **Theodore A. Miclau**, Alexandra V. Paul, **Saam Morshed**, Claude Martin, **David W. Shearer.** The global burden of musculoskeletal injury in low and lower-middle income countries. OTA International. 2020 Jun 1; 3(2):e062.

David C. Sing, Paul Tornetta, **Erik N. Hansen**. The Role of Cannabis in Orthopedic Surgery. SN Comprehensive Clinical Medicine. 2020 Nov 1; 2(11):2360-2367.

Davies MR, Allahabadi S, Diab TE, Freshman RD, **Pandya NK, Feeley BT, Lansdown DA**. Sulcus-Deepening Trochleoplasty as an Isolated or Combined Treatment Strategy for Patellar Instability and Trochlear Dysplasia: A Systematic Review. Arthrosc Sports Med Rehabil. 2020 Oct; 2(5):e661-e669.

Demetri L, Donnelley CA, MacKechnie MC, **Toogood P.** Comparison of Case-Based Learning and Traditional Lectures in an Orthopedic Residency Anatomy Course. J Surg Educ. 2020 Sep 01.

Demetri L, Young C, Patterson JT, **Kandemir U, Morshed S, Immerman I, Lee NH.** Management of Metadiaphyseal Proximal Radius Fractures. Tech Hand Up Extrem Surg. 2020 Nov 20.

Dole NS, Yee CS, Mazur CM, Acevedo C, Alliston T. TGF? Regulation of Perilacunar/Canalicular Remodeling Is Sexually Dimorphic. J Bone Miner Res. 2020 Aug; 35(8):1549-1561.

Donnelley CA, von Kaeppler EP, Roberts HJ, Haonga B, **Shearer DW, Morshed S**. Monoplanar external fixation of comminuted open tibial shaft fractures predicts loss of alignment by one year compared to a statically locked intramedullary SIGN nail. Injury. 2020 Oct 17.

Donnelley CA, Won N, Roberts HJ, von Kaeppler EP, Albright PD, Woolley PM, Haonga B, **Shearer DW, Sabharwal S.** Resident Rotations in Low- and Middle-Income Countries: Motivations, Impact, and Host Perspectives. JB JS Open Access. 2020 Jul-Sep; 5(3).

Duan PG, Mummaneni PV, **Berven SH**, Mayer R, Ruan HB, Chang CC, Chou D. Revision Surgery for Adjacent Segment Degeneration after Fusion for Lumbar Spondylolisthesis: is there a Correlation with Roussouly Type? Spine (Phila Pa 1976). 2020 Sep 24.

Duan PG, Mummaneni PV, Guinn JMV, Rivera J, **Berven SH**, Chou D. Is the Goutallier grade of multifidus fat infiltration associated with adjacent-segment degeneration after lumbar spinal fusion? J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Oct 30; 1-6.

Duan PG, Mummaneni PV, Rivera J, Guinn JMV, Wang M, Xi Z, Li B, Wu HH, Ames CP, **Burch S, Berven SH**, Chou D. The association between lower Hounsfield units of the upper instrumented vertebra and proximal junctional kyphosis in adult spinal deformity surgery with a minimum 2-year follow-up. Neurosurg Focus. 2020 08; 49(2):E7.

Duan PG, Mummaneni PV, Wang M, Chan AK, Li B, Mayer R, **Berven SH**, Chou D. Obesity may be associated with adjacent-segment degeneration after single-level transforaminal lumbar interbody fusion in spinopelvic-mismatched patients with a minimum 2-year follow-up. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Oct 09; 1-6.

Dudli S, Ballatori A, Bay-Jensen AC, McCormick ZL, **O'Neill CW, Demir-Deviren S, Krug R**, Heggli I, Juengel A, Karppinen J, Brunner F, **Farshad M**, Distler O, **Lotz JC**, **Fields AJ**. Serum Biomarkers for Connective Tissue and Basement Membrane Remodeling are Associated with Vertebral Endplate Bone Marrow Lesions as Seen on MRI (Modic Changes). Int J Mol Sci. 2020 May 27; 21(11).

Dunne KF, Knesek M, Tjong VK, Riederman BD, **Cogan CJ**, Baker HP, Kahlenberg CA, Gryzlo S, Terry MA. Arthroscopic treatment of type II superior labral anterior to posterior (SLAP) lesions in a younger population: minimum 2-year outcomes are similar between SLAP repair and biceps tenodesis. Knee Surg Sports Traumatol Arthrosc. 2020 Apr 06.

Dylan S. Isaacson, Kara S. Tanaka, Nigel K. Wang, Dora A.R. Storelli, **Lisa L. Lattanza**. The Use of Photogrammetry for Interactive, Three-Dimensional Modeling of an Open Reduction and Internal Fixation of the Elbow. JAAOS Global Research and Reviews. 2020 Jan 1; 4(11):e20.00080.

Ellis HB, Li Y, Bae DS, Kalish LA, Wilson PL, Pennock AT, Nepple JJ, Willimon SC, Spence DD, **Pandya NK**, Kocher MS, Edmonds EW, Farley FA, Gordon JE, Kelly DM, Busch MT, Sabatini CS, Heyworth BE. Descriptive Epidemiology of Adolescent Clavicle Fractures: Results From the FACTS (Function after Adolescent Clavicle Trauma and Surgery) Prospective, Multicenter Cohort Study. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 May; 8(5):2325967120921344.

Fan B, Zhao C, **Sabharwal S.** Risk factors for failure of temporary hemiepiphysiodesis in Blount disease: a systematic review. J Pediatr Orthop B. 2020 Jan; 29(1):65-72.

Feeley BT, Liu M, **Ma CB**, Agha O, Aung M, Lee C, **Liu X**. Human Rotator Cuff Tears Have an Endogenous, Inducible Stem Cell Source Capable of Improving Muscle Quality and Function After Rotator Cuff Repair. Am J Sports Med. 2020 09; 48(11):2660-2668.

Firoozabadi R, Kovalenko B, **Toogood P.** Does Implant Removal Across the Sacroiliac Joint ImprovePain and Outcomes? J Orthop Trauma. 2020 Jun; 34(6):307-309.

Flores SE, Chambers CC, Borak KR, **Zhang AL**. Is There a Gender Gap in Outcomes After Hip Arthroscopy for Femoroacetabular Impingement? Assessment of Clinically Meaningful Improvements in a Prospective Cohort. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Jul; 8(7):2325967119900561.

Forsythe B, Patel BH, **Lansdown DA**, Agarwalla A, Kunze KN, Lu Y, Puzzitiello RN, Verma NN, Cole BJ, LaPrade R, Inoue N, Chahla J. Dynamic Three-Dimensional Computed Tomography Mapping of Isometric Posterior Cruciate Ligament Attachment Sites on the Tibia and Femur: Single vs Double Bundle Analysis. Arthroscopy. 2020 Jun 15.

Frantz TL, Everhart JS, Cvetanovich GL, Neviaser A, Jones GL, Hettrich CM, Wolf BR, Baumgarten KM, Bollier MJ, Bravman JT, Kuhn JE, Ma CB, Marx RG, McCarty EC, Ortiz SF, **Zhang AL**, Bishop JY. Are Patients Who Undergo the Latarjet Procedure Ready to Return to Play at 6 Months? A Multicenter Orthopaedic Outcomes Network (MOON) Shoulder Group Cohort Study. Am J Sports Med. 2020 03; 48(4):923-930.

Frantz TL, Everhart JS, Cvetanovich GL, Neviaser A, Jones GL, Hettrich CM, Wolf BR, Bishop J, Miller B, Brophy RH, **Ma CB**, Cox CL, Baumgarten KM, Feeley BT, Zhang AL, McCarty EC, Kuhn JE. What Are the Effects of Remplissage on 6-Month Strength and Range of Motion After Arthroscopic Bankart Repair? A Multicenter Cohort Study. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Feb; 8(2):2325967120903283.

Freshman RD, Cortez XC, Kim HT, **Feeley BT**, **Zhang AL**, **Lansdown DA**. The Outcomes of Submitted Publications From Applicants to Orthopaedic Surgery Residency Programs: A Retrospective Review of 1303 Residency Applications. J Am Acad Orthop Surg Glob Res Rev. 2020 Jul 20;4(7):e20.00112.

Flores SE, Chambers CC, Borak KR, **Zhang AL**. Is There a Gender Gap in Outcomes After Hip Arthroscopy for Femoroacetabular Impingement? Assessment of Clinically Meaningful Improvements in a Prospective Cohort. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Jul; 8(7):2325967119900561.

Forsythe B, Patel BH, **Lansdown DA**, Agarwalla A, Kunze KN, Lu Y, Puzzitiello RN, Verma NN, Cole BJ, LaPrade R, Inoue N, Chahla J. Dynamic Three-Dimensional Computed Tomography Mapping of Isometric Posterior Cruciate Ligament Attachment Sites on the Tibia and Femur: Single vs Double Bundle Analysis. Arthroscopy. 2020 Jun 15.

Frantz TL, Everhart JS, Cvetanovich GL, Neviaser A, Jones GL, Hettrich CM, Wolf BR, Baumgarten KM, Bollier MJ, Bravman JT, Kuhn JE, Ma CB, Marx RG, McCarty EC, Ortiz SF, **Zhang AL**, Bishop JY. Are Patients Who Undergo the Latarjet Procedure Ready to Return to Play at 6 Months? A Multicenter Orthopaedic Outcomes Network (MOON) Shoulder Group Cohort Study. Am J Sports Med. 2020 03; 48(4):923-930.

Frantz TL, Everhart JS, Cvetanovich GL, Neviaser A, Jones GL, Hettrich CM, Wolf BR, Bishop J, Miller B, Brophy RH, **Ma CB**, Cox CL, Baumgarten KM, Feeley BT, Zhang AL, McCarty EC, Kuhn JE. What Are the Effects of Remplissage on 6-Month Strength and Range of Motion After Arthroscopic Bankart Repair? A Multicenter Cohort Study. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Feb; 8(2):2325967120903283.

Freshman RD, Cortez XC, Kim HT, **Feeley BT**, **Zhang AL**, **Lansdown DA**. The Outcomes of Submitted Publications From Applicants to Orthopaedic Surgery Residency Programs: A Retrospective Review of 1303 Residency Applications. J Am Acad Orthop Surg Glob Res Rev. 2020 Jul 20;4(7):e20.00112.

Friedman JM, You JS, Hodax JD, Aung MS, **Feeley BT**, **Zhang AL**, **Ma CB**, **Lansdown DA**. Patellar tendon reconstruction with hamstring autograft for the treatment of chronic irreparable patellar tendon injuries. Knee. 2020 Nov 13; 27(6):1841-1847.

Garcia S, **Pandya NK.** Anterior Cruciate Ligament Re-tear and Revision Reconstruction in the Skeletally Immature Athlete. Curr Rev Musculoskelet Med. 2020 Jun; 13(3):369-378.

Gausden EB, Brusalis CM, Qudsi RA, **Swarup I**, Fu M, Dodwell E, Fabricant PD. Efficacy of antifibrinolytics in pediatric orthopedic surgery: a systematic review and meta-analysis. J Pediatr Orthop 2020 Jan; 29(1):97-104.

Ghogawala Z, Kurpad S, Falavigna A, Groff MW, Sciubba DM, Wu JC, Park P, **Berven S**, Hoh DJ, Bisson EF, Steinmetz MP, Wang MC, Chou D, Sansur CA, Smith JS, Tumialan LM. Editorial. COVID-19 and spinal surgery. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Apr 17; 1-3.

Glasbey, J.C.; Neopgodiev, D.; Simoes, J.F.F.; et al. Elective cancer surgery in COVID-19–free surgical pathways during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic: An international, multicenter, comparative cohort study. J. Clin. Onc., 39(1):66-78, 2020.

Gomez AV, Ma CB, **Feeley BT, Lansdown DA.** Surgical Rotator Cuff Muscle Biopsies: Are They Representative of Overall Muscle Quality? J Shoulder Elbow Surg. 2020 Nov 25.

Gornitzky AL, Kim AE, O'Donnell JM, **Swarup I.** Diagnosis and Management of Osteomyelitis in Children: A Critical Analysis Review. JBJS Rev. 2020 Jun; 8(6):e1900202.

Grace TR, Choo KJ, Patterson JT, Khanna K, **Feeley BT**, **Zhang AL**. A Review of Inpatient Opioid Consumption and Discharge Prescription Patterns After Orthopaedic Procedures. J Am Acad Orthop Surg. 2020 Apr 01; 28(7):279-286.

Grace TR, Tsay EL, Roberts HJ, **Vail TP**, **Ward DT**. Staged Bilateral Total Knee Arthroplasty: Increased Risk of Recurring Complications. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 Feb 19; 102(4):292-297.

Gutierrez LB, Link TM, Horvai AE, Joseph GB, **O'Donnell RJ**, Motamedi D. Secondary aneurysmal bone cysts and associated primary lesions: imaging features of 49 cases. Clin Imaging. 2020 Jun; 62:23-32.

Habib M, Horne DA, Hussein K, **Coughlin D**, Waldorff EI, Zhang N, Ryaby JT, **Lotz JC.** Magnetic Nanoparticles Synergize with Pulsed Magnetic Fields to Stimulate Osteogenesis In Vitro. Tissue Eng Part A 2020 Sep 18.

Haddad AF, Ames CP, Safaee M, **Deviren V**, Lau D. The Effect of Systemic Tranexamic Acid on Hypercoagulable Complications and Perioperative Outcomes Following Three-Column Osteotomy for Adult Spinal Deformity. Global Spine J. 2020 Sep 24; 2192568220953812. Haffner-Luntzer M, Weber B, Lam C, Fischer V, Lackner I, Ignatius A, Kalbitz M, **Marcucio RS, Miclau T.**

A novel mouse model to study fracture healing of the proximal femur. J Orthop Res. 2020 Oct; 38(10):2131-2138.

Hagen MS, Allahabadi S, **Zhang AL**, **Feeley BT**, Grace T, **Ma CB**. A randomized single-blinded trial of early rehabilitation versus immobilization after reverse total shoulder arthroplasty. J Shoulder Elbow Surg. 2020 Mar; 29(3):442-450.

Haonga BT, Liu M, Albright P, Challa ST, Ali SH, Lazar AA, Eliezer EN, **Shearer DW, Morshed S.** Intramedullary Nailing Versus External Fixation in the Treatment of Open Tibial Fractures in Tanzania: Results of a Randomized Clinical Trial. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 May 20; 102(10):896-905.

Harris AHS, **Kuo AC**, Bowe TR, Manfredi L, Lalani NF, Giori NJ. Can Machine Learning Methods Produce Accurate and Easy-to-Use Preoperative Prediction Models of One-Year Improvements in Pain and Functioning After Knee Arthroplasty? J Arthroplasty. 2020 Jul 20.

Heather A. Richbourg, Alexa Saliou, Jay Devine, Rebecca Green, Meike Hoffmeister, Stefanie Oess, Benedikt Hallgrimsson, **Ralph Marcucio**. Mapping the Multi-Modal Distribution of Craniofacial Phenotypes in NOSIP Mutants. The FASEB Journal. 2020 Apr 1; 34(S1):1-1.

Hellwinkel JE, **Miclau T**, Provencher MT, **Bahney CS**, Working ZM. The Life of a Fracture: Biologic Progression, Healing Gone Awry, and Evaluation of Union. JBJS Rev. 2020 Aug; 8(8):e1900221.

Hendow J, Beschloss A, **Cazzulino A**, Lombardi J, Louie P, Milby AH, Pugely A, Ozturk A, Ludwig S, Saifi C. Change in Rates of Primary Atlantoaxial Spinal Fusion Surgeries in the United States (1993-2015). Journal of Neurosurgery Spine, January 2020.

Hettrich CM, Zacharias A, Ortiz SF, Westgate P, Wolf BR, Jacobs C, Baumgarten KM, Bishop JY, Bollier MJ, Bravman JT, Brophy RH, Cox CL, **Feeley BT**, Grant JA, Jones GL, Kuhn JE, **Ma CB**, Marx RG, McCarty EC, Miller BS, Neviaser AS, Seidl AJ, Smith MV, Wright RW, **Zhang AL.** Are there Racial Differences between Patients Undergoing Surgery for Shoulder Instability? Data from the Multicenter Orthopaedic Outcomes Network (MOON) Shoulder Instability Group. J Shoulder Elbow Surg. 2020 Nov 06.

Holler JT, MacKechnie MC, Albright PD, **Morshed S, Shearer DW**, Terry MJ. The Impact of Inadequate Soft-tissue Coverage following Severe Open Tibia Fractures in Tanzania. Plast Reconstr Surg Glob Open. 2020 Dec 21;8(12):e3272.

Hoogervorst P, **Shearer DW, Miclau T.** The Burden of High-Energy Musculoskeletal Trauma in High-Income Countries. World J Surg. 2020 04; 44(4):1033-1038.

Hoogervorst P, Chopra A, **Working ZM**, El Naga AN, Verdonschot N, Hannink G. Measurement of Midshaft Clavicle Vertical Displacement is Not Influenced by Radiographic Projection. JSES Open Access. 2020 Feb 13.

Hughes MS, **Swarup I,** Makarewich CA, Williams BA, Talwar D, Cahill PJ, Flynn JM, Anari JB. Expert Consensus for Early Onset Scoliosis Surgery. J Pediatr Orthop. 2020 Aug; 40(7):e621-e628.

Hung NJ, Darevsky DM, **Pandya NK.** Pediatric and Adolescent Shoulder Instability: Does Insurance Status Predict Delays in Care, Outcomes, and Complication Rate? Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Oct; 8(10):2325967120959330.

Ishaan Swarup, Michael S. Hughes, Alejandro Cazzulino, David A. Spiegel, Apurva S. Shah. Open Reduction and Suture Fixation of Acute Sternoclavicular Fracture-Dislocations in Children. JBJS Essential Surgical Techniques. 2020 Jan 1; 10(3):e19.00074-e19.00074.

Chew, J, S.A. Lloyd, R.A. Okimoto, A. Sabnis, E. Nakakura, C. Corvera, **M.N. Zimel**, A.E. Horvai, S.J. Cho, **R.L. Wustrack**, A.R. Gottschalk, **R.J. O'Donnell**, T.M. Jahan, S.E. Braunstein. Outcomes of Elderly Patients with Soft Tissue Sarcoma of the Extremities. International Journal of Radiation Oncology and Biology and Physics. 2020 Nov 1; 108(3):e6.

J. Norgrove Penny, **Coleen S. Sabatini**, John Ekure, David A. Spiegel, Hugh G. Watts. Post-injection Injuries and Polio. 2020 Jan 1; 437-453.

J. Norgrove Penny, Coleen S. Sabatini. Rickets and Angular Bone Deformity. 2020 Jan 1; 67-72.

Jain D, Durand W, **Burch S**, Daniels A, **Berven S**. Machine Learning for Predictive Modeling of 90-day Readmission, Major Medical Complication, and Discharge to a Facility in Patients Undergoing Long Segment Posterior Lumbar Spine Fusion. Spine. 2020 Aug 15; 45(16):1151-1160.

Jain D, Durand W, Shaw JD, **Burch S, Deviren V, Berven S.** The Impact of Obesity on Risk Factors for Adverse Outcomes in Patients Undergoing Elective Posterior Lumbar Spine Fusion. Spine. 2020 Nov 10.

Jastifer JR, Gustafson PA, Silva LF, Noffsinger S, **Coughlin MJ**. Nitinol, Stainless Steel, and Titanium Kirschner Wire Durability. Foot Ankle Spec. 2020 Apr 26; 1938640020914677.

Jay Devine, Jose D. Aponte, David C. Katz, Wei Liu, Lucas D. Lo Vercio, Nils D. Forkert, **Ralph Marcucio**, Christopher J. Percival, Benedikt Hallgrimsson. A Registration and Deep Learning Approach to Automated Landmark Detection for Geometric Morphometrics. Evolutionary Biology. 2020 Sep 1; 47(3):246-259.

Jhaveri K, Chang MT, Juric D, Saura C, Gambardella V, Melnyk A, Patel MR, Ribrag V, **Ma CB**, Aljumaily R, Bedard PL, Sachdev JC, Dunn L, Won HH, Bond J, Jones S, Savage HM, Scaltriti M, Wilson TR, Wei MC, Hyman DM. Phase I Basket Study of Taselisib, an Isoform-Selective PI3K Inhibitor, in Patients with PIK3CA-Mutant Cancers. Clin Cancer Res. 2020 Nov 04.

Joseph T. Patterson, Patrick D. Albright, J. Hunter Jackson, Edmund N. Eliezer, Billy T. Haonga, **Saam Morshed, David W. Shearer.** Travel barriers, unemployment, and external fixation predict loss to follow-up after surgical management of lower extremity fractures in Dar es Salaam, Tanzania. OTA International. 2020 Mar 1; 3(1):e061.

Joshi RS, Lau D, Haddad AF, **Deviren V**, Ames CP. Risk factors for determining length of intensive care unit and hospital stays following correction of cervical deformity: evaluation of early severe adverse events. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Oct 23; 1-12.

Justin D. Krogue, Kaiyang V. Cheng, Kevin M. Hwang, **Paul Toogood**, **Eric G. Meinberg, Erik J. Geiger**, **Musa Zaid**, Kevin C. McGill, Rina Patel, Jae Ho Sohn, Alexandra Wright, Bryan F. Darger, Kevin A. Padrez, Eugene Ozhinsky, Sharmila Majumdar, Valentina Pedoia. Automatic Hip Fracture Identification and Functional Subclassification with Deep Learning. Radiology Artificial Intelligence. 2020 Mar 1; 2(2):e190023.

Kanthawang T, Lee A, Baal JD, Joseph GB, **Vail T**, Link TM, Patel R. Predicting outcomes in patients undergoing intra-articular corticosteroid hip injections. Skeletal Radiol. 2020 Nov 27.

Katz DC, Aponte JD, Liu W, Green RM, Mayeux JM, Pollard KM, Pomp D, Munger SC, Murray SA, Roseman CC, Percival CJ, Cheverud J, **Marcucio RS**, Hallgrimsson B. Facial shape and allometry quantitative trait locus intervals in the Diversity Outbred mouse are enriched for known skeletal and facial development genes. PLoS One. 2020; 15(6):e0233377.

Keyt LK, **Tangtiphaiboontana J**, Turner TW, Dines JS, Knudsen ML, Camp CL. Revision Medial Ulnar Collateral Ligament Reconstruction in Baseball Pitchers: Review of Epidemiology, Surgical Techniques, and Outcomes. Curr Rev Musculoskelet Med. 2020 Jun; 13(3):361-368.

Kimmel JC, Hwang AB, Scaramozza A, Marshall WF, **Brack AS**. Aging induces aberrant state transition kinetics in murine muscle stem cells. Development. 2020 May 05; 147(9).

Klineberg EO, Wick JB, Lafage R, Lafage V, Pellise F, Haddad S, Yilgor C, Nunez-Pereira S, Gupta M, Smith JS, Shaffrey C, Schwab F, Ames C, Bess S, Lewis S, Lenke LG, **Berven S**. Development and Validation of a Multi-Domain Surgical Complication Classification System for Adult Spinal Deformity. Spine (Phila Pa 1976). 2020 Nov 04.

Koh J, Tornetta P, Walker B, Jones C, Sharmaa T, Sems S, Ringenbach K, Boateng H, Bellevue K, Firoozabadi R, Spitler C, Saxena S, Cannada L, Borade A, Horwitz D, Buck JS, Bosse M, Westberg JR, Schmidt A, Kempton L, Newcomb E, Marcantonio A, Delarosa M, Krause P, Gudeman A, Mullis B, Alhoukail A, Leighton R, Cortez A, **Morshed S**, Tieszer C, Sanders D, Patel S, Mir HR. What is the Real Rate of Radial Nerve Injury After Humeral Nonunion Surgery? J Orthop Trauma. 2020 Aug; 34(8):441-446.

Koontz JS, Mountjoy M, Abbott KE, Aron CM, Basile KC, Carlson CT, **Chang CJ**, Diamond AB, Dugan SA, Hainline B, Herring SA, Hopkins BE, Joy EA, Judge JP, LaBotz M, Matuszak J, McDavis CJ, Myers RA, Nattiv A, Tanji JL, Wagner J, Roberts WO. Sexual Violence in Sport: American Medical Society for Sports Medicine Position Statement. Sports Health. 2020 Jul/Aug; 12(4):352-354.

Koontz JS, Mountjoy M, Abbott KE, Aron CM, Basile KC, Carlson CT, **Chang CJ**, Diamond AB, Dugan SA, Hainline B, Herring SA, Hopkins BE, Joy EA, Judge JP, LaBotz M, Matuszak J, McDavis CJ, Myers RA, Nattiv A, Tanji JL, Wagner J, Roberts WO. Sexual violence in sport: American Medical Society for Sports Medicine Position Statement. Br J Sports Med. 2020 Jun 18.

Koontz JS, Mountjoy M, Abbott KE, Aron CM, Basile KC, Carlson CT, **Chang CJ**, Diamond AB, Dugan SA, Hainline B, Herring SA, Hopkins E, Joy EA, Judge JP, LaBotz M, Matuszak J, McDavis CJ, Myers RA, Nattiv A, Tanji JL, Wagner J, Roberts WO. Sexual Violence in Sport: American Medical Society for Sports Medicine Position Statement. Curr Sports Med Rep. 2020 Jun; 19(6):232-234.

Kuo AC, Giori NJ, Bowe TR, Manfredi L, Lalani NF, Nordin DA, Harris AHS. Comparing Methods to Determine the Minimal Clinically Important Differences in Patient-Reported Outcome Measures for Veterans Undergoing Elective Total Hip or Knee Arthroplasty in Veterans Health Administration Hospitals. JAMA Surg. 2020 May 01; 155(5):404-411.

Kushare IV, **Allahabadi S**, McKay S. Posterior ankle impingement disguised as peroneal tendon subluxation in young athletes - a case report. J Clin Orthop Trauma. 2020 May-Jun; 11(3):479-481.

Lai IK, Valdearcos M, Morioka K, Saxena S, Feng X, Li R, Uchida Y, Lijun A, Li W, Pan J, Koliwad S, **Marcucio R**, Wulff H, Maze M. Blocking Kv1.3 potassium channels prevents postoperative neuroinflammation and cognitive decline without impairing wound healing in mice. Br J Anaesth. 2020 09; 125(3):298-307.

Lalchandani GR, Chan A, Nagao M, **Immerman I.** Flexor Tendon Rupture After Distal Radius Malunion Associated With Electromyographic Abnormalities: A Case Report. JBJS Case Connect. 2020 Apr-Jun; 10(2):e0309.

Lansdown DA, Christian D, Madden B, Redondo M, Farr J, Cole BJ, Yanke AB. The Sagittal Tibial Tubercle-Trochlear Groove Distance as a Measurement of Sagittal Imbalance in Patients with Symptomatic Patellofemoral Chondral Lesions. Cartilage. 2020 Jan 22; 1947603519900802.

Lansdown DA, Cvetanovich GL, Zhang AL, Feeley BT, Wolf BR, Hettrich CM, Baumgarten KM, Bishop JY, Bollier MJ, Bravman JT, Brophy RH, Cox CL, Frank RM, Grant JA, Jones GL, Kuhn JE, Marx RG, McCarty EC, Miller BS, Ortiz SF, Smith MV, Wright RW, Ma CB. Risk Factors for Intra-articular Bone and Cartilage Lesions in Patients Undergoing Surgical Treatment for Posterior Instability. Am J Sports Med. 2020 04; 48(5):1207-1212.

Lansdown DA, Feeley BT. Editars? Arthroscopy. 2020 02; 36(2):533-534.

Lansdown DA, Ma GC, Aung MS, Gomez A, Zhang AL, Feeley BT, Ma CB. Do patient outcomes and follow-up completion rates after shoulder arthroplasty differ based on insurance payor? J Shoulder Elbow Surg. 2020 Jun 09.

Lansdown DA, Pedoia V. Editorial Commentary: Can We Evaluate Glenoid Bone With Magnetic Resonance Imaging? Yes, If You Have the Right Sequence. Arthroscopy. 2020 09; 36(9):2401-2402.

Lansdown DA, Rugg CM, Feeley BT, Pandya NK. Single Sport Specialization in the Skeletally Immature Athlete: Current Concepts. J Am Acad Orthop Surg. 2020 Sep 01; 28(17):e752-e758.

Lansdown DA, Xiao W, Zhang AL, Allen CR, Feeley BT, Li X, Majumdar S, Ma CB. Quantitative imaging of anterior cruciate ligament (ACL) graft demonstrates longitudinal compositional changes and relationships with clinical outcomes at 2 years after ACL reconstruction. J Orthop Res. 2020 06; 38(6):1289-1295.

Lau BC, Motamedi D, Luke A. Use of Pocket-Sized Ultrasound Device in the Diagnosis of Shoulder Pathology. Clin J Sport Med. 2020 01; 30(1):20-24.

Lau D, **Deviren V**, Joshi RS, Ames CP. Comparison of perioperative complications following posterior column osteotomy versus posterior-based 3-column osteotomy for correction of rigid cervicothoracic deformity: a single-surgeon series of 95 consecutive cases. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 May 08; 1-10.

Lau D, Haddad AF, **Deviren V**, Ames CP. Asymmetrical pedicle subtraction osteotomy for correction of concurrent sagittal-coronal imbalance in adult spinal deformity: a comparative analysis. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Aug 07; 1-8.

Lau D, Haddad AF, **Deviren V**, Ames CP. Complication profile associated with S1 pedicle subtraction osteotomy compared with 3-column osteotomies at other thoracolumbar levels for adult spinal deformity: series of 405 patients with 9 S1 osteotomies. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Jun 19; 1-11.

LaValva SM, Baldwin K, **Swarup I,** Flynn JM, Pahys JM, Yaszay B, Abel MF, Bachmann K, Shah SA, Sponseller PD, Cahill PJ. Prolonged Postoperative Intubation After Spinal Fusion in Cerebral Palsy: Are There Modifiable Risk Factors and Associated Consequences? J Pediatr Orthop. 2020 Sep; 40(8):431-437.

Lertudomphonwanit T, Bridwell KH, Kelly MP, Punyarat P, **Theologis A**, Sides BA, Gupta MC. Relationship of the character of rod fractures on outcomes following long thoracolumbar fusion to the sacrum for adult spinal deformity. Spine J. 2020 Sep; 20(9):1452-1463.

Li AK, Ochoa JK, Pedoia V, Amano K, **Souza RB**, Li X, **Ma CB.** Altered tibiofemoral position following ACL reconstruction is associated with cartilage matrix changes: A voxel-based relaxometry analysis. J Orthop Res. 2020 May 05.

Licia Selleri, Ian Welsh, Karissa Hansen, Marco Osterwalder, Marta Losa-Llabata, Julie Wells, Carol Bult, Timothy Mohun, Diane Hu, **Ralph Marcucio**, Axel Visel, Tomek Swigut. Regulatory Dynamics of Midfacial Growth in Evolution and Disease. The FASEB Journal. 2020 Apr 1; 34(S1):1-1.

Liebig BE, Kisiday JD, **Bahney CS**, Ehrhart NP, Goodrich LR. The platelet-rich plasma and mesenchymal stem cell milieu: A review of therapeutic effects on bone healing. J Orthop Res. 2020 Jun 26.

Lin JS, Lattanza LL, Weber KL, Balch Samora J. Improving Sexual, Racial, and Ethnic Diversity in Orthopedics: An Imperative. Orthopedics. 2020 May 01; 43(3):e134-e140.

Liu X, Liu M, Lee L, **Davies M**, Wang Z, Kim H, **Feeley BT**. Trichostatin A regulates fibro/adipogenic progenitor adipogenesis epigenetically and reduces rotator cuff muscle fatty infiltration. J Orthop Res. 2020 Sep 24.

M. Kathleen Pitirri, Susan M. Motch Perrine, Risa Takenaka, **Ralph Marcucio**, Joan Richtsmeier. Late embryonic skull anomalies in mice carrying the Fgfr2 W290R Crouzon mutation. The FASEB Journal. 2020 Apr 1; 34(S1):1-1.

Ma CB, Xiao W, Salesky M, Cheung E, **Zhang AL**, **Feeley BT**, **Lansdown DA**. Do glenoid retroversion and humeral subluxation affect outcomes following total shoulder arthroplasty? JSES Int. 2020 Sep; 4(3):649-656.

Mack CD, Kent RW, **Coughlin MJ**, Shiue KY, Weiss LJ, Jastifer JR, Wojtys EM, Anderson RB. Incidence of Lower Extremity Injury in the National Football League: 2015 to 2018. Am J Sports Med. 2020 07; 48(9):2287-2294.

Makarewich CA, **Swarup I**, Davidson RS. A simple approach for determining tendon limb length in open Achilles lengthening: technical note. J Pediatr Orthop B. 2020 Jul; 29(4):359-362.

Markes AR, Cheung E, **Ma CB.** Failed Reverse Shoulder Arthroplasty and Recommendations for Revision. Curr Rev Musculoskelet Med. 2020 Feb; 13(1):1-10.

Markes AR, Hodax JD, Ma CB. Meniscus Form and Function. Clin Sports Med. 2020 Jan; 39(1):1-12.

Marmor M, El Naga AN, Barker J, Matz J, Stergiadou S, **Miclau T**. Management of Pelvic Ring Injury Patients With Hemodynamic Instability. Front Surg. 2020; 7:588845.

Marmor M, Knox R, Huang A, Herfat S. Acetabulum Cup Stability in an Early Weight-Bearing Cadaveric Model of Geriatric Posterior Wall Fractures. J Orthop Trauma. 2020 Jan; 34(1):55-61.

Marmor MT, Dailey H, **Marcucio R**, Hunt AC. Biomedical research models in the science of fracture healing - Pitfalls & promises. Injury. 2020 Oct; 51(10):2118-2128.

Maslaris A, Vail TP, Zhang AL, Patel R, Jager M, Bini SA. Equivalent Mid-Term Results of Open vs Endoscopic Gluteal Tendon Tear Repair Using Suture Anchors in Forty-Five Patients. J Arthroplasty. 2020 Jun; 35(6S):S352-S358.

Matthew RP, Seko S, Kurillo G, Bajcsy R, Cheng L, Han JJ, **Lotz J.** Reachable Workspace and Proximal Function Measures for Quantifying Upper Limb Motion. IEEE J Biomed Health Inform. 2020 Nov; 24(11):3285-3294.

McGill K, Motamedi D, Azimi N, Horvai A, **O'Donnell R.** Pleomorphic Sarcoma in a Patient with Osteopetrosis. J Radiol Case Rep. 2020 Jul; 14(7):1-9.

Meinberg E, Ward D, Herring M, **Miclau T**. Hospital-based Hip fracture programs: Clinical need and effectiveness. Injury. 2020 May; 51 Suppl 2:S2-S4.

Mekonnen B, Richardson Q, Bhisitkul JM, **Diab M**, Rasool N. Bilateral optic disc pits in a pediatric patient with Cobb syndrome. Am J Ophthalmol Case Rep. 2020 Sep; 19:100749.

Melanie Haffner-Luntzer, Birte Weber, Charles Lam, Verena Fischer, Miriam Kalbitz, Anita Ignatius, **Ralph S. Marcucio, Theodore Miclau**. A novel mouse model to study fracture healing at the proximal femur. Bone Reports. 2020 Oct 1; 13:100307.

Michael Mullen, **Chelsea Bahney**, Sudheer Ravuri, Johnny Huard, Nicole Ehrhart. Exosome Production and Regenerative Potential is Influenced by Mechanical Stimulus and Cell Origin. The FASEB Journal. 2020 Apr 1; 34(S1):1-1.

Miclau T, Van Lieshout EMM. Optimizing Patient Function After Musculoskeletal Trauma: An Introduction. Injury. 2020 May; 51 Suppl 2:S1.

Monroe EJ, Flores SE, **Zhang AL, Feeley BT, Lansdown DA, Ma CB**. Do Outcomes of Arthroscopic Subscapularis Tendon Repairs Depend on Rotator Cuff Fatty Infiltration? Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Apr; 8(4):2325967120913036.

Moon HJ, Bridwell KH, **Theologis AA**, Kelly MP, Lertudomphonwanit T, Lenke LG, Gupta MC. Thoracolumbar Junction Orientation: A Novel Guide for Sagittal Correction and Proximal Junctional Kyphosis Prediction in Adult Spinal Deformity Patients. Neurosurgery. 2020 Dec 15; 88(1):55-62. Mummaneni N, Burke JF, DiGiorgio AM, Thomas LH, Duong-Fernandez X, Harris M, **Pascual LU**, Ferguson AR, Russell Huie J, Pan JZ, Hemmerle DD, Singh V, Torres-Espin A, Omondi C, Kyritsis N, Weinstein PR, Whetstone WD, Manley GT, Bresnahan JC, Beattie MS, Cohen-Adad J, Dhall SS, Talbott JF. Injury volume extracted from MRI predicts neurologic outcome in acute spinal cord injury: A prospective TRACK-SCI pilot study. J Clin Neurosci. 2020 Nov 25.

Mummaneni PV, Burke JF, Chan AK, Sosa JA, Lobo EP, Mummaneni VP, Antrum S, **Berven SH**, Conte MS, Doernberg SB, Goldberg AN, Hess CP, Hetts SW, Josephson SA, Kohi MP, Ma CB, Mahadevan VS, Molinaro AM, Murr AH, Narayana S, Roberts JP, Stoller ML, Theodosopoulos PV, **Vail TP**, Wienholz S, Gropper MA, Green A, Berger MS. Consensus-based perioperative protocols during the COVID-19 pandemic. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Oct 02; 1-9.

Musa B Zaid, Nathan M Young, Valentina Pedoia, Brian T Feeley, C Benjamin Ma, Drew A Lansdown. Radiographic shoulder parameters and their relationship to outcomes following rotator cuff repair: a systematic review. Shoulder & Elbow. 2020 Jan 10; 175857321989598.

Nagaraj G, **Ma CX**. Clinical Challenges in the Management of Hormone Receptor-Positive, Human Epidermal Growth Factor Receptor 2-Negative Metastatic Breast Cancer: A Literature Review. Adv Ther. 2020 Nov 15.

McGill K, Motamedi D, Azimi N, Horvai A, **O'Donnell R.** Pleomorphic Sarcoma in a Patient with Osteopetrosis. J Radiol Case Rep. 2020 Jul; 14(7):1-9.

Meinberg E, Ward D, Herring M, **Miclau T**. Hospital-based Hip fracture programs: Clinical need and effectiveness. Injury. 2020 May; 51 Suppl 2:S2-S4.

Mekonnen B, Richardson Q, Bhisitkul JM, **Diab M**, Rasool N. Bilateral optic disc pits in a pediatric patient with Cobb syndrome. Am J Ophthalmol Case Rep. 2020 Sep; 19:100749.

Melanie Haffner-Luntzer, Birte Weber, Charles Lam, Verena Fischer, Miriam Kalbitz, Anita Ignatius, **Ralph S. Marcucio, Theodore Miclau**. A novel mouse model to study fracture healing at the proximal femur. Bone Reports. 2020 Oct 1; 13:100307.

Michael Mullen, **Chelsea Bahney**, Sudheer Ravuri, Johnny Huard, Nicole Ehrhart. Exosome Production and Regenerative Potential is Influenced by Mechanical Stimulus and Cell Origin. The FASEB Journal. 2020 Apr 1; 34(S1):1-1.

Miclau T, Van Lieshout EMM. Optimizing Patient Function After Musculoskeletal Trauma: An Introduction. Injury. 2020 May; 51 Suppl 2:S1.

Monroe EJ, Flores SE, **Zhang AL, Feeley BT, Lansdown DA, Ma CB**. Do Outcomes of Arthroscopic Subscapularis Tendon Repairs Depend on Rotator Cuff Fatty Infiltration? Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Apr; 8(4):2325967120913036.

Moon HJ, Bridwell KH, **Theologis AA**, Kelly MP, Lertudomphonwanit T, Lenke LG, Gupta MC. Thoracolumbar Junction Orientation: A Novel Guide for Sagittal Correction and Proximal Junctional Kyphosis Prediction in Adult Spinal Deformity Patients. Neurosurgery. 2020 Dec 15; 88(1):55-62.

Nam SM, **Peterson TA**, Butte AJ, Seo KY, Han HW. Explanatory Model of Dry Eye Disease Using Health and Nutrition Examinations: Machine Learning and Network-Based Factor Analysis From a National Survey. JMIR Med Inform. 2020 Feb 20; 8(2):e16153.

Neha Dole, **Tamara Alliston.** OR29-04 TGF? Regulates Bone Perilacunar/Canalicular Remodeling in a Sexually Dimorphic Manner. Journal of the Endocrine Society. 2020 May 8; 4(Suppl 1).

Nguyen TQ, Friedman JM, Flores SE, **Zhang AL.** Fast Starters and Slow Starters After Hip Arthroscopy for Femoroacetabular Impingement: Correlation of Early Postoperative Pain and 2-Year Outcomes. Am J Sports Med. 2020 10; 48(12):2903-2909.

Nicholas Jean Hanne, Diane Hu, Marta Linde-Medina, Benedikt Hallgrimsson, **Ralph S. Marcucio**. Determining the Role of Extracellular Matrix Compliance on Facial Morphogenesis. The FASEB Journal. 2020 Apr 1; 34(S1):1-1.

Norgeot B, Muenzen K, **Peterson TA**, Fan X, Glicksberg BS, Schenk G, Rutenberg E, Oskotsky B, Sirota M, Yazdany J, Schmajuk G, Ludwig D, Goldstein T, Butte AJ. Protected Health Information filter (Philter): accurately and securely de-identifying free-text clinical notes. NPJ Digit Med. 2020; 3:57.

Obata Y, Bale HA, Barnard HS, Parkinson DY, **Alliston T**, Acevedo C. Quantitative and qualitative bone imaging: A review of synchrotron radiation microtomography analysis in bone research. J Mech Behav Biomed Mater. 2020 10; 110:103887.

Obiajulu Agha, Andreas Mueller-Immergluck, Mengyao Liu, He Zhang, Alekos A. Theologis, Aaron Clark, Hubert T. Kim, Xuhui Liu, Brian T. Feeley, Jeannie F. Bailey. Intervertebral disc herniation effects on multifidus muscle composition and resident stem cell populations. JOR Spine. 2020 May 1.

Oguzie GC, Albright P, **Ali SH**, Duru NE, Iyidobi EC, Lasebikan OA, Chukwumam DC, Wu HH, Ikpeme IA. Prophylactic surgical drainage is associated with increased infection following intramedullary nailing of diaphyseal long bone fractures: A prospective cohort study in Nigeria. SICOT J. 2020; 6:7.

Ordaz A, Schirmers J, **Bini S.** Invagination of elevated lip liner preventing reduction of dislocated total hip. Arthroplast Today. 2020 Mar; 6(1):14-17.

Panoutsopoulos AA, De Crescenzo AH, Lee A, Lu AM, Ross AP, Borodinsky LN, **Marcucio R**, Trainor PA, Zarbalis KS. Pak1ip1 Loss-of-Function Leads to Cell Cycle Arrest, Loss of Neural Crest Cells, and Craniofacial Abnormalities. Front Cell Dev Biol. 2020; 8:510063.

Patterson JT, Ishii K, Tornetta P, Leighton RK, Friess DM, Jones CB, Levine A, Maclean JJ, **Miclau T**, Mullis BH, Obremskey WT, Ostrum RF, Reid JS, Ruder JA, Saleh A, Schmidt AH, Teague DC, Tsismenakis A, Westberg JR, **Morshed S**. Open Reduction Is Associated With Greater Hazard of Early Reoperation After Internal Fixation of Displaced Femoral Neck Fractures in Adults 18-65 Years. J Orthop Trauma. 2020 Jun; 34(6):294-301.

Patterson JT, Morshed S. In response. J Orthop Trauma. 2020 Sep 16.

Patterson JT, Morshed S. Letters to the Editor. J Orthop Trauma. 2020 11; 34(11):e434-e436.

Patterson JT, Wu HH, Chung CC, **Bendich I, Barry JJ, Bini SA.** Wearable activity sensors and early pain after total joint arthroplasty. Arthroplast Today. 2020 Mar; 6(1):68-70.

Pennock AT, Huang SG, Pedowitz JM, **Pandya NK**, McLaughlin DC, Bastrom TP, Ellis HB. Risk Factors for Adverse Radiographic Outcomes After Elastic Stable Intramedullary Nailing of Unstable Diaphyseal Tibia Fractures in Children. J Pediatr Orthop. 2020 Oct; 40(9):481-486.

Pillay BA, Fusaro M, Gray PE, Statham AL, Burnett L, Bezrodnik L, Kane A, Tong WWY, Abdo C, Winter S, Chevalier S, Levy R, Masson C, Schmitt Y, Bole-Feysot C, Malphettes M, Macintyre E, de Villartay JP, Ziegler JB, Smart JM, Peake J, Aghamohammadi A, Hammarström L, Abolhassani H, Picard C, Fischer A, Latour S, Neven B, Tangye S, Ma CS. Somatic reversion of pathogenic DOCK8 variants alters lymphocyte differentiation and function **t**o effectively cure DOCK8 deficiency. J Clin Invest. 2020 Dec 08.

Ramezanpour S, Horvai AE, **Zimel M**, Bucknor M, Link TM. Fibroma-like perivascular epithelioid cell tumor: a rare case in a long bone. Skeletal Radiol. 2020 Sep 18.

Rebecca M. Green, Lucas Lo Vercio, Sihan Guo, Andreas Dauter, Marta Marchini, Xiang Xhao, **Ralph S. Marcucio**, Benedikt Hallgrimsson. Mapping the relationship between proliferation and morphology in the developing mouse face. The FASEB Journal. 2020 Apr 1; 34(S1):1-1. The FASEB Journal

Richbourg HA, Hu DP, Xu Y, Barczak AJ, **Marcucio RS.** miR-199 family contributes to regulation of sonic hedgehog expression during craniofacial development. Dev Dyn. 2020 Sep; 249(9):1062-1076.

Rivera KO, Russo F, Boileau RM, Tomlinson RE, **Miclau T**, Marcucio RS, Desai TA, **Bahney CS**. Local injections of ?-NGF accelerates endochondral fracture repair by promoting cartilage to bone conversion. Sci Rep. 2020 Dec 17; 10(1):22241.

Roberts HJ, Albright PD, **Shearer DW**, Won N, MacKechnie MC, **Richard Coughlin R, Miclau T, Morshed S, Sabharwal S.** Motivations and impact of international rotations in low- and middle-income countries for orthopaedic surgery residents: Are we on the same page? Am J Surg. 2020 Sep 12.

Roddy E, Patterson JT, **Kandemir U.** Delay of Antibiotic Administration Greater than 2 Hours Predicts Surgical Site Infection in Open Fractures. Injury. 2020 Sep; 51(9):1999-2003.

Rubenstein W, **Barry J**, Rogers S, Grace TR, **Tay B**, **Ward D**. Reducing Time to Surgery for Hip Fragility Fracture Patients: A Resident Quality Improvement Initiative. J Healthc Qual. 2020 Nov 24.

Rubenstein WJ, Allahabadi S, Curriero F, **Feeley BT, Lansdown DA**. Fracture Epidemiology in Professional Baseball From 2011 to 2017. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Aug; 8(8):2325967120943161.

Rubenstein WJ, Harris AHS, Hwang KM, Giori NJ, **Kuo AC**. Social Determinants of Health and Patient-Reported Outcomes Following Total Hip and Knee Arthroplasty in Veterans. J Arthroplasty. 2020 Sep; 35(9):2357-2362.

Rugg CM, Pitcher AA, **Allen C**, **Pandya NK**. Revision ACL Reconstruction in Adolescent Patients.Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Sep; 8(9):2325967120953337.

Safaee MM, Pekmezci M, **Deviren V**, Ames CP, Clark AJ. Thoracolumbar Vertebral Column Resection With Rectangular Endplate Cages Through a Posterior Approach: Surgical Techniques and Early Postoperative Outcomes. Oper Neurosurg (Hagerstown). 2020 Mar 01; 18(3):329-338.

Safaee MM, Tenorio A, Haddad AF, Wu B, Hu SS, Tay B, **Burch S, Berven SH, Deviren V,** Dhall SS, Chou D, Mummaneni PV, Eichler CM, Ames CP, Clark AJ. Anterior Lumbar Interbody Fusion With Cage Retrieval for the Treatment of Pseudarthrosis After Transforaminal Lumbar Interbody Fusion: A Single-Institution Case Series. Oper Neurosurg (Hagerstown). 2020 Oct 09.

Safaee MM, Tenorio A, Osorio JA, Choy W, Amara D, Lai L, Hu SS, **Tay B, Burch S, Berven SH**, **Deviren V**, Dhall SS, Chou D, Mummaneni PV, Eichler CM, Ames CP, Clark AJ. The effect of anterior lumbar interbody fusion staging order on perioperative complications in circumferential lumbar fusions performed within the same hospital admission. Neurosurg Focus. 2020 09; 49(3):E6.

[Safaee MM, Tenorio A, Osorio JA, Choy W, Amara D, Lai L, Molinaro AM, Zhang Y, Hu SS, Tay B, **Burch S, Berven SH, Deviren V**, Dhall SS, Chou D, Mummaneni PV, Eichler CM, Ames CP, Clark AJ. The impact of obesity on perioperative complications in patients undergoing anterior lumbar interbody fusion. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Apr 24; 1-10.

Saigal R, Lau D, **Berven SH,** Carreon L, Dekutoski MB, Kebaish KM, Qiu Y, Matsuyama Y, Kelly M, Dahl BT, Mehdian H, Pellise F, Lewis SJ, Cheung KM, Shaffrey CI, Fehlings MG, Lenke LG, Ames CP. Impact of New Motor Deficit on HRQOL after Adult Spinal Deformity Surgery: Subanalysis from Scoli Risk 1 Prospective Study. Spine (Phila Pa 1976). 2020 Dec 07.

Samir Sabharwal, Adam Margalit, **Ishaan Swarup, Sanjeev Sabharwal**. The Pulseless Supracondylar Elbow Fracture: A Rational Approach. Indian Journal of Orthopaedics. 2020 Oct 13; 1-8.

Sanjeev Sabharwal, Richard M. Schwend, David A. Spiegel. Evaluation and Treatment of Angular Deformities. 2020 Jan 1; 417-428.

Schachner ER, Hedrick BP, Farmer CG, Hutchinson JR, Farmer CG. Anatomy, ontogeny, and evolution of the archosaurian respiratory system: A case study on Alligator mississippiensis and Struthio camelus. J Anat. 2020 Dec 20.

Schilling K, Gentner DR, Wilen L, Medina A, Buehler C, Perez-Lorenzo LJ, Pollitt KJG, Bergemann R, Bernardo N, Peccia J, Wilczynski V, Lattanza L. An accessible method for screening aerosol filtration identifies poor-performing commercial masks and respirators. J Expo Sci Environ Epidemiol. 2020 Aug 06.

Schilling PL, He J, Chen S, Placzek H, **Bini S**. Risk-Adjusted Cost Performance for 90-Day Total Knee Arthroplasty Episodes: Data and Methods for Comparing U.S. Hospitals Nationwide. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 Jun 03; 102(11):971-982.

Schilling PL, He J, Chen S, Placzek H, **Bini SA.** Risk-Adjusted Cost Performance for 90-Day Total Hip Arthroplasty Episodes: Comparing US Hospitals Nationwide Before CJR. J Arthroplasty. 2020 Dec; 35(12):3452-3463.

Schneider BJ, Ehsanian R, Huynh L, Levin J, **Zheng P**, Kennedy DJ. Pain and Functional Outcomes After Sacroiliac Joint Injection with Anesthetic and Corticosteroid at Six Months, Stratified by Anesthetic Response and Physical Exam Maneuvers. Pain Med. 2020 01 01; 21(1):32-40.

Sershon RA, Fillingham YA, Abdel MP, Malkani AL, Schwarzkopf R, Padgett DE, **Vail TP**, Nam D, Nahhas C, Culvern C, Della Valle CJ. The Optimal Dosing Regimen for Tranexamic Acid in Revision Total Hip Arthroplasty: A Multicenter Randomized Clinical Trial. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2020 11 04; 102(21):1883-1890.

Shah RF, **Bini S**, **Vail T**. Data for registry and quality review can be retrospectively collected using natural language processing from unstructured charts of arthroplasty patients. Bone Joint J. 2020 Jul; 102-B(7_Supple_B):99-104.

Shah RF, **Bini SA**, Martinez AM, Pedoia V, **Vail TP.** Incremental inputs improve the automated detection of implant loosening using machine-learning algorithms. Bone Joint J. 2020 Jun; 102-B(6_Supple_A):101-106.

Shaw C, Warwick H, Nguyen KH, Link TM, Majumdar S, Souza RB, Vail TP, Zhang AL. Correlation of hip capsule morphology with patient symptoms from femoroacetabular impingement. J Orthop Res. 2020 Jun 27.

Shimberg JL, Aoyama JT, Leska TM, Ganley TJ, Fabricant PD, Patel NM, Cruz AI, Ellis HB, Schmale GA, Green DW, **Jagodzinski JE**, Kushare I, Lee RJ, McKay S, Rhodes J, Sachleben B, Sargent C, Yen YM, Mistovich RJ. Tibial Spine Fractures: How Much Are We Missing Without Pretreatment Advanced Imaging? A Multicenter Study. Am J Sports Med. 2020 11; 48(13):3208-3213.

Shimizu T, Markes AR, Samaan MA, Tanaka MS, Souza RB, Li X, **Ma CB.** Patients With Abnormal Limb Kinetics at 6 Months After Anterior Cruciate Ligament Reconstruction Have an Increased Risk of Persistent Medial Meniscal Abnormality at 3 Years. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Jan; 8(1):2325967119895248.

Shonnard NH, **Berven S**, Anderson PA, Verschuyl E, Norwitz J, Shonnard N, Khor S, Wagoner DD, Yoon ES, Beall DP. Appropriate Management of Vertebral Fragility Fractures: Development of a Pathway Based on a Vertebral Compression Fracture Registry. Pain Physician. 2020 07; 23(4):E343-E352.

Singh S, Kidane J, Wentworth KL, Motamedi D, **Morshed S**, Schober AE, Hsiao EC. Surgical management of bilateral hip fractures in a patient with fibrodysplasia ossificans progressiva treated with the RAR-? agonist palovarotene: a case report. BMC Musculoskelet Disord. 2020 Apr 03; 21(1):204.

Slobogean GP, Sprague S, Wells J, Bhandari M, Rojas A, Garibaldi A, Wood A, Howe A, Harris AD, Petrisor BA, Mullins DC, Pogorzelski D, Marvel D, Heels-Ansdell D, Mossuto F, Grissom F, Del Fabbro G, Guyatt GH, Della Rocca GJ, Demyanovich HK, Gitajn IL, Palmer J, D'Alleyrand JC, Friedrich J, Rivera J, Hebden J, Rudnicki J, Fowler J, Jeray KJ, Thabane L, Marchand L, O'Hara LM, Joshi MG, Talbot M, Camara M, Szasz OP, O'Hara NN, McKay P, Devereaux PJ, O'Toole RV, Zura R, **Morshed S**, Dodds S, Li S, Tanner SL, Scott T, Nguyen U. Effectiveness of Iodophor vs Chlorhexidine Solutions for Surgical Site Infections and Unplanned Reoperations for Patients Who Underwent Fracture Repair: The PREP-IT Master Protocol. JAMA Netw Open. 2020 04 01; 3(4):e202215.

Smith JS, Buell TJ, Shaffrey CI, Kim HJ, Klineberg E, Protopsaltis T, Passias P, Mundis GM, Eastlack R, **Deviren V**, Kelly MP, Daniels AH, Gum JL, Soroceanu A, Gupta M, Burton D, Hostin R, Hart R, Lafage V, Lafage R, Schwab FJ, Bess S, Ames CP. Prospective multicenter assessment of complication rates associated with adult cervical deformity surgery in 133 patients with minimum 1-year follow-up. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Jun 19; 1-13.

Smith SS, Chu D, Qu T, **Schneider RA**. 2020. Differential sensitivity to TGF? signaling and regulatory changes in the Mmp13 promoter underlie the development and evolution of the avian jaw skeleton. BioRxiv https://doi.org/10.1101/2020.12.23.424223

Soriano KKJ, Flores SE, Aung MS, Nguyen TQ, **Zhang AL**. Treatment of Labral Calcification in the Setting of Femoroacetabular Impingement Syndrome with Arthroscopic Calcification Excision, Labral Repair and Osteoplasty Improves Outcomes. Arthroscopy. 2020 Oct 26.

Squillaro AI, Sanders K, Onwubiko C, **Chang CJ**, Kim S. Laparoscopic Treatment of Slipping Rib Syndrome in Pediatric Patients. J Laparoendosc Adv Surg Tech A. 2020 Nov; 30(11):1253-1256.

Strohl MP, Choy W, Clark AJ, Mummaneni PV, Dhall SS, **Tay BK**, Loftus PA, El-Sayed IH, Russell MS. Immediate Voice and Swallowing Complaints Following Revision Anterior Cervical Spine Surgery. Otolaryngol Head Neck Surg. 2020 Oct; 163(4):778-784.

Stroud SG, **Kandemir U**. Acute Delirium Induced by Ciprofloxacin in a Patient With Chronic Kidney Disease: A Case Report. JBJS Case Connect. 2020 Apr-Jun; 10(2):e0603.

Sukhmani Singh, Joseph Kidane, Kelly Lee Wentworth, Daria Motamedi, **Saam Morshed**, Edward Chiaming Hsiao. MON-348 Surgical Management of Bilateral Hip Fracture in a Patient with Fibrodysplasia Ossificans Progressiva Treated with Palovarotene. Journal of the Endocrine Society. 2020 May 8; 4(Suppl 1).

Swarup I, Cazzulino A, Williams BA, Spiegel D, Shah AS. Outcomes after Surgical Fixation of Posterior Sternoclavicular Fracture-Dislocations in Children. Journal of Pediatric Orthopedics, October2020.

Swarup I, Chan C, Mehta N, Lawrence JT. Does an elbow arthrogram change management after closed reduction of mildly displaced lateral condyle fractures in children? J Pediatr Orthop B. 2020 Sep 24.

Swarup I, Ge Y, Scher D, Sink E, Widmann R, Dodwell E. Open and Closed Reduction for Developmental Dysplasia of the Hip in New York State: Incidence of Hip Reduction and Rates of Subsequent Surgery. JB JS Open Access. 2020 Jan-Mar; 5(1):e0028.

Swarup I, Goodbody C, Goto R, Sankar WN, Fabricant PD. Risk Factors for Contralateral Slipped Capital Femoral Epiphysis: A Meta-analysis of Cohort and Case-control Studies. J Pediatr Orthop. 2020 Jul; 40(6):e446-e453.

Swarup I, LaValva S, Shah R, Sankar WN. Septic Arthritis of the Hip in Children: A Critical Analysis Review. JBJS Rev. 2020 Feb; 8(2):e0103.

Swarup I, Luhmann S, Woiczik M, Sankar WN. Eight Years of the Pediatric Orthopaedic Fellowship Match: What Have We Learned? J Pediatr Orthop. 2020 Feb; 40(2):e144-e148.

Swarup I, MacAlpine EM, Mayer OH, Lark RK, Smith JT, Vitale MG, Flynn JM, Anari JB, Cahill PJ. Impact of growth friendly interventions on spine and pulmonary outcomes of patients with spinal muscular atrophy. Eur Spine J. 2020 Aug 18.

Swarup I, Meza BC, Weltsch D, Jina AA, Lawrence JT, Baldwin KD. Septic Arthritis of the Knee in Children: A Critical Analysis Review. JBJS Rev. 2020 01; 8(1):e0069.

Swarup I, Nguyen J, Edmonds C, Dodwell E, Scher D. Effect of Intravenous Aminocaproid Acid on Blood Loss and Transfusion Requirements After Bilateral Varus Rotational Osteotomy: A Double-blind, Placebocontrolled Randomized Trial. J Pediatr Orthop. 2020 Jul; 40(6):e454-e459.

Swarup I, Shah R, Gohel S, Baldwin K, Sankar WN. Predicting subsequent contralateral slipped capital femoral epiphysis: an evidence-based approach. J Child Orthop. 2020 Apr 01; 14(2):91-97.

Swarup I, Talwar D, Howell LJ, Adzick NS, Horn BD. Orthopaedic outcomes of prenatal versus postnatal repair of myelomeningocele. J Pediatr Orthop B. 2020 Nov 06.

Swarup I, Talwar D, Sankar WN. Part-time Abduction Bracing in Infants With Residual Acetabular Dysplasia: Does Compliance Monitoring Support a Dose-dependent Relationship? J Pediatr Orthop. 2020 Nov 05.

Swarup I, Williams BA, Talwar D, Sankar WN. Rates of Contralateral SCFE in the United States: Analysis of the Pediatric Health Information System. J Pediatr Orthop. 2020 Aug; 40(7):e587-e591.

Swarup I, Zaltz I, Robustelli S, Sink E. Outcomes of periacetabular osteotomy for borderline hip dysplasia in adolescent patients. J Hip Preserv Surg. 2020 Jul; 7(2):249-255.

T. Alliston. Cartilage/Bone Crosstalk in Joint Health and Disease. Osteoarthritis and Cartilage. 2020 Apr 1; 28:s18.

Tan LA, Rivera J, Tan XA, Le VP, Khoo LT, **Berven SH**. Clinical and Radiographic Outcomes After Minimally Invasive Transforaminal Lumbar Interbody Fusion-Early Experience Using a Biplanar Expandable Cage for Lumbar Spondylolisthesis. Int J Spine Surg. 2020 Oct 29.

Tangtiphaiboontana J, Agel J, Beingessner D, Hebert-Davies J. Prolonged dislocation and delay to surgery are associated with higher rates of heterotopic ossification in operatively treated terrible triad injuries. JSES Int. 2020 Jun; 4(2):238-241.

Theologis AA, Gupta MC. The Rail Technique for Correction of Cervicothoracic Kyphosis: Case Report and Surgical Technique Description. Neurospine. 2020 Sep; 17(3):652-658.

Theologis AA, Ramirez J, **Diab M**. Preoperative CT Angiography Informs Instrumentation in Anterior Spine Surgery for Idiopathic Scoliosis. J Am Acad Orthop Surg Glob Res Rev. 2020 Apr; 4(4).

Tomkins-Lane C, **Zheng PZ**, Sun R, Smuck M. Variability among methods and timing of pain assessmenttools for tracking improvement of lumbar stenosis patients after surgery. Spine J. 2020 Nov; 20(11):1826-1831.

Tsolinas RE, Burke JF, DiGiorgio AM, Thomas LH, Duong-Fernandez X, Harris MH, Yue JK, Winkler EA, Suen CG, **Pascual LU**, Ferguson AR, Huie JR, Pan JZ, Hemmerle DD, Singh V, Torres-Espin A, Omondi C, Kyritsis N, Haefeli J, Weinstein PR, de Almeida Neto CA, Kuo YH, Taggard D, Talbott JF, Whetstone WD, Manley GT, Bresnahan JC, Beattie MS, Dhall SS. Transforming Research and Clinical Knowledge in Spinal Cord Injury (TRACK-SCI): an overview of initial enrollment and demographics. Neurosurg Focus. 2020 05 01; 48(5):E6.

Tsusaka T, Fukuda K, Shimura C, Kato M, Shinkai Y. The fibronectin type-III (FNIII) domain of ATF7IP contributes to efficient transcriptional silencing mediated by the SETDB1 complex. Epigenetics Chromatin. 2020 Nov 30; 13(1):52.

Urban G, Porhemmat S, Stark M, Feeley B, Okada K, Baldi P. Classifying shoulder implants in X-ray images using deep learning. Comput Struct Biotechnol J. 2020; 18:967-972.

Utsunomiya H, Gao X, Deng Z, Cheng H, Nakama G, Scibetta AC, Ravuri SK, Goldman JL, Lowe WR, Rodkey WG, **Alliston T,** Philippon MJ, Huard J. Biologically Regulated Marrow Stimulation by Blocking TGF-?1 With Losartan Oral Administration Results in Hyaline-like Cartilage Repair: A Rabbit Osteochondral Defect Model. Am J Sports Med. 2020 03; 48(4):974-984.

Vahedi H, **Ward DT**, Lee YS, Shohat N, Chen AF. Greater Knee Soft Tissue Thickness Predisposes Patients to Subsequent Periprosthetic Joint Infection After Total Knee Arthroplasty. J Arthroplasty. 2020 Jul; 35(7):1924-1927.

von Kaeppler E, Donnelley C, Roberts HJ, O'Hara NN, Won N, **Shearer DW, Morshed S.** Impact of North American Institutions on Orthopedic Research in Low- and Middle-Income Countries. Orthop Clin North Am. 2020 Apr; 51(2):177-188.

von Mehren M, Kane JM, Bui MM, Choy E, Connelly M, Dry S, Ganjoo KN, George S, Gonzalez RJ, Heslin MJ, Homsi J, Keedy V, Kelly CM, Kim E, Liebner D, McCarter M, McGarry SV, Meyer C, Pappo AS, Parkes AM, Paz IB, Petersen IA, Poppe M, Riedel RF, Rubin B, Schuetze S, Shabason J, Sicklick JK, Spraker MB, **Zimel M**, Bergman MA, George GV. NCCN Guidelines Insights: Soft Tissue Sarcoma, Version 1.2021. J Natl Compr Canc Netw. 2020 12 02; 18(12):1604-1612.

W.S. Chen, M. Lometti, **R.L. Wustrack, M.N. Zimel, R.J. O'Donnell**, A.E. Horvai, S.J. Cho, R.A. Okimoto, T.M. Jahan, A.R. Gottschalk, S.E. Braunstein. Intraoperative Radiotherapy Without External Beam Radiotherapy in the Management of Primary Soft Tissue Sarcomas of the Extremities. International Journal of Radiation Oncology and Biology and Physics. 2020 Nov 1; 108(3):e5.

Walker CT, Kim HJ, Park P, Lenke LG, Weller MA, Smith JS, Nemergut EC, Sciubba DM, Wang MY, Shaffrey C, **Deviren V**, Mummaneni PV, Chang JM, Mummaneni VP, Than KD, Berjano P, Eastlack RK, Mundis GM, Kanter AS, Okonkwo DO, Shin JH, Lewis JM, Koski T, Hoh DJ, Glassman SD, Vinci SB, Daniels AH, Clavijo CF, Turner JD, McLawhorn M, Uribe JS. Neuroanesthesia Guidelines for Optimizing Transcranial Motor Evoked Potential Neuromonitoring During Deformity and Complex Spinal Surgery: A Delphi Consensus Study. Spine (Phila Pa 1976). 2020 Jul 01; 45(13):911-920.

Wang L, Han M, Wong J, Zheng P, Lazar AA, Krug R, **Fields AJ.** Evaluation of human cartilage endplate composition using MRI: Spatial variation, association with adjacent disc degeneration, and in vivo repeatability. J Orthop Res. 2020 Jun 27.

Wang P, **Kandemir U,** Zhang B, Fei C, Zhuang Y, Zhang K. The effect of new preoperative preparation method compared to conventional method in complex acetabular fractures: minimum 2-year follow-up. Arch Orthop Trauma Surg. 2020 May 26.

Wang Z, Liu X, Jiang K, Kim H, Kajimura S, Feeley BT. Intramuscular Brown Fat Activation Decreases Muscle Atrophy and Fatty Infiltration and Improves Gait After Delayed Rotator Cuff Repair in Mice. Am J Sports Med. 2020 06; 48(7):1590-1600.

Wang Z, Liu X, Liu M, Jiang K, Kajimura S, Kim H, **Feeley BT**. 3-Adrenergic receptor agonist treats rotator cuff fatty infiltration by activating beige fat in mice. J Shoulder Elbow Surg. 2020 Jun 27.

Ward DT, Grotkopp E, Detch RC, Kim HT, **Kuo AC**. Comparison of Periarticular Infiltration and Combination Delivery of Local Anesthetics for Reducing Pain and Opioid Consumption after Total Knee Arthroplasty. J Knee Surg. 2020 Mar 06.

Withers J, Lalchandani GR, Halvorson RT, **Immerman I**, Rahgozar P. Opioid Use Following Open Versus Endoscopic Carpal Tunnel Release—A Population Study. Plast Reconstr Surg Glob Open. 2020 Sep; 8(9 Suppl): 85-85.

Wong A, Garcia SM, Tamaki S, Striedinger K, Barruet E, **Hansen SL**, Young DM, **Pomerantz JH**. Satellite Cell Activation and Retention of Muscle Regenerative Potential After Long Term Denervation. Stem Cells. 2020 Dec 16.

Wong SA, Hu DP, Slocum J, Lam C, Nguyen M, **Miclau T, Marcucio RS, Bahney CS**. Chondrocyte-toosteoblast transformation in mandibular fracture repair. J Orthop Res. 2020 Nov 03.

Working ZM, Morris ER, Chang JC, Coghlan RF, Johnstone B, Miclau T, Horton WA, **Bahney CS.** A quantitative serum biomarker of circulating collagen X effectively correlates with endochondral fracture healing. J Orthop Res. 2020 Jun 13.

Wright RW, Huston LJ, Haas AK, Nwosu SK, Allen CR, Anderson AF, Cooper DE, DeBerardino TM, Dunn WR, Lantz BBA, Mann B, Spindler KP, Stuart MJ, Pennings JS, Albright JP, Amendola AN, Andrish JT, Annunziata CC, Arciero RA, Bach BR, Baker CL, Bartolozzi AR, Baumgarten KM, Bechler JR, Berg JH, Bernas GA, Brockmeier SF, Brophy RH, Bush-Joseph CA, Butler V JB, Campbell JD, Carey JL, Carpenter JE, Cole BJ, Cooper JM, Cox CL, Creighton RA, Dahm DL, David TS, Flanigan DC, Frederick RW, Ganley TJ, Garofoli EA, Gatt CJ, Gecha SR, Giffin JR, Hame SL, Hannafin JA, Harner CD, Harris NL, Hechtman KS, Hershman EB, Hoellrich RG, Hosea TM, Johnson DC, Johnson TS, Jones MH, Kaeding CC, Kamath GV, Klootwyk TE, Levy BA, **Ma CB**, Maiers GP, Marx RG, Matava MJ, Mathien GM, McAllister DR, McCarty EC, McCormack RG, Miller BS, Nissen CW, O'Neill DF, Owens BD, Parker RD, Purnell ML, Ramappa AJ, Rauh MA, Rettig AC, Sekiya JK, Shea KG, Sherman OH, Slauterbeck JR, Smith MV, Spang JT, Steven J Svoboda L, Taft TN, Tenuta JJ, Tingstad EM, Vidal AF, Viskontas DG, White RA, Williams JS, Wolcott ML, Wolf BR, York JJ. Meniscal Repair in the Setting of Revision Anterior Cruciate Ligament Reconstruction: Results From the MARS Cohort. Am J Sports Med. 2020 Oct; 48(12):2978-2985.

Wustrack R, Rao SS, Morris CD. Musculoskeletal Effects of Cancer and Cancer Treatment. J Am Acad Orthop Surg. 2020 Aug 15; 28(16):e716-e728.

Xi Z, **Burch S**, Mummaneni PV, Chang CC, Ruan H, Eichler C, Chou D. Supine anterior lumbar interbody fusion versus lateral position oblique lumbar interbody fusion at L5-S1: A comparison of two approaches to the lumbosacral junction. J Clin Neurosci. 2020 Dec; 82(Pt A):134-140.

Xi Z, **Burch S**, Mummaneni PV, Mayer RR, Eichler C, Chou D. The effect of obesity on perioperative morbidity in oblique lumbar interbody fusion. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Mar 27; 1-8.

Xi Z, Chou D, Mummaneni PV, **Burch S.** The Navigated Oblique Lumbar Interbody Fusion: Accuracy Rate, Effect on Surgical Time, and Complications. Neurospine. 2020 Mar; 17(1):260-267. Xi Z, Chou D, Mummaneni PV, Ruan H, Eichler C, Chang CC, **Burch S**. Anterior lumbar compared to oblique lumbar interbody approaches for multilevel fusions to the sacrum in adults with spinal deformity and degeneration. J Neurosurg Spine. 2020 Jun 12; 1-10.

Xi Z, Mummaneni PV, Wang M, Ruan H, **Burch S**, Deviren V, Clark AJ, **Berven SH**, Chou D. The association between lower Hounsfield units on computed tomography and cage subsidence after lateral lumbar interbody fusion. Neurosurg Focus. 2020 08; 49(2):E8.

Xuhui Liu, Mengyao Liu, Russell Turner, Urszula Iwaniec, **Hubert Kim, Bernard Halloran.** Dried plum mitigates spinal cord injury-induced bone loss in mice. JOR Spine. 2020 Jul 15.

Yang J, Parvizi J, **Hansen EN**, Culvern CN, Segreti JC, Tan T, Hartman CW, Sporer SM, Della Valle CJ. 2020 Mark Coventry Award: Microorganism-directed oral antibiotics reduce the rate of failure due to further infection after two-stage revision hip or knee arthroplasty for chronic infection: a multicentre randomized controlled trial at a minimum of two years. Bone Joint J. 2020 Jun; 102-B(6_Supple_A):3-9. Yang R, Mele F, Worley L, Langlais D, Rosain J, Benhsaien I, Elarabi H, Croft CA, Doisne JM, Zhang P, Weisshaar M, Jarrossay D, Latorre D, Shen Y, Han J, Ogishi M, Gruber C, Markle J, Al Ali F, Rahman M, Khan T, Seeleuthner Y, Kerner G, Husquin LT, MacIsaac JL, Jeljeli M, Errami A, Ailal F, Kobor MS, Oleaga-Quintas C, Roynard M, Bourgey M, El Baghdadi J, Boisson-Dupuis S, Puel A, Batteux F, Rozenberg F, Marr N, Pan-Hammarström Q, Bogunovic D, Quintana-Murci L, Carroll T, **Ma CS**, Abel L, Bousfiha A, Di Santo JP, Glimcher LH, Gros P, Tangye SG, Sallusto F, Bustamante J, Casanova JL. Human T-bet Governs Innate and Innate-like Adaptive IFN-? Immunity against Mycobacteria. Cell. 2020 Dec 03. Cell

Yari SS, El Naga AN, Patel A, Qadeer AA, Shah A. Tight Rope Versus Biocomposite Interference Screw for Fixation in Allograft ACL Reconstruction, JBJS Open Access: April-June 2020 - Volume 5 - Issue 2 - p e0057doi: **10.2106/JB**JS.OA.19.00057

You JS, Flores SE, Friedman JM, **Lansdown DA, Zhang AL.** The Learning Curve for Hip Arthroscopic Surgery: A Prospective Evaluation With 2-Year Outcomes in Patients With Femoroacetabular Impingement. Orthop J Sports Med. 2020 Oct; 8(10):2325967120959140.

You JS, Monroe EJ, Friedman JM, **Feeley BT, Lansdown DA, Zhang AL, Ma CB.** Arthroscopic Single-Portal Subscapularis Tendon Repair. Arthrosc Tech. 2020 Oct; 9(10):e1447-e1452.

Young CC, Higgs JD, **Chang CJ**. Managing Medications in the Training Room and on the Sidelines. Curr Sports Med Rep. 2020 Jul; 19(7):249-250.

Zakaria A, **Miclau TA**, Maurer T, Leslie KS, Amerson E. Cost Minimization Analysis of a Teledermatology Triage System in a Managed Care Setting. JAMA Dermatol. 2020 Nov 18.

Zara Butte, Kara Tanaka, Veronica Andaya, Melissa Zimel, Richard J. Donnell, Rosanna Wustrack. Risk of endoprosthetic infection and impact of health-related quality of life in patients with osteosarcoma and giant cell tumor of bone; a retrospective case-control study. Annals of Joint. 2020 Jul 1; 5(0):27-27.

Zhang H, Liu M, **Kim HT, Feeley BT, Liu X**. Preconditioning improves muscle regeneration after ischemiareperfusion injury. J Orthop Res. 2020 Nov 24.

Zhao C, Starke M, Tompson JD, **Sabharwal S.** Predictors for Nonaccidental Trauma in a Child With a Fracture-A National Inpatient Database Study. J Am Acad Orthop Surg. 2020 Feb 15; 28(4):e164-e171.

Zhou J, Damasceno PF, Chachad R, Cheung JR, Ballatori A, **Lotz JC**, Lazar AA, Link TM, **Fields AJ**, Krug R. Automatic Vertebral Body Segmentation Based on Deep Learning of Dixon Images for Bone Marrow Fat Fraction Quantification. Front Endocrinol (Lausanne). 2020; 11:612.

Facilities Update

Update on Parnassus renovations at Health Sciences East, 11th floor and at 95 Kirkham

- Curent square footage: 5,169.32
- New plan will be 5,169.32 (current occupied space) +1,550 (pulmonary space) +752.01 (S1147 elevator space) = 7,471.3.
- In total, we are getting about 2,302.01 of San Francisco's Parnassus campus in the new plan.







Philanthropy

Support the UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery

Thank you to our incredibly generous donor community. We are deeply appreciative of your support.

Gifts from private donors keep the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery at the forefront of musculoskeletal care and research. Philanthropic support helps us attract and retain the best students and faculty members, make groundbreaking discoveries, and deliver compassionate care. To learn more about how to make a gift for the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, please contact **Emily Wozniak**, Director of Development at **(415) 476-3515** or send an email to **emily.wozniak@ucsf.edu**.

Your contribution will positively impact musculoskeletal care, education and research.

makeagift.ucsf.edu



To learn more about research opportunities in the UCSF Department of Orthopaedic Surgery or to add your support, please visit:

orthosurgery.ucsf.edu





Pioneering musculoskeletal discovery and innovative care to transform lives.

